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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICA nON FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARriR Ie C feo \\ II~IR\ 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT Ii;; ¥f a; i!J 

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION MAY 3 0 2014 

This Section must be completed for all projects. SE~~~f!sH~~C/LITtES & 
VIEW BOARQ 

Facility/Proiect Identification 
Facility Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center 

I 

Street Address: 5841 South Maryland Avenue 
City and Zip Code: . Chicago 60637-1470 
County: Cook Health Service Area HSA6 Health Planning Area: A-3 

Applicant ICo-Applicant Identification 
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220]. 

Exact Legal Name: 
Address: 
Name of Registered Agent: 
Name of Chief Executive Officer: 
CEO Address: 
Telephone Number: 

[2J 
o o 

of Ownersh 

Non-profit Corporation 
For-profit Corporation 
Limited Liability Company 

The University of Chicago Medical Center 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
John Satalic 
Sharon O'Keefe 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
(~73) 702-6240 

o o o 
Partnership 
Governmental 
Sole Proprietorship o 

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good 
standing. 

Other 

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of 
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. 

Primary Contact 
[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries. 
Name: John R. Betierman I 
Title: Director, Capital Budget and Control 
Company Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center I 

. Address: 14216 South Meadowview Court, Orland Park, IL 60462-2350 I 
Tele hone Number: 773 702-1246 . 
E-mail Address: --
Fax Number: 
Additional Contact 
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit] 

I Name: Joe Ourth . 
I Title: AttorneY 
I Company Name: Arnstein & Lehr LLP 
LM. dress: 120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1200, Chicago, IL 60606 
~ephone Number: (312) 876-7100 
i E-mail Address:jourth@arnstein.com 
I Fax Number: (312) 876-0288 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT. July 2013 Edition 

Post Permit Contact 
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE 
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960 
Name: John R. Beberman 
Title: Director, Capital Budget and Control 
Company Name: The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Address: 14216 South Meadowview Court, Orland Park, Il60462·2350 

• Tele~hone Number: (773) 702-1246 
i E-mail Address: john.beberman@uchospitals.edu 
. Fax Number: (773) 702-8148 

181 o o 
Non-profit Corporation 
For-profit Corporation 
~imited liability Company 

o o o 
Partnership 
Governmental 
Sole Proprietorship o Other 

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good Standing. 
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of • 

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. . 
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of 

I Relationshi 
Provide (for co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and of any 
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating i 

in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any· . 
financial contribution.· . 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

Flood Plain Requirements 

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements 
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain 
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illlnoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a 
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the 

IIro,m"",.,t., of Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
1. Project Classification 
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b)] 

Part 1110 Classification: 

o Substantive 

[gJ Non-substantive 

Resources 

This Project proposes the construction of a medical office building at a site removed 
from UCMC's main hospital campus. This Project does not appear to establish a 
"facility" as defined by the Planning Act, but this application has been prepared to 
satisfy the requirements of a substantive project. 

---------~------- Page 3 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

2. Narrative Description
m 
:-:-:--:-----:-_-:--=-:-:--=:--::--, 

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board 
defined tenns, NOT WHY it is being done, If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal 
descri tion of the site, Include the rationale re ardin the ro'ect's classification as substantive or non-substantive. 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMCH
) proposes to construct a four-story 

ambulatory care medical office building, along with a two-story parking garage, at the northwest 
corner of 143rd Street and LaGrange Road in the Orland Park, Illinois (the "Project"). The site is 
located in downtown Orland Park on land owned by the Village of Orland Park, which has long 
worked to develop this property and to bring advanced medical care to area residents. 

UCMC will lease the land on which the Project will be constructed from the Village of Orland 
Park and wi" be the owner of the entire ambulatory care medical office building and parking 
garage. The total project cost is expected to be $66,873,052 and will be funded with cash and 
securities. 

The ambulatory care medical office building will include 112,988 square feet of clinical space for 
physician offices, examination rooms, and diagnostic and treatment facilities. Specifically, the 
medical office building is intended to house the following clinical components: radiation 
oncology with one vault for a linear accelerator; an infusion therapy center with 26 infusion 
rooms; a full range of diagnostic imaging, including one (1) MRI, one (1) CT, three (3) 
radiographic devices, two (2) ultrasound machines, a mammography and a nuclear medicine 
scanner; and 80 exam rooms to support orthopedics and other specialties, such as women's 
health, pediatrics, gastroenterology, cardiology, and surgical consulting. The fourth floor 
(28,103 square feet) will be reserved as shell space, likely to be used at a later time for 
ambulatory clinic space when expansion is required. 

The Project will also contain non-clinical areas, including a basement for storage, mechanical 
components, electric switchgear, and incoming electrical and water service. There will also be 
commercial leasable space within the medical office building (14,196 square feet), likely for an 
independent retail pharmacy, and a two-story parking structure with 580 parking spaces 
(140,376 square feet). 

The Project has robust community support, and initial letters of support for this Project are 
included in the application as Appendix A-1. 

The Project is expected to be complete by June 30, 2018. 

Although this Project appears not to establish a new "facility" as defined by the Planning Act. 
this application has been prepared to meet the requirements of a substantive project. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 26, 2014 

Ms. Kathy 1. Olson, Chair 

Sharon O'Keefe 
President 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

MC 10005-115 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois 60637-1470 
phone (773) 702-8908 
fax (773)702-1897 
sharon.okeefe@uchospitals.edu 

Re: University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC", the "Medical Center") 
Construction of an Ambulatory Care Medical Office Building 
(the "Project") 
Application for Permit 

Dear Chairwoman Olson: 

We are pleased to submit our permit application to the Review Board for approval 
to provide specialized ambulatory care in a medical office building in Orland Park. 

Specifically, we propose to build a four-story ambulatory care medical office 
building in downtown Orland Park at the comer of 143rd Street and La Grange Road. 
This Project will include physician office space, examination rooms, and diagnostic and 
treatment facilities. In addition, the Project will include space for an independent retail 
pharmacy and both street~level and structured parking. 

Joint Effort with Village of Orland Park 

This Project would be the successful culmination of long-term planning between 
the Village of Orland Park and UCMC. The site is located in downtown Orland Park on 
land owned by the Village and leased to UCMC. The Village has long worked to 
develop this property for the Village and desires to bring advanced medical care to area 
residents. Part of the Project includes a 580-vehicle parking structure for the benefit of 
UCMC patients and downtown Orland Park generally. 

UCMC's Existing Ambulatory Care Model 

Unlike many other academic medical centers or health systems with multiple 
ambulatory locations dispersed throughout the region, UCMC has concentrated outpatient 
services primarily in a single location on the south side of Chicago. Our outpatient 
services have been delivered in one ambulatory care facility since 1996 - its Duchossois 
Center for Advance Medicine ("DCAM"). The DCAM adjoins our hospital in Hyde Park 
and provides a home to adult primary and specialty clinics, pediatric specialty clinics, and 
outpatient diagnostic and treatment facilities. We designed the DCAM facility with 
patients' interests foremost, with the goal of bringing together ambulatory services into 

AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEOICINE' 
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Ms. Kathy J. Olson, Chair 
Ambulatory Care Medical Office Building Project 
May 26,2014 
Page 2 

one facility to improve access for patients and to increase opportunities for multi­
disciplinary approaches to outpatient care. 

The DCAM multi-specialty model, with its emphasis on integration and 
teamwork, has worked well for UCMC and its patients for almost 20 years. During this 
time, the delivery of medical care has continued to shift to the ambulatory setting. In fact, 
at UCMC, outpatient care, as a percentage of total pati~nt care provided, has more than 
doubled from 20% to 42% during this same period. Changes in the standards of care, 
reimbursement methodologies and expectations of health care consumers all account for 
this shift. As a result, robust outpatient centers no longer need be adjacent to acute, 
inpatient hospitals but can be located closer to patients that they serve. In fact, patients 
demand this accessibility. 

UCMC's Service Area 

UCMC is an academic medical center nationally and internationally renowned for 
its specialized care in cancer, digestive diseases, diabetes and endocrinology, gynecology, 
neonatology, cardiology, orthopedics, neurology, and urology. UCMC was ranked 
among the nation's top hospitals by Us. News & World Report in its 2013-14 "Best 
Hospitals" survey. In addition, UCMC plays an integral role in the regional delivery of 
healthcare within Illinois and, as an example, is one of ten Perinatal Centers in the State. 
As such, UCMC is a referral center for women with high risk pregnancies and for 
critically ill infants. In this capacity, UCMC and its providers serve as a resource for 
hospitals as far south as Kankakee, and in communities including Harvey, Clifton and 
Hazel Crest Illinois. 

While UCMC is an anchor for patients originating from within its own 
community, UCMC also serves a wide geographic area comprising as many as 588 zip 
codes in ten states. Of these areas, approximately 112,000 outpatient visits to University 
of Chicago providers were attributed to patients from Planning Area A-04 in FY2013. 

UCMC is committed to serving not just its immediate community, but to serving 
as a resource to a larger geographic area. UCMC seeks to provide greater access to its 
patients who come from surrounding areas, including suburbs south of the Medical 
Center, by bringing these services closer to the patient. 

Planning Area A-04's Need for Additional Services 

The need for additional exam rooms and physicians in Planning Area A-04, both 
in primary and specialty, care, is considerable and well documented. In particular, by 
2018, this planning area will need 413 additional exam rooms to keep pace with its 
population growth and the anticipated impact of the Affordable Care Act; it will have a 
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Ms. Kathy J. Olson, Chair 
Ambulatory Care Medical Office Building Project 
May 26,2014 
Page 3 

corresponding need for 370 additional physicians over the same period.1 Of this 
incremental demand for health care services, internal medicine; specialty medicine, 
including, without limitation, cardiology, obstetrics/gynecology, hematology/oncology, 
urology, and gastroenterology; and pediatrics are the largest components. Further, the 
need for additional diagnostic and treatment facilities in Planning Area A-04 is a natural 
corollary to the robust demand for exam rooms and physicians over the same time period. 

Description of Current Project 

To better care for the critically ill patients in the broad geographic area served by 
UCMC, we propose to construct a four-story ambulatory care medical office building in 
downtown Orland Park, a suburb proximate to the South Side of Chicago. The Project 
will expand outpatient capacity and accessibility to specialty care in the immediately 
adjacent planning area, which has a demonstrated need for health care resources and from 
which we already have a strong, established patient base. 

This Project will include 80 examination rooms, diagnostic and treatment 
facilities, and additional shell space for future needs. The clinical specialties included in 
the Project are areas in which UCMC excels and for which there is high demand. 
Specialties planned for the Orland Park facility include radiation oncology, infusion 
therapy, and orthopedics, and may also include women's health, pediatrics, 
gastroenterology, cardiology and surgical consulting. In addition, there will be diagnostic 
imaging capability onsite for MRIs, CT scans, a linear accelerator, radiographic 
machines, ultrasound, and mammography. 

With this Project, UCMC would continue its tradition of interdisciplinary 
collaboration and teamwork, and it is designed for patient-centered care. Through this 
new facility, we seek to make UCMC specialists, along with most advanced and 
innovative diagnostics and therapies, available in a convenient location for both patients 
and other community providers. Physician offices and procedure rooms will be located 
near diagnostic and treatment services, enabling patients to receive comprehensive 
assessment and multidisciplinary care in a timely and coordinated manner. 

The Project is Necessary and Well-Timed 

With its focus on overall wellness instead of hospitalization for acute spells of 
illness and by increasing the number of individuals with health insurance, the Affordable 
Care Act promises to further change the face of outpatient care. UCMC is a valuable 
resource to its immediate community and beyond and has a responsibility to its patients 
to remain viable in this complex and dynamic era of healthcare reform. In relevant part, 
UCMC's request to building an outpatient center is a direct response to the changing 

1 Truven MarketDiscovery Planning tool 
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Ms. Kathy J. Olson, Chair 
Ambulatory Care Medical Office Building Project 
May 26, 2014 
Page 4 

healthcare environment, in which more care will be delivered in the ambulatory setting, 
with an increased focus on care coordination. 

This Project is also aligned with UCMC's strategic focus on ensuring the best 
possible care for our patients, which requires long-tenn financial sustainability. This 
Project would enable us to fuel our three-pronged mission (clinical, research, and 
academic) while continuing to reinvest in the communities in which we operate - be it 
Orland Park or in our own back yard, Chicago's South Side. 

UCMC remains one of the largest Medicaid provider in the State of Illinois. 
Through the new ambulatory location, we will be expanding access to high-quality, 
specialty outpatient services in the south suburbs most proximate to the City, which is 
home to numerous FQHCs and community health centers. Additionally, UCMC has 
robust fmancial assistance and charity care policies, which would be available to patients 
on the same tenns at the new ambulatory site. 

We are pleased to submit our application for the construction of an ambulatory 
care facility to the Review Board and look forward to working with you to fulfill our 
nnSSlOn. 

Very truly yours, 

!f;:a'Keert(+ 
President 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

Project Costs and Sources of Funds 

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a 
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the 
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated 
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of 
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must 
equal. 

in construction 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

Related Project Costs 
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that 
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years: 

Land acquisition is related to project f2l Yes 0 No 
Purchase Price: . $ 18,150,000 over 25 years 
Fair Market Value: $ See Ground Lease Letter of Intent for details. 

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service 
DYes I25J No - Does not appear to be a "facility" under 

the Planning Act. 

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including 
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the targe 
utilization specified in Part 1100. 

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ 23.329,804 

o Preliminary 

Schematics 
Anticipated project completion date to Part 1130.140): 

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part 
1130.140): 

o Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed. o Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the 
contingent "certification of obligation" document, highlighting any language related to 
CON Contingencies 
X will occur after 

State Agency Submittals 
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable: 

X Cancer Registry 
X APORS 
X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been 
submitted 
X All reports regarding outstanding permits 
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being 
deemed incomplete. 

--------------- PageS 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILrrlES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

Cost Space Requirements 

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type 
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs 
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different 
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding 
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space. 

Gross Square Feet 

Dept. I Area Cost Existing Proposed 

---------------------------------- Page7 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization 

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of 
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the 
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day 
totals· for· each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the 
application being deemed incomplete. 

FACILITY NAME: U. of Chicago Medical Center I CITY: Chicago 

REPORTING PERIOD DATES From: May 1, 2013 to: April 30, 2014 

Category of Service Authorized Admissions Patient Days Bed 
Beds Changes 

Medical/Surgical 338 15764 96374 0 

Obstetrics 46 1,954 6,245 0 

Pediatrics 60 2874 14479 0 

Intensive Care 114 4,665 28,498 0 

Comprehensive PhYSical 
Rehabilitation 

Acute/Chronic Mental Illness 

Neonatal Intensive Care 47 687 13732 0 

General Long Term Care 

Specialized Long Term Care 

Long Term Acute Care 

Other ((identify) 

TOTALS: 605 25,944 159,328 0 

* Permit application 14-013 would increase the number of licensed ICU beds by 12. 

-------------------------------- PageS 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

CERTIFICATION 
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity, The 
authorized representative(s) are: 

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors; 

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole 
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist); 

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or 
more general partners do not exist); 

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more 
beneficiaries do not exist); and 

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor. 

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Ive ~il of. Je#" * 
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lliin is Health acilities Planning Act. 
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for 
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and 
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or 
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required 
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request. 

PRINTED NAME 

f(~ide.nt 
PRINTED TITLE 

Seal 

*Insert E 

" FFICIAL SEAL" 
CASSANDRA COLE 

NOTARY PUBUC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 81312017 

e al name of the a licant 

~ SiGNAT 
Jeu ~ iter lfi 1/ 

PRINTED NAME 

Se,Ct-6~~~ 
P INTED TITLE 

Notarization: 
SUb~Ob~P and sw:r:to before me J 
this 'H-tiay of Mo; I 20 ':r 
O~~ 

Signature of Notary 

Sea II 0 F F I C I A L SEA L .. 
CASSANDRA COLE 

NOTARY PUBUC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 8/312017 

--~-------------- Page 9 
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ILLINOIS HEAl. TH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2013 Edition 

SECTION 111- BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES­
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

This Section is applicable to all. projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project 
, costs. 

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives 

nrr,VIf1I ... the followin uired information: 

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if 
applicable. 

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility dwned and/or operated by the applicant 
during the three years prior to the filing of the application, 

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information 
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or 
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation 
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal 
of the application without any further action by HFSRB. 

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit. the 
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of 
this criterion. In such instances. the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided. cite 
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the 
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously 
submitted information, as needed, to update andklr clarify data. 

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the 
market area population to be served. 

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition. 

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the 
project. [See 111 O.230(b) for examples of documentation.) 

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation. 

5. Detail how the project wi!! address or improve the previously referenced issues. as well as the population's 
health status and well-being. 

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving 
the stated goals as appropriate. 

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects. include 
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and 
maintenance records . 

. ~-------------------------------- Page11,,~.~-~---------------------------------



ILUNOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPUCATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

ALTERNA 

1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project: 

Alternative options must include: 

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost; 

8) Pursuing a jOint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or 
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing 
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; 

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all ora portion of 
the population proposed to be served by the project; and 

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected. 

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The 
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial 
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long 
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED 
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS 
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED. 

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that 
verifies improved quality of care, as available. 

Page 6~0015 



ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE 

Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space 

nr",\I'i'1I",· the "'''f'\'AJ',nn information: 

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not 
excessive. This must be a narrative. 

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the SGSFIDGSF standards in Appendix S, justify the discrepancy by 
documenting one of the following:: 

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided. justified by clinical or operational 
needs, as supported by published data or studies; 

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an 
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix S; 

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage. 

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the 
following format with Attachment 14. 

SIZE OF PROJECT 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE 

BGSF/DGSF STANDARD 

RVICES UTILIZATION: 

DIFFERENCE MET 
STANDARD? 

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services. functions or 
equipment for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 III. Adm. Code 
1100. 

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or 
exceed the utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the 
projections must be provided. 

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15. 

UTILIZATION 
DEPT.I HISTORICAL PROJECTED 

SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION 
(PATIENT DAYS) 
(TREATMENTS) 

ETC. 
YEAR 1 
YEAR 2 

----------------------------------- Page 13 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: 

Provide the following information: 

1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space; 

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each 
department, area or function; 

3. Evidence that the shen space is being constructed due to 
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or 
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed to 

occupy the shell space. 

4. Provide: 
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are available; 

and 
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future 

utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed into 
operation. 

ASSURANCES: 

Submit the following: 

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the 
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service 
involved. . 

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject 
shell space) will be submitted: and 

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation. 

---------------------------------- Page14 
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT· July 2013 Edition 

O. Criterion 1110.3030 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service' Areas Other 
than Categories of Service must submit the following information: 

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s): 

" ' ' .. 

, ~ " ' " '". 

[J Outpatient Clinics 0 80 
(exam rooms) 

[J Infusion Therapy 0 26 
(treatment rooms) 

[J Radiation Oncology 0 1 
(linear accelerator) 
Diagnostic Imaging 0 9 

(equipment rooms) 

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation 
for the criteria: 

PROJECT TYPE 

New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) -

Service Modernization (c)(1)-

(c)(2) -

(c)(3)(A) -

(c)(3)(8) -
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for 
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from 
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed 
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application): Applicant has an A or better rating. 

• Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria 
• Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a) 

VIII.· 1120.120 - Availability of Funds' 

$66,873,052 board resolutions) as to: 

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the 
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and 

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any asset 
from the date of applicant's submission through project completion; 

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated receipts 
and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a 
discussion of past fundraising experience. 

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identifICation of any conditions of use, and the 
estimated time table of receipts; 

d) Debt a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable or 
permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the antiCipated repayment schedule) for any 
interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including: 

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or 
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and 
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated; 

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and 
interest rate; 

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation of 
making the loan in the amount and time indicated. including the anticipated interest 
rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not limited to, 
adjustable interest rates. balloon payments. etc.; 

4) For any lease. a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions, including 
any purchase options. any capital improvements to the property and provision of 
capital eqUipment; 

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions, 

e) Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a 
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit, If funds are to be made 
available from subsequent fIScal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit 
attesting to this intent: 

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and time 
of receipt; 

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be used 
for the project. 
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability 

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or 
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding. 

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if: 
1. "A" Bond rating or better 
2. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources 
3. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be 

insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent 
4. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A 

rated guarantor. 

m mg~m 

viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the full 
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's 
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that 
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care 
system includes one m more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the 
applicable hospital standards. 

Current Ratio 

Net Margin Percentage 

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization 

Projected Debt Service Coverage 

Days Cash on Hand 

Cushion Ratio 

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation 
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each 
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each. 

2. Variance 

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization, 
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the 
applicant default. 
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x. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility 

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120. 

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements 

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a 
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following: 

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash 
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge 
receipts and funded depreciation; or 

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by 
borrowing because: 

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet 
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for 
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or 

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the 
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire 
debt within a 60-day period. 

B. Conditions of Debt Financing 

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall 
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement 
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable: 

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost 
available; 

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is 
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage, 
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors; 

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that 
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing 
a new facility or purchasing new equipment. 

c. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs 

Read the criterion and provide the following: 

Department 
(list below) 

Contingency 

TOTALS 

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost 
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the 
following format (insert after this page). 

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE 

A B 

Cost/Square Foot 
New Mod. 

C D E F 

Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. 
New Circ: Mod. Circ: 

G 

Cons!. $ 
(A xC) 

H 

Mod. $ 
(B x E) 

Total 
Cost 

(G + H) 

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation 
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D. Projected Operating Costs 

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per 
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more 
than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries. 
benefits and supplies for the service. 

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs 

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent 
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following 

XI. Safety Net Impact Statement 

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND 
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS: 

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an 
applicant to have such knowledge. 

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services. if reasonably 
known to the applicant. 

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if 
reasonably known by the applicant. 

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following: 

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The 
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the 
Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate 
methodology specified by the Board. 

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients. Hospital and non· 
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the Illinois 
Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net 
Revenue by Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile. 

3. Any information the applicant be~eves is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching, 
research, and any other service. 

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43. 

Safety Net Information per PA 96"()031 

CHARITY CARE 

Charity (# of patients) I 
Year 

Inpatient 

Outpatient 

Total 

Charity (cost In dollars) 

Inpatient 

Outpatient 
Total 
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MEDICAID 

Medicaid (# of patients) 
Year Year Year ! 

Inpatient 

Outpatient 

Total 

Medicaid (revenue) 

Inpatient 

Outpatient 
Total 

XII. Charity Care Information 

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost 
of charity care and the ratio ofthat charity care cost to net patient revenue. 

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in Illinois. If 
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity 
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of 
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review. 

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated 
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation. 

Charity care" means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from 
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost. 

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44. 

Net Patient Revenue 

Amount of Charity Care (charges) 

Cost of Charity Care 

CHARITY CARE 

Year 
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the 
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit: 

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS 

ATIACHMENT 
NO. 

1 ApplicantlCoapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good 
Standi l1g 

2 Site Ownership 
3 Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 

identified with the % of ownership. 
4 Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 

Good Standing Etc. .. 
5 Flood Plain Requirements 
6i Historic Preservation Act Requirements 

i 7 project and Sources of Funds Itemization 
8 Obligation Document if required 
9 Cost Space Requirements 

10 Discontinuation 
11 Background of the Applicant 
12 Purpose of the Project 
13 Alternatives to the Project 
14 Size of the Project 

i 15 Project Service Utilization 
16 Unfinished or Shell S~ace 
17 Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Sl2ace 
18 Niaster Design Project 
19 Mergers, Consolidations and ACQuisitions 

. Service Specific: 
20 Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU 

i 21 Comorehensive Physical Rehabilitation 

• 

22 Acute Mental Illness 
23 Neonatal Intensive Care 
24 Open Heart Surgery 

i 25 CarcHac Catheterization 

· 
26 In-Center Hemodialysis 
27 Non-Hospital Based Afj1bulatory Surgery 
28 Selected Organ Transplantation 
29 Kidney Transplantation 
30 Subacute Care Hospital Model 
31 Children's C()mmunity-Based Helilth Care Center 
32 Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center 

i 33 long Term Acute Care Hos~ital 

· 
34 . Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 
35 Freestanding Emergencv Center Medical Services 

i 

i Financial and Economic Feasibility: 

• 
36 Availability of Funds 
37 Financial Waiver 
38 Financial Viability 

i 39 Economic Feasibility: 

· 
40 Safety Net Impact Statement 
41 Charity Care Information 

AppendiX A-1. Support Letters 

11696331.4 
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Section I, Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant 

Attachment 1 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC") is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, 
incorporated on October 1, 1986. A copy of UCMC's Good Standing Certificate dated May 23, 
2014 is attached. 

ATTACHMENT 1 
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File Number 5439-757-7 

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting: 

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do 
hereby certify that 
THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, 
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 01,1986, APPEARS 
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT 
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS 
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. 

Authentication #: 1414301384 

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set 

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of 

the State of Illinois, this 23RD 

day of MAY A.D. 2014 

Authenticate at: http:tlwww.cyberdriveillinois.com 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
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Section I, Site Ownership 

Attachment 2 

A copy of a Ground Lease Letter of Intent between The University of Chicago ("UCMC"), as 
lessor, and the Village of Orland Park ("Village"), as lessee, dated May 13, 2014, evidencing the 
parties' intent to enter into a lease wherein the Village will lease approximately 27 acres, located 
at the northwest comer of 143rd Street and LaGrange (the "Proposed Facility Site"), to UCMC is 
attached. 

ATTACHMENT 2 
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rift THE UNIVERSITY OF 

~CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 13,2014 

Ms. Karle Frillng 
Director of Development Services 
Village of Orland Park 
14700 Ravinia Avenue 
Orland Park, IL 60462 

Dear Karle: 

SLuoII O'Kecfi:: 
Prmdml 

Me 1000 S-IIS 
5841 Scurh M~1')'1Md A!renue 
OIicago, Illinois 60637.1470 
pm/J~ 07") 702·8908 
fox m")702.18W 
'h.:!ron.t)kcc(c<.!Iw;hos~jlllls...du 

Attached please find a summary of the business terms proposed by University of Chicago Medical 
Center for the development of an approximately 120,000 sf medical office building, pharmacy and 500+ 
vehicle parking structure at the NWC of 143n1 Street and laGrange Avenue. 
UCMC is supportive of the mixed-use, urban environment that Ortand Park will be creating with the 
development ofThe Triangle. To that end, UCMC Is willing to provide, at its sole cost, approximately 100 
parking spaces that the Village can use for the benefit of the retail tenant to be located at the SWC of 
142"4 & laGrange. We value this parking contribution at approximately $3.4 million. Furthermore, 
UCMC will also make its entire parking structure available to visitors to the Triangle during non-business 
hours during the week and during the day and evening on weekends. We hope these contributions will 
contribute to the Village successfullV achieving the high density and mixed-use, urban environment that 
Is planned for The Triangle site. 

We remain excited about the opportunity presented by being part of The Triangle and believe the 
development of a shared parking structure and medical office building on this site will have many 
benefits for both the Village of Orland Park and UCMC. 

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to call. We appredate your efforts to date and look 
forward final/zing the terms and conditions of the LOI as quickly as possible. 

~
"tereIY" " . 

...... sh,,~:l?lf--7 ... L .... , ,'--
President 
University of Chicago Medical Center 

Cc: Timothy Blum 
Marco Caplcchioni 

AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEOICINE' 

000028 



Ground Lease Letter of Intent (LOn between 

Village of Orland Park and University of ChkalO Medical Center CUCMCJ 

May 13, 2014 

Main Street Triangle: 

Approximately 27-acre area located (at the northwest corner of 143rd Street and LaGrange Road in the 

Village of Orland Park, IIIlnol~ that is owned or controlled by the Village of Orland Park for the purposes 

of promoting mixed-use retail, commercial and residential development. 

Premises: 

3.48 acres· located within the Main Street Triangle at the northwest corner of LaGrange Road and 143rd 

Street, per the included LOI Site Plan. 
·Premlses size subject to final determination of sJze of tower.Jevel parking area 

Development OVerview: 

Within the Premises, and at Its sole expense, UCMC will develop a multi-story, multi-tenant Ambulatory 

care Center up to 120,000 gsf and four (4) floors with associated drive-thru and a combination of grade 

and structured parking estimated at 530 spaces (the "Building"). The Village understands that UCMC 

intends to phase the bulld-out of the fourth floor beyond the initial opening. It Is expected that the 

build-out of the 4th floor will commence In 2018 or later. 

Ground Lessor: 
The Village of Orland Park, Illinois 

Ground Lessee: 

University of Chicago Medical Center 

Ground Lease Term: 

The Ground lease Term shall be 25 years from building opening. 

Ground Lease Commencement: 

Ground Lease commencement shall occur upon mutual execution ofthe Ground lease by both parties. 

Ground Lease Rent Commencement: 
Provided Ground Lessee Is diligently pursuing entitlements, preparing construction plans or constructing 

improvements on the Premises, Rent Commencement shall occur thirty (30) days following the latter of 

(I) receipt of a Permanent Certificate of Occupancy from the Village for the building and associated 

parking structure and (iI) any other approvals, regulatory or otherwise, necessary for the occupancy of 

the Building and the delivery of services to the public by the tenant(s). The Ground Lease shall contain 

reasonable hurdle dates to obtain these approvals. 
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Annual Rent: 
The ground rental rate for the Premises shall begin with the Rent Commencement Date according to the 

following schedule: 

Vears 1-15: $770,OOO/yr. 

Vears 16-25: $750,000 in year 16 and reduced by $20,000 annually through year 25. 

Rent shall be paid In equal monthly installments. 

Change in Tax Exempt Status: 

in the event real estate taxes are Imposed on the leasehold estate or any portion of the Premises 
occupied by Ground lessee or other tax exempt entities, Ground lessee's annual rent payments shall be 
adjusted after the 3nl year. During the TtF years, the annual payments to the Village of Orland Park 
schedule provided In the Section above entitled "Annual Rent" would be as follows: The greater of (a) 

$250,000, or (b) $250,000 plus [(Annual Rent less $259,000) less (Village Income from taxes paid by 
Ground lessee multiplied by 75%) multiplied by 50%). Post TIF years, the payments to the Village of 
Orland Park schedule would be as follows, $250,000 plus ((Annual Rent less $250,000 less Village income 
from taxes pard by Ground lessee) multiplied by 50%). Notwithstanding above, in no event shall annual 
lease payments be less than $250,000. 

TIF Formula: 
$250,000 

+ ((Annual Rent - $250,000) - (RET x .75» x .SO 
= Adjusted lease payment 

Post-TtF formula: 
$250,000 

+ (Annual Rent - $250,000 - VRET) x .50 

= Adjusted Lease payment 

Expiration of Ground Lease: 
Following expiration of Ground lease, title to the Premises shall transfer to Ground lessee without any 
additional payments to Ground lessor. 

Premises Expenses: 

Ground lessee shall be responsible for maintaining and insuring all the Improvements on the Premises 
of every kind, including (but not limited to) the parking structure, at its sole cost and expense. This 
obligation Is exclusive of the Retail Pad area and the Retail Pad's surface parking spaces. 

Delivery Date: 

Ground lessor shall deliver the Premises to Ground lessee In a manner that complies with the Delivery 
Conditions outlined below. Within three weeks of final execution of this letter of Intent, UCMC and 
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Village agree to map out a delivery schedule time-line and Identify a date by which Ground Lessor shall 

deliver the Premises to Ground Lessee In the condition described herein (the Delivery Date). 

Delivery Condition: 

The Premises shall be delivered to the Ground Lessee In pad-ready condition, free and clear of all 

construction debris, with all utilities (water, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, natural gas, electric) stubbed 

within five (5') feet of the Premises at a location and size reasonably determined by Ground Lessee by 

the Delivery Date. The Premises shall be delivered to the Ground Lessee by the Village In compliance 

with all applicable environmental laws and regulations consistent with and permitting the development 

of the Intended use of the property as a medical facility and retail establishment. 

Any costs that the Ground lessee incurs as a direct result of the environmental condition of the 

Premises shall be the responsibility of the Village, Including but not necessarily limited to matters 

relating to the potential contamination from the underground storage tanks formerly located on the 

Premises. Within three weeks of execution of this 'etter of intent, UCMC and Village shall agree on 

procedure and process to handle any environmental remediation. The Ground Lessee shall be 

permitted to abate the Ground Lease payments until these costs resulting directly from the 

environmental condition of the Premises are recovered by the Ground lessee. At Lessee's election, any 

soils removed during the abatement process will be replaced with clean fill. Upon a mutually agreeable 

date, but in no event later than Ground lessee's intended occupancy date, the Village will Install 

Jefferson Street from 142nd Street to 143rd which will allow access points to the Premises at mutually 

agreeable areas, As a condition to the Ground Lease and subject to lOOT approval, Village will also 

maintain the existing laGrange Road curb cut Into the Premises. The Village acknowledges that It will 

actively support G!'Ound lessee In Its application for the RljRO curb cut on laGrange. 

During the Ground Lease Term and all extensions thereof, all storm water management detention and 

retention for the Premises shall be provided and maintained off-site by the Ground lessor, at Its sole 

cost and expense provided lessee adds no additional burden to the system other than the Intended use 

as described above. At Ground lessee's election, Ground Lessor shall be a co-applicant along with 

UCMC, for securing MWRD permits necessary for the development of the BuildIng. Notwithstanding the 

above, Ground Lessee shall be responsible for the costs of connecting its storm water dlscharse to the 

existing storm-water management system that serves the Village's Main Street frlangle area. This 

assumes that connectIon will be made within Jefferson Street In a mutually agreed location no further 

than 5' from Premises property line. 

Any current or future costs related to Increasing the capacIty of the existing storm water management 

system servicing the Premises and the Main Street Triangle area due to the development of the 

proposed Building and improvements shall be borne by the Ground lessor at Its sole cost and expense 

and shall not be transferred to Ground lessee through tap-In fees, recapture fees or special 

assessments, provided lessee adds no additional burden to the system other than the Intended use as 

described above. 
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The Village agrees to provide the full $600,000 credit for haul-off of spoils. If the Ground Lessor-does 

not desire that Ground Lessee deposit excavation spoils within the Triangle, then, in lieu of the ability to 

deposit e)(cavatlon spoils, Ground Lessee will accept a rent abatement of nine (9) months to occur in 

year five (5) of the lease. 

In the event that the Village falls to deliver a site consistent with the Delivery Conditions outlined herein 

by the Delivery Date, The Village of Orland Park will reimburse UCMC for all out of pocket costs spent In 

architecture, planning, zoning and consultants associated with the development of the ambulatory 

project. These costs will be more defined and capped during ground lease negotiations. 

exclusivity: 

Subject to the rights of any pre-existing leases, so long as Ground Lessee Is delivering healthcare related 

services at the Building, then Ground Lessor will restrict and prohibit the delivery of medical and 
pharmacy related services on any property within the Main Street Triangle area. 

Notwithstanding the above, If UCMC is not offering a particular healthcare related service, then Village 

shall be permitted to provide notice to UCMC that unless UCMC commences providing that particular 

service at the Premises within twelve (12) months of notice, then Village shall be permitted to lease 

space within the Triangle to another entity for purposes of providing that healthcare service and no 

other service. 

Site Access: 

FollowIng Ground Lease Commencement, and at its sale expense and liability, Ground Lessee shall be 

granted access to the Premises to begin site work and development-related activities. 

Municipal Approvals: 
While formal site plan and design approval will need to be secured by the Ground lessee, the Village of 

Orland Park, by virtue of entering Into a Ground Lease agreement for the Development, will 

acknowledge that it Is conceptuallv supportive of the services to be located within the SUI/ding 

(Including drlve--thru services) and the size and scope of the Building planned for the Premises, the 

number of parking spaces being provided, and the generally proposed site plan including the movement 

1)f Jefferson Street app~oximatelY 16' to the west. Ground lessee acknowledges that It Is conceptually 
supportive of a mixed-use development concept that the Village desires for the Main Street Triangle and 
that reasonable shared parking (Inctudlng provisions of off-site parking) Is a critical feature. 

Monument Signase: 

If a monument sign Is provided at either the 142nd Street or Ravinia Avenue entrances to the Triangle, 

the UCMC and CVS will be permitted panels on said sign(s). 

Contingency: 

Prior to Rent Commencement, the Ground lease shall be contingent upon receipt by the Ground Lessee 

(or by the tenants of the Building) of all required approvals, municipal or otherwise (Including, but not 
limited to, a Certificate of Need Issued by the illinois Healthcare Facilities Review Soard), necessary, In 
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Ground Lessee's sole judgment, for the development, construction of, and occupancy of the Building 

and the delivery of the proposed medical services and retail uses at the Building by its tenants 

(collectlvelv the "Approvals"). Ground Lessee shall have up to 365 days from the execution of the the 

letter of Intent to obtain these Approvals. Furthermore, following the expiration of the Initial 365 day 

Contingency Period, so long as the Ground lessee Is diligently pursuing the receipt of any and all 

a pprovals It deems necessary for the development and occupancy of the Project, then Ground Lessee 

shall be permitted to extend the Contingency Period for nine (9) periods of thirty (30) days each by 

paVing to the Village $20,000 for each 30 day extension period. Any payments shall be non-refundable In 

the event Ground Lessee terminates the Ground Lease, but shall be applicable to future Rent Payments 

In the event that the Ground lease remains in full effect following the expiration of the Contingency 

Period and any extensions thereof. 

Ground Lessee shall be permitted to terminate the Ground Lease at any time prior to Rent 

Commencement, at Its sole discretion, If It or Its tenants are unable to receive any required Approval or 

If It anticipates, In Its sole judgment, that It Is likely that It or Its tenants will be unable to receive In a 

timely manner any required Approval. 

Adjacent Parcel landscaping 

During the Ground Lease Term and before any permanent development, the Ground lessor shall 

maintain the parcels Immediately to the west and north of the Premises with grass cover in a manner 

similar to Crescent Park, or other reasonably acceptable manner such as a parking lot. 

On-Site Parking: 

As part of its development, Ground lessee shall construct on the Premises a parking structure that 

contains approximately 530 parking spaces consisting of a combination of surface and below-grade 

spaces (the On-Site Parking). 

Ground Lessee shall provide the occupant of the retail pad located at the SWC of 142nd & laGrange (the 

Retail Pad) access to up to 150 of the On-Site Parking spaces (the Retail Pad Spaces). The location and 

distribution of the Retail Pad Spaces shall be as follows: 

• approximately 50 surface parking spaces located In the area immediately to the west of the 

Retail Pad; 

• approximately 100 below-grade parking spaces located within the northern most section of the 

below-grad parking structure 

There sh~1I be no restrictions on the hours that the Retail Pad occupant may be permitted access to the 

Retail Pad Spaces. Notwithstanding the above, during weekdays between the hours of 8:00 a.m to 6:00 

pm, the Ground Lessor may require the occupant of the Retail Pad to utilize a valet system to ensure 

adherence to the usage and location of the Retail Pad Spaces as described above. The cost for such valet 

system would be borne solely by the occupant of the Retail Pad. 

6 
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Upon Rent Commencement, Ground Lessee shall be reimbursed for Its direct costs aSSOCiated with the 
Installation of these surface spaces for the Retail Pad occupant's use. The estimated cost for these 50 
spaces is $4750 per space. 

Nothing contained herein shall permit the Retail Pad occupant to exclusively reserve or restrict parking 
spaces for Its own use at the exclusion of other vIsitors to the Triangle. 

Ground Lessee shall also make the On-Site Parking spaces at the Premises available for Main Street 
Triangle occupants between 6:00 pm and 4:00 am on weekdays, and all day on weekends. The 
availability of these parking spaces, including the total number of spaces shall be subject to a shared 
parklnli! formula that will be mutually and reasonably agreed upon by both parties. In exchange for 
granting this parking access, Ground lessor and the Village of Orland Park shall provide Ground lessee 
with liability Indemnification In a form and manner that Is acceptable to the Ground lessee. These 
terms shall be further outlined In a perpetual, reciprocal access, operating, and parking agreement 
between MCMC and the Village. 

Additional Parkins: 
UCMC feels that the number of parking spaces currently proposed for the Premises will be sufficient to 
satisfy the parking requirements of all occupants (UCMC, CVS and Retail Pad). However, If the Village 
desires additional parking to be provided as part of the UCMC development, UCMC agrees to build up to 
50 additional spaces and the Vlllase agrees to contribute $17,000 per stall for additional below grade 
parking spaces to be located In the area below the Retail Pad's surface parking area. Upon Rent 
Commencement, Ground lessee shall be reimbursed for the costs associated with the additional 
parking. 

Furthermore, if a second elevator is required to service the below-grade parking, then the Village shall 
contribute an amount equal to the cost of that elevator installation. 

Due Diligence: 

Following lease Commencement or eariler pursuant to an eariy entrv agreement or the letter of Intent, 
Ground lessee shall have a period of 120 days to perform geo-technlcal and environmental testing, and 
any other testing and Inspections necessarv for Ground lessee to evaluate the Premises In Its sole 
discretion (the "Due DIligence Perlod"). During the Due Diligence Period, Ground lessee shall be 
penmltted to terminate the Ground lease for any reason, at its sole discretion. 

Notwithstanding the above, the Ground lessee Is willing to conduct portions of the Due Diligence 
re.lated work In advance of the execution of the Ground lease In order to accelerate the development 
schedule and In turn the Rent Comm~ncement date. Within three weeks of execution of this letter of 
Intent, Ground Lessor or Ground lessee will enter Into an Early Entrv Agreement which will permit site 
Investigation activities to be performed prior to lease execution. 

Hours of Use: 

7 
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-----------:-----"----.-. ---" -* ..... 
There will be no restrictions on the hours of use for UCMC or any ground floor retail tenant beyond 

. already existing Village code limitations. Notwithstanding the above, Village will not contest any attempt 
by occupants of the Premises to request hours of use that are similar to other uses of this nature 
elsewhere In the Chicago metropolitan region. Furthermore, subsequent to the execution of the Ground 
Lease, If the Village . aite rs the permitted hours of use for the types of services provided at the Premises, 
then the occupants of the Premises shall be grand fathered and they shall be permitted to remain the 
hours of use In place at time of Ground lease execution. 

Non-Binding: 
This LOI does not Include material and substantive business terms that stili must be negotiated between 
both parties and therefore is not Intended to be, nor should It be considered, a binding agreement. The 
terms and conditions set forth herein are subject to final Village of Orland Park and UCMC board 

approval and further mutual negotiation and agreement and are not binding upon any party unless, and 
until, they are embodied In a final and legally binding mutually acceptable agreement(s) signed by all 
parties. After 90 days from receipt, the LOI shall be void and of no force and effect unless extended by 
mutual agreement of the parties. 

Sincerely, 

President 
University of Chicago Medical Center 
Oate: 5/13/2014 

Cc: Marco F. Capiceilionl 

8 

Mayor 
Village of Orland Park 
Date: 5/13/2014 
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ConceptuallOI Site Plan (Macro) 
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.. - .... - ..• ~ . ..:..-.---- .~-.-...:.~--. ---.----.-------- , 

Conceptual LOI Site Plan to and subject to .future planning and engineering 
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Section I, Operating IdentitylLicensee 

Attachment 3 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC") is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, 
incorporated on October 1, 1986. A copy ofUCMC's Good Standing Certificate dated May 23, 
2014 is attached. 

ATTACHMENT 3 
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File Number 5439-757-7 

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting: 

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do 
hereby certify that 
THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, 
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 01,1986, APPEARS 
TO HA VE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT 
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS 
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. 

Authentication #: 1414301384 

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set 
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of 

the State of Illinois, this 23RD 

day of MAY A.D. 2014 

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
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Section I, Organizational RelationsWps 

Attachment 4 

A copy of UCMC'sSenior Management Team organizational chart is attached. There are no 
other subsidiary corporate entities. 

ATTACHMENT 4 
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Operational F oeus 
2014 UCMC Senior Management Team 

UCMC President 

I 
Sharon O'Keefe 

VP 
Strategic Projects 

I Kathryn Koenig 

I "-- .-__ •. ~ ·---·-_r __ • 

I I I , I I ~ 

~ ! I ~ 
! EVP I VP ! VP t VP I VP VP VP EVP l Medical Director, ~ Care Delivery Chief Marketing & 

I Facilities Planning, ! Chief Human I 
Clinical UHI and Dean of L Innovation & Chief Chief Information Chief Operating Design & \ Effectiveness & Chief Communications , 

Resource Officer Community Diversity and Officer Officer Construction 1 Medical Officer Officer ! Based Research Inclusion OffIcer Eric Yablonka ! Jason Keeler Bob Hanley I Stephen Weber. MD Kathy DeVries Marco Capicchioni 1 TBD Brenda Batlle 

I I I i 
i , 

", __ • r ~_, 

~ , ". ,~ 
,,,,, -,-- I 

VP 
Risk, Patient 

Safety & Chief 
Compliance 

Officer 
0 Krista Curel! 0 
0 
0 

.---_. ~ J:,. , i . i ..... 
• I \ I I i y 'L 

I 
; L ! ! SVP i 

VP i VP • VP VP I VP VP I VP Patient Care j 

Chief I , 
Support i , 

Women's & Operational Clinical 
I 

Services & 
\ Children's f 

Ambulatory , Pharmacy I Supply Chain Services Excellence ,Services Chief Nursing Services Services I Officer ! Jon Stegner I Daryl TBD ! Officer I . TBD , 
Dave Hicks I f Wilkerson TBD 

! J Debra Albert Karen Stratton II ; 

I JI I: t 
" "-,, _._3 ., 

"" -,~. " .,- -~- ~- ~,-' ", --.. ,-", 

r~---=~:=,====:::..:::::::::::-:-::-=-.:-:=~-==~ ___ --=-=-~--:::-- --,,-,,-- ----- --:===-==-~==--=.=--- "'_-":':='-==:::1 

" 
THE UNIVERSITY OF 
CHICAGO MEDICINE 
THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER 
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Section I, Flood Plain Requirement 

Attachment 5 

A letter attesting that the site of the Project is not located in a flood plain and that the Project 
complies with the Flood Plain Rules under Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 is attached. 

A IT ACHMENT 5 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 20, 2014 

Ms. Courtney R. Avery 
Administrator 

Sharon O'Keefe 
President 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

In Re: Flood Plain Requirements 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

MC 1000 S-1I5 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago, llIinois 60637-1470 
phone (773) 702-8908 
fax (773) 702-1897 
sharon.okeeli:@uchospitals.edu 

We hereby attest that our proposed project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive 
Order #2005-5 pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. The 
accompany map from www.illinoisfloodmaps.org indicates that the site of our project is judged 

"Area of Minimal Flood Hazard" 

Sincerely, 

The University of Chicago Medical Center 

Shar!'/(;K[{7--
President 

Notarization: 
Subscrib~9 and sworn to before me 
ThisJ.OI-t-day of May, 2014 

G~~-~ 
Signature of Notary Public 

Seal 
II 0 F F I C I A L SEA L n 

CASSANDRA COLE 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 81312017 

AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEDICINE' 
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Illinois Floodplain Maps - FIRMS 

/I Make spelling changes 

Cook County Map Panels 
Effective Flood Insurance Rate Maps for Cook County may be viewed 
andlor downloaded at the FEMA Map Service Center 

... even moref 
Below are links to resources pertaining to Cook County 

• Chicago River Watershed Discovery 

• Des Plaines Watershed Discovery 

• Lower Fox Watershed Discovery 

., Upper Fox Watershed Discovery 

.' Unmapped Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) (pdf) 

• Destined for DFIRMs - stream studies becoming flood maps 

• Effective DFIRMs Map Search on FEMA's Map Service Center 

• FEMA's National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) download 

NFHL Viewer (flood data displays when zo,omed in) 

"--' ..... .-~ ;"'''' 
i : 
iqj 
t> 
~. 
~ 

http://ww:w.iUirroisfi@.ncimaps;orgl.rlfirrn.aspx?county=cook 
000044 
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WhatisaDF~ 
The DFIRM Data~~~~ ;s a I 
digital version of the 
FEMA flood insurance rate 
map that is designed tor 
use with digital mapping 
and analysis software. 

A sample DFIRM showing 
areas of greater flood risk 
in blue 
The DFIRM is designed to 
provide the user with the 
ilhllily to determine Ihe 
flood zone, base flood 
elevation and the flood way 
status for a particular 
location. It also has NFIP 
community. information, 
map panel information, 
cmss·section and 
hydraulic structure 
information, and base map 
information like road, 
stream, and public land 
survey data. 

3/181.2014 
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2006·05 

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 
IN SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

WHEREAS, the Sl'tIte of Illinois has program~ for the construclion of bUildings. 

facililies. roads, Dnd othcr development projects and annually acquires lind disposes of 

lands in Jloodplains; and 

WHEREAS, federal financial assistance for thc acquisition or eonsu'Uction of insurIlble 

SUUClllreS in all Special Flood HaZllrd Areas requires Stale participation ill the National 

Flood fnStlr~ncl'! Program; and 

WHEREAS. the Federal Emcrgency MllnagC!11cnt Agency bas promulgated :lIld adopted 

regulmions governing eligibility of State sovemmcnl~ to participate in the National Flood 

. InsuranceP·rogram (44 C.F.R. 59-79), as presently enacted or hcreafier amended; which 

requires thatStat'CdevelopmCll[ activities comply with specified minimum floodplain 

regulation criteria; lind 

\."HEREAS, tbe Presidential Interagency Floodplain Management Review Commiltee 

has published recommelJdation~ to strengthen Executive Orders and SUIte floodplain 

management activities; 

NOW TIfEREIIORE, by virtue of the allthorily vcsted in me as Govcmor of the State of 

lIIinois. it ishercby ordered as follows: 
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2. All Stale Agencies engaged ill any development within a Special Flood H:lz.1rd 
Area shall undertake such development in accordance with the following: 

A. All development shall comply wilh all requirements of the National flood 
Insurance Program (44 C.F.R. 59-19) and with all requirements of92 
Illinois' Administrative Code Part 700 or 92 Illinois Administrative Code 
Part 708, whichever is applicable. 

B. In addition to Ihe requirements scI forth in preceding Seclion A,lhe 
followin& additional requirements shall apply where applicable: 

I. All new Critical Facilities shall be located outside of the floodplain. 
Where this is not practicable, Critical Facilities shall be developed wilh 
Ihe lowesl floor elevation equnl 10 or greater Ihan the SOO-ycar frequcncy 
floo.d elevation or strucrurally dry iloodproofed to alleasl (11I~ SOD-year 
frequency flood elev;Uion. 

2. AlIllew buildings shall be developed wilh the lowcsi floor c1evatioll 
cqualto or greAter than the Flood PrOtectioll Elevation or structurally dry 
fioodproofed to at leasl the Flood Protection Elevation. 

3. Modifications, addilions, repairs or replacement of ex is Ling slnt<;tures 
may be allowed so long as the new devel0plllent docs not inerellse the 
noor area oflhe existing stnlclure by more than twenty (20) percent or 
inc{Case the market value of Ibe structure by fifty (50) percenl, and docs 
nol ob.tmct flood flows, Floodproofing aetivitie~ life pennilled and 
encouraged, but must comply with the requirements lIoled above. 

3. Stille Agencies which administer grants or loans for financing development within 
Special flood Hazard Areas shall lake all steps within their authority 10 ensure 
Ihat such development. meets the requiremenl~ of this Order. 

4. Stale Agencies responsible for regulating 01' permitting development within 
. Special Flood Hazard Are.1s shnlllake al/ steps within Iheir ;Iotllorily to ensure 
t flat such development meets the rcquircmcnl<; of Ihis Order. 

5. Stale Agen(;je~cngngcd in planning programs or programs for the promotion of 
development shall inform participants in their progl1uns of the existenec and 
lueation of Special Flood H"zard Areas and of any StllW or local floodplain 
requirements in cf(ecl in stu;h areas. Such SII1Ie Agolleies shall en.~llrc thnt 
proposeddevcJopmcnt within Special Flood Hazard Areas wouldmcclthc 
requir.ements or this Order. 

6, TbeOfficeof Water Rcsourees shall provide available flood .hazard information 
to assiSI Slare Agencies in carrying olltthe responsibiJiti~ established. by this 
Order. State Agencies which obtain ncw flood dev,llion, OnodwllY. or 
encroachment dala developed in conjunction wiU, devclopnnint or olher activities 
eo:vercdby this .order shall submit slIeh data to the Office of Water Resources for 
Illeirreview. Jfsuchnood Ila7.nrd information is used' ill delclmining design 
fcalUrcsor location of any State development, it must first be approved by the 
Office.of Water Resources. 

L _________________________________________ _ 
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I. For purpose of this Order: 

A. "Critical Facility" means any facility which is critical to the health and 
welfare of the population and, ifflooded, would create an added 
dimension to the disaster. Damage to these critical facilities can iI~pact 
the delivery of vital services, ciln couse greater dumage to other sectors of 
the community, or can put special populations at risk. The delcmlination 
of Crilil;al facility will be made by each agency. 

Examples of critienl facilities where flood protection should be required 
include: 
Emergency Services Facilities (such as fire and police stations) 
Schools . 
Hospitals 
Retirement homcs and senior care facilities 
Major roads and bridges 
Critical utililY sites (telcphone switching stations or electrical 
transfomlCfs) 
Hazardous material storage facilities (chemicals. petrochemicals, 
hazardous or loxic substances) . 

Examples (If critical facilities where flood pn.llcctiol1 is recommended 
include: 
Sewage treatment plants 

. Water treatment plants 
Pumping slations 

D. "Dcvelopment" or "Dc\'eloped" means the placement or erection of 
structures (including manufactured homes) or earthworks; Innd filling. 
excavatIon O( other alteration of the ground surface; iustallaliOIl of public 
utili tics; channel modification; storage of materials or any other activity 
undertaken to modify the existing physical fealures of a floodplain. 

C. "Flood Protection Elevation" means one fool above the applienblt base 
/lood or IOO-year frequency flood·elevation. 

D. "Office of Water Resources" mCl1ns the JIIillois Department of Natural 
Resources, Office. of WntcrRcsourees. 

E. "Special flood Hazard Arca" or "Floodplain" means an area subject to 
inundalion by t.he.baseoI 1 DO-year frequency flood.and shown as such 011 

the most currcntFloooclnsuranccRalcMap published by the Federal 
Emergency MHnagementAgency. 

F. "State Agcncies" meanS.lIny deparlmcnt, .commission, board or agency 
under the jurisdiction of the Govcmor; anY'board, commission, agency or 
nutllority which hns II majority of its mClllbcrs:nppoilltcd by the Gm'c:mtlr; 
lind the Govemor's Office. 
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7. Siale Agencies 5b;1I1 work wilh the Office of Waler Resources to establish 
procedures of such Agencies for crreclively carrying out this Order. 

8. Effective Dale, This Order supersedes and replaces Exccutive Order Number 4 
(1919) und shall take effect on Ihe first day of. 

Rod R Blagojevicb, Governor 

l5Sucd by Governor: March 7,2006 
Filed with Sccrctary orState: March 7,2006 
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Section I, Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements 

Attachment 6 

Attached is a letter from the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency dated March 7, 2014 noting 
that the Project meets the Secretary of the Interior's "Standard for Rehabilitation and Guidelines 
for Rehabilitation of Historic Buildings" and will not result in any adverse effect. 

ATTACHMENT 6 

000049 



Cook County 
Orland Park 

I Old State Capitol Plaza, Springfield, IL 62701-1512 

Demolition and New Construction to Establish an Outpatient Clinical Facility 
NW Corner 143rd St. and LaGrange Road (96th Ave./U.S. Route 45) 
IHPA Log #009022114 

March 7, 2014 

John R. Beberman 
The University of Chicago Hospitals 
Capital Budget and Control 
MC0953 
850 E. 58th St. 
Chicago, IL 60637-1459 

Dear Mr. Beberman: 

FAX (217) 524-7525 

www.illinoisbistory.gov 

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided concerning the referenced project. 

Our review of the records indicates that no historic} architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project 
area. 

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Illinois State Agency 
Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years 
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for 
purposes of the IIIinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440). 

If you have any further questions} please contact me at 217/785-5027. 

Sincerely, 

~L~~ 
Anne E. Haaker 
Deputy State Historic 

Preservation Officer 

For TTY communication, dial 888·440-9009. 1/ is not 8 voice or fax line. 
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Section I, Project Costs and Source of Funds 

Attachment 7 

Project Costs and Source of Funds 

Total Clinical Non-Clinical 
Site Survey and Soil Investigation 

Survey 

Testing 

Soils Analysis, Environmental 

Site Preparation 

Earthwork 

Asphalt Paving 

Site Concrete 

Sewer and Water 

Landscaping 

Construction Layout 

Fences and Gates 

New Construction 

Four Story Building 

Parking Deck 

TelecomlIT Built-In Equip_ 

Security Devices 

Signage - Exterior 

Signage - Interior 

Lock Cylinders, Keys 

Contingencies 

ArchitecturaVEngineering Fees 

Consulting and Other Fees 

Materials Testing 

Legal 

Program Manager 

Equipment Planner 

CON Consultant 

CON Fee 

Developer Manager 

City Permit Fees 

JDPH Review Fees 

35,000 

60,000 

45,000 

1,782,849 

41,247 

120,898 

32,200 

200,000 

50,000 

18,000 

26,043,767 

10,038,560 

400,000 

240,000 

120,000 

133,000 

20,000 

300,000 

30,000 

100,000 

200;000 

45,000 

100,000 

12,000 

51,000 

40,000 

140,000 

2,245,194 

$36,995,327 

3,514,556 

3,038,241 

878,000 

000051 

71,681 68,319 

151,848 2,093,346 

$18,941,850 18,053,477 

1,799,476 1,715,080 

1,555,599 1,482,642 

591,323 286,677 
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Movable and Other Equipment 

Outpatient Clinics 2,986,772 
Infusion Therapy 1,939,294 
Radiation Oncology 6,015,241 
Diagnostic Imaging 8,075,355 
Administrative 329,090 
Support, Mechanical, Other 19,981 

19,365,733 19,016,663 349,071 

Other Costs to be Capitalized 
Environmental Services 125,000 
Movers 138,000 
Window Treatments 70,000 
Cubicle Curtains 85,000 
Chart Racks 22,000 
Art Work 56,000 
Capitalized Staff Salaries 200,000 

696,000 443,075 252,925 

Total Costs $66,873,052 $42,571,515 $24,301,537 
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Equipment Detail 

Eguil!ment Furnishings Total 
Outpatient Clinics 
Nurse station $253,357 $32,454 
Consult 21,970 46,~22 

Clean Supply 86,413 0 
Soiled Utility 47,271 0 
Dressing 23,909 27,100 
Cart storage 78,676 0 
Waiting 35,404 115,261 

Equipment storage 17,484 0 

Wellness Center 378 16,391 
Exam Rooms 1,054,394 57,696 

Record Storage 16,391 0 
Treatment (8) 662,455 21,855 
Exam tables w/o power 
(70) 175,000 
Exam tables w/power (18) 196,691 

Total Clinics $2,669,794 $316,978 $2,986,772 

Infusion Therapy 
Patient pantry $2,674 $0 
Blanket warmer, 
nourishment 34,634 0 
Workroom 346 15,298 
Charting alcove 19,045 0 
Shared equipment room 17,484 0 
Phlebotomy work area 7,086 2,623 
Phlebotomy draw 1,787 4,043 
Chemo preparation 44,912 0 
Private chemo room (13) 1,036,004 40,486 
Chemo treatment area (12) 676,158 36,716 

Total Infusion Therapy $1,840,129 $99,165 $1,939,294 

Radiation Oncology 
Lounge $21,039 $26,925 
Conference 94,133 59,007 
Linear Accelerator 3,721,577 0 
Treatment Planning 747,862 26,225 
Aria information system 416,329 0 
Mold block 12,679 0 
Physicist Lab 133,149 0 
CT Simulation 756,316 0 

Total Rad Onc $5,903,084 $112,157 $6,015,241 
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Diagnostic Imaging 
CT $1,477,039 $4,714 
MRI 1,859,494 2,732 
Ultrasound (2) 790,479 10,927 
General Rad (2) 1,096,442 10,927 
X-Ray (Ortho) 548,221 5,464 
Mammography 548,221 5,464 
Nuclear Medicine 548,221 5,464 
P ACS Infrastructure 928,8]8 ° Reading Room 145,311 87,418 

Total Imaging $7,942,246 $133,109 $8,075,355 

Administration 
Offices, Conf. rms $57,080 $157,353 
Hoteling ]9,796 69,935 
Reception ]5,093 9,835 

Total Admin $91,968 $237,122 $329,090 

Support 
Toilet $19,981 $0 $19,981 

Grand Total $18,467,201 $898,532 $19,365,733 
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Section I, Cost Space Requirements 

Attachment 9 

Amount of Proposed Total GSF 
That Is: 

Gross Sguare Feet New Vacated 

De~artmentl Area Cost Existing Pro1?Qsed Constr. Modem As Is Space 

Reviewable: 

Outpatient Clinics $14,126,784 289,972 324,293 34,321 289,972 

Infusion Therapy 4,493,071 10,182 17,948 7,766 10,182 

Radiation Oncology 8,398,383 43,085 49,079 5,994 43,085 

Diagnostic Imaging 11,626,672 117,306 126,301 8,995 117,306 

Shelled 3,926,604 239,855 267,958 28zlO3 239,855 

Total Reviewable $42,571,514 700,400 785,579 85,179 0 700,400 0 

Nonreviewable: 
Mechanical, Other 
Bldg. Systems $6,119,645 957,040 979,049 22,009 957,040 
Administrative 2,010,633 1,090,700 1,096,500 5,800 1,090,700 
Commercial To Be 
Leased 1,983,492 8,102 22,298 14,196 8,lO2 

Parking Deck 14,187,768 854,931 995,307 140,376 854,931 
Total 

Nonreviewable $24,301,538 2,910,773 3,093,154 182,381 0 2,910,773 

Grand Total $66,873,052 3,611,173 3,878,733 267,560 0 3,61I,173 0 

ATTACHMENT 9 
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Section III, Background of Applicant 

Attachment 11 

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned by the applicant, including licensing, and 
certification if applicable. 

UCMC's full general hospital license #2132869, effective July 1,2013, issued by the Illinois 
Department of Public Health, is attached. UCMC's most recent accreditation letter from the 
Joint Commission, dated July 12,2013, is attached. 

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or 
operated by applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application. 

There have been no adverse actions taken against UCMC within the prior three years. A 
letter attesting to this fact is attached. 

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to documents necessary to verify the 
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other 
State agencies; the licensing or certification records of other States; when applicable; 
and the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations. 

A letter granting the Review Board and the Illinois Department of Public Health access to 
information to verify information in the application is attached. 

ATTACHMENT 11 
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...... :s.2,l32 
.. E!Il~~rn~pt· of Publ'F""~~~~h . 

~ . .~ 
ICENSE, PERMIT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION. ' . 

. ~~~,':".',,' . ' .. ',' ~', ." .: -. . - . ~ 

T!i~ pen;'~~;:'lIrm or corporation ~hOSO n~e appears'o~ this cel1l0cale has complied with the .' 
provisions' of ,tho' IIl1nols'Statutes: I\ndJorrulesaml regulalioJl$ .and, is. hereby .authorized 10 ' 
engage 10 the aC~~I~::a:'.\~~lcalll!lbero~v, . " . " ., .•.. ,.,' ,.< . , 
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r , • .,.. v,.. ,...·r .. The Joint Conlnlission 

July 12, 2013 

Sharon O'keefe 
President 
University of Chicago Medical Center 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60637 

Dear Ms. O'keefe: 

Joint Commission ID #: 7315 
Program: Hospital Accreditation 
Accreditation Activity: 60-day Evidence of 
Standards Compliance 
Accreditation Activity Completed: 07 /ll/20 13 

The Joint Commission would like to thank your organization for participating in the accreditation process. This 
process is designed to help your organization continuously provide safe, high-quality care, treatment, and services 
by identifying opportunities for improvement in your processes and helping you follow through on and 
implement these improvements. We encourage you to use the accreditation process as a continuous standards 
compliance and operational improvement tool. 

The Joint Commission is granting your organizatjon an accreditation decision of Accredited for all S'ervices 
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below: 

Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Hospitals 

This accreditation cycle is effective beginning March 23, 2013. The Joint Commission reserves the right to 
shorten or lengthen the duration of the cycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up to 36 
months. 

Please visit Qyality Check® on The Joint Commission web site for updated information related to your 

accreditation decision. 

We encourage you to share this accreditation 4ecision with your organization's appropriate staff, leadership, and 
governing body. You may also want to inform the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), state or 
regional regulatory services, and the public you serve of your organization's accreditation decision. 

Please be assured that The Joint Commission will keep the report confidential, except as required by law. To 
ensure that The Joint Commission's information about your organization is always accurate and current, our 
policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of your organization or the health 
care services you provide. 

Sincerely, 

Mark G.Pelletier, RN, MS 

Chief Operating Officer 

Division of Accreditation and Certification Operations 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 20,2014 

Ms. Courtney R. Avery 
Administrator 

Sharon O'Keefe 
President 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

MC 10005-115 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago. Illinois 60637-1470 
phone (773) 702-8908 
fax (773) 702-1897 
sharon.okeefe@uchospitals.edu 

Re: University of Chicago Medical Center Permit Application - No Adverse Action 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

Please be advised that no disciplinary action relative to "Adverse Action" as defined under 
Section 1110.230(a)(1) of the Review Board Rules has been adjudicated against The University 
of Chicago Medical Center, or against any health care facility owned or operated by it, directly 
or indirectly, within three (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application. 

Sincerely, 

The University of Chicago Medical Center 

President 

Notarization: 
Subscri~€1'J and sworn to before me 
This ~day of May, 2014 

O."JL~ 
Signature of Notary Public 

Seal 
"OFFICIAL SEAL" 

NOTAR$~SSANDRA COLE 
MY COMM~J:i'OCN' SeTATE OF ILUNO'S 

. XPIRES 8/3/2017 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 20,2014 

Ms. Courtney R. Avery 
Administrator 

Sharon O'Keefe 
President 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

MC 1000 S-115 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois 60637-1470 
phone (773) 702-8908 
fax (773) 702-1897 
sharon.okeefe@uchospitals.edu 

Re: University of Chicago Medical Center Permit Application - Access to 
Information 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

I hereby authorize the State Board and State Agency access to information from any 
licensing/certification agency in order to verify any and all documentation or information 
submitted in relation to this permit application. I further authorize the Illinois Department of 
Public Health to obtain any additional documentation or information that said agency deems 
necessary for the review of the application as it pertains to Section 111O.230(a)(3)(C) of the 
Review Board Rules. 

Sincerely, 

The University of Chicago Medical Center 

Notarization: 
SUbs~ep,and sworn to before me 
This OfLday of May, 2014 

c~C&.-
Signature of Notary Public 

"OFFICIAL SEAL" 
Seal CASSANDRA COLE 

NOTARY PUBUC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 8/3/2017 
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Section III, Purpose of Project 
\ 

Attachment 12 

Overview of Purpose 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC") proposes to construct a four-story 
ambulatory care medical office building, along with a two-story parking garage, at the northwest 
comer of l43 rd Street and LaGrange Road in Orland Park, Illinois, a suburb proximate to the 
South Side of Chicago (the "Project"). The ambulatory care medical office building will include 
112,988 square feet of clinical space for physician offices, examination rooms, and diagnostic 
and treatment facilities. 

The purpose of the Project is to better care for the critically ill patients in the broad geographic 
area served by UCMC. The Project will expand outpatient capacity and accessibility to specialty 
care in the immediately adjacent Planning Area A-04, which has a demonstrated need for 
specialty health care resources and from which UCMC already has a strong, established patient 
base. Population growth in Planning Area A-04, along with the corresponding need for medical 
services, remains strong and is projected to significantly outpace its existing supply by 2018. 

The Project would improve the delivery of complex, specialized health care to residents in 
Planning Area A-04 and the overall well-being of the communities therein. 

1. Document that the Project will provide health care services that improve the health 
care or well-being of the market area population to be served. 

UCMC is a nationally recognized leader in patient care, research and medical education. 
Renowned for treating some of the most complex medical cases, UCMC brings the very 
latest medical treatments to patients in Chicago'S South Side community and continues to 
invest in the capital resources necessary to maintain this effort. The Project would 
provide current and future patients in the immediately adjacent Planning Area A-04 with 
.access to the same high-quality.patient care and groundbreaking research and treatments 
currently available to patients at UCMC's Hyde Park Campus. Through the Project, 
UCMC seeks to facilitate access to integrated, multi-specialty ambulatory care, to 
mitigate the projected shortage of physicians and exam rooms in Planning Area A-04, 
and to minimize travel distances for existing patients who currently commute from south 
suburban locations. 

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other. per the applicant's definition. 

UCMC is an academic medical center nationally and internationally renowned for its 
specialized care in cancer, digestive diseases, diabetes and endocrinology, gynecology, 
neonatology, cardiology, orthopedics, neurology, and urology. UCMC was ranked 
among the nation's top hospitals by u.s. News & World Report in its 2013-14 "Best 
Hospitals" survey. In addition, UCMC plays an integral role in the regional delivery of 
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healthcare within Illinois and, as an example, is one of ten Perinatal Centers in the State 
of Illinois. As such, UCMC is a referral center for women with high risk pregnancies and 
for critically ill infants. In this capacity, UCMC and its providers serve as a resource for 
hospitals as far south as Kankakee, and in communities including Harvey, Clifton and 
Hazel Crest Illinois. 

UCMC's primary service area closely approximates Planning Area A-03, the Chicago 
South Planning Area. Planning Area A-03 is roughly bounded by Roosevelt Road (12th 

Street) to the north, Cicero Avenue to the west, 127th Street to the south, and Lake 
Michigan/Indiana state line to the east. 

While UCMC is an anchor for patients originating from within its own community, it 
also serves a wide geographic area comprising as many as 588 zip codes in ten states. Of 
these areas, approximately 112,000 outpatient visits to UCMC providers were attributed 
to patients from Planning Area A-04 in FY2013. 

UCMC is committed to serving not only its immediate community, but also as a resource 
to a larger geographic area. UCMC seeks to provide greater access to its patients who 
come from surrounding areas, including suburbs south of UCMC' s main campus in Hyde 
Park, by bringing these services closer to the patient. 

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and 
appropriate for the Project. 

A. Increased demand for ambulatory care. 

Over the past twenty (20) years, the delivery of health care has shifted to an even greater 
emphasis on the ambulatory setting. In fact, at UCMC, outpatient care, as a percentage 
of total patient care, has more than doubled from 20% to 42% during this time period. 
Changes in technology, the standards of care, reimbursement methodologies and 
expectations of health care consumers all account for this shift. As a result, robust 
outpatient centers no longer need be adjacent to acute, inpatient hospitals, but can be 
located closer to the patients that they serve. In fact, patients demand this accessibility. 
With its focus on overall wellness instead of hospitalization for acute spells of illness and 
by increasing the number of individuals with health insurance, the Affordable Care Act 
promises to further change the face of outpatient care. 

B. Incremental demand for exam rooms, physicians, and ancillary services 
in Planning Area A-04 will outpace supply within the next five (5) years. 

The need for additional exam rooms and physicians in Planning Area A-04, both in 
primary and specialty care, is considerable and well documented. In particular, by 2018, 
this planning area will need 413 additional exam rooms to keep pace with its population 
growth and the anticipated impact of the Affordable Care Act. It will have a 
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corresponding need for 370 additional physicians over the same period. l Of this 
incremental demand for health care services, internal medicine; specialty medicine, 
including, without limitation, cardiology, obstetrics/gynecology, hematology/oncology, 
urology, . and gastroenterology; and pediatrics are among the largest components. 
Specifically, in 2013, there was a calculated need for 86 more adult specialty physicians 
in the planning area, including hematology/oncology, and 89 more surgeons, including 
those specializing in orthopedic surgery. The current shortfall of physicians in Planning 
Area A-04 suggests a pattern of outmigration, e.g., that patients currently must leave the 
planning area to be treated. 

C. Current ambulatory care facility in Hyde Park not conveniently located 
for patients. 

Unlike many other academic medical centers or health systems with multiple ambulatory 
locations dispersed throughout the region, UCMC has concentrated outpatient services in 
a single location on the South Side of Chicago. While UCMC draws patients seeking 
tertiary and quaternary medical care from all across the State of Illinois, its outpatient 
services have primarily been delivered in one ambulatory care facility on its Hyde Park 
campus since 1996. If high-level, coordinated and comprehensive multi-specialty care is 
needed, many patients must travel to UCMC's main campus for continued care. 
UCMC's remote location can be inconvenient, especially for patients with complex 
illnesses, and means that patients spend a significant amount of time commuting for 
follow-up appointments and further treatment. 

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation. 

UCMC undertakes ongoing internal utilization studies and the source of this information 
includes those reports and other information reported to EMS, IDFPR and IDPH, as well 
as information available in Truven Health Analytics' MarketDiscovery Planning tools. 

S. Detail how the Project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as 
well as the population's health status and well-being. 

The Project will address the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's 
health status and weB-being as follows: 

A. Project is a direct response to increase demand for ambulatory care. 

With its focus on overall wellness instead of hospitalization for acute spells of illness and 
by increasing the number of individuals with health insurance, the Affordable Care Act 
promises to further change the face of outpatient care. UCMC is a valuable resource to its 
immediate community and beyond and has a responsibility to its patients to remain viable 
in this complex and dynamic era of healthcare reform. UCMC's request to build an 
ambulatory care medical office building is a direct response to the changing healthcare 

I Truven Health Analytics' MarketDiscovery Planning tool. 

ATTACHMENT 12 

000063 



· .. " . , '. ~.' , - , . ". ~ ',' :: ~ .. 

environment in which more care will be delivered in the ambulatory setting, with an 
increased focus on care coordination. 

The Project is also aligned with UCMC's strategic focus to ensure the best possible care 
for its patients, which requires its long"term financial sustainability <and an ability to 
remain competitive with other local health systems, including those with existing 
footprints in multiple planning areas within the State. The Project would enable UCMC 
to fuel its three-pronged, patient care mission (clinical, research, and academic) while 
continuing to invest in the communities in which it operates - be it Orland Park or in 
UCMC's own back yard, Chicago's South Side. 

B. The Project will address incremental demand for exam rooms, 
physicians, and ancillary services in Planning Area A"04 within next five 
(5) years. 

This Project will accommodate the projected incremental demand for exam rooms, 
physicians, and ancillary services in the next five years. 

This Project will include 80 examination rooms, diagnostic and treatment facilities, and 
additional shelled space for future needs. The clinical specialties included in the Project 
are areas in which UCMC excels and for which there is high demand. Specialties 
planned for the proposed facility include radiation oncology, infusion therapy, 
orthopedics, and may also include women's health, pediatrics, gastroenterology, 
cardiology and surgical conSUlting. Additionally, there will be diagnostic imaging 
capability onsite for MRIs, CT scans, radiographic machines, ultrasounds, accelerators, 
and mammography. Through the proposed ambulatory care medical office building, 
UCMC will be able to address, in significant part, the outmigration trend in Planning 
Area A-04, which exists because of a physician shortage that is only projected to worsen. 
More specifically, the Project will be able to accommodate 33% of the incremental 
growth in demand for specialty medical services that is projected in Planning Area A"04 
by 2018; this means that more residents will be able to seek medically necessary care 
closer to home. Similar, the Project will accommodate 18% of the incremental volume 
growth in LINAC treatment volume and 28% of the growth in infusion therapy over the 
same time period. 

Notably, UCMC will be able to accommodate incremental demand in Planning Area A-
04 without affecting the current utilization base of existing Planning Area A-04 
providers. 

C. New ambulatory care medical office building will be conveniently located 
for existing and new patients. 

The Project will be located on a primary commercial street in Orland Park at an 
intersection that is being actively developed by the Village of Orland Park. The Village 
has long worked to develop this property and to bring advanced medical care to area 
residents. Through this new facility, UCMC seeks to make specialists available in a 
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convenient location for referrals from community providers and provide increased patient 
access to specialty care in the suburbs. Having an array of specialists and subspecialists 
together in an integrated facility is convenient for patients with complex illness and better 
for patient care. . 

The number of annual outpatient visits in Planning Area A-04 is expected to grow by 
700,000 to 5.7 million by 2018. Of these visits, almost half are attributable to specialty 
medicine, surgery and pediatrics. In 2013, there were 95,570 visits by residents of 
Planning Area A-04 to UCMC for specialty medical care. A UCMC ambulatory care 
medical office building in the area would be more convenient for current residents, and 
UCMC expects a number of these existing patients to seek care at the proposed facility in 
Orland Park. UCMC also expects to accommodate approximately 33% of the 
incremental growth projected for the area, in relevant part, because of the comprehensive 
multi-specialty care that will be offered, as well as its culture of interdisciplinary 
collaboration. 

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes 
that relate to achieving the stated goals as appropriate. 

UCMC's prevailing objectives are two-fold: enhanced access to multi-specialty 
ambulatory medical care for more patients and sustainability as the nation's healthcare 
system continues to shift to an outpatient delivery model. Specifically, the goals of the 
Project are: 

• To meet the increased demand for ambulatory care because of changes in both 
clinical practice and applicable law, as well as to streamline the delivery of medical 
care to patients in the ambulatory care setting. 

• To mitigate the projected incremental shortage of physicians, exam rooms and 
ancillary services in Planning Area A-04 over the next five (5) years. 

• To establish a satellite ambulatory care facility in closer proximity to the current and 
future patients, as well as other community hospitals, that UCMC serves. 

These goals can be achieved within the timeframe for Project completion. 
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Section III, Alternatives 

Attachment 13 

1. Alternatives Project of Greater or Lesser Scope and Cost. 

UCMC initially considered a smaller Project - a structure of 46,000 square feet with a 
total Project cost of $30 million. This conservative approach would have included only 
38 exam rooms, fewer imaging devices, and no shelled space for expansion nor a parking 
structure. The planned services were much the same as the proposed alternative. Over 
the course of several years of in-depth study, it was determined that a Project of this size 
was not adequate for the expected growth in demand and the recognized shortage of 
physicians in the area. Additionally, when sites were being considered, the one 
eventually selected was located at the heart of an ambitious village development project. 
Due to the proposed facility being located in a prime location at a busy intersection on the 
village's main commercial street, a parking structure would be required to accommodate 
patients, customers of a retail pharmacy, and patrons of a restaurant to be situated 
adjacent to the medical facility. The confluence of these factors made the initial, small~ 
scale plan inadequate. 

A. Joint Venture with Other Providers. 

UCMC has frequent and ongoing discussions with other providers both in Chicago 
and the surrounding suburban areas. Since Planning Area A -04 represents the second 
most heavily represented community that UCMC serves, over the years UCMC has 
explored many potential partnerships in this area. In fact, several years ago, one such 
discussion eventually resulted in UCMC entering into a joint venture with Silver 
Cross Hospital that resulted in the establishment of the University of Chicago Cancer 
Center at Silver Cross. In its first two years, this joint venture has been very 
successful in expanding patients' access to quality cancer treatment in this area and 
has strengthened UCMC's commitment to serving these patients. 

Given the multi-specialty nature of the proposed Project, UCMC deemed it preferable 
to proceed as a UCMC hospital-based facility, using its own brand name and mode of 
practice. One benefit of this approach will be a highly integrated team of UCMC 
physicians will be available to serve patients at the facility and to consult with each 
other. UCMC felt that for a larger facility, such as the one proposed, a joint venture 
was not the best way to achieve these benefits, nor would it fully utilize the strengths 
ofUCMC's physicians. 

In terms of the cost of a possible joint venture, the cost would have been slightly 
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higher than the $67 million cost of the alternative selected. Large joint ventures 
require a significant amount of time from high level executives, analysts, legal staff 
and consultants. Thus, for a Project of this scale it was estimated that these costs 
would amount to a premium of $1.2 million for a total cost of $68.2 million. 

B. Utilize Other Available Health Resources. 

At one point during UCMC's normal course of interactions with area healthcare 
providers, it had preliminary discussions regarding using existing radiation oncology 
facilities in Planning Area A-04 as part of the proposed facility. Ultimately, this 
course was not pursued and no external radiation oncology facilities will be a part of 
this Project. Instead, UCMC decided to include radiation oncology functions within 
the proposed facility in order to enhance patient convenience and to facilitate 
integrated teamwork between physicians and other clinical staff. Additionally, 
UCMC's own radiation oncology group is highly regarded and, in UCMC's 
estimation, will provide excellent radiation therapy services for patients. 

With respect to costs, using existing radiation oncology facilities and equipment 
would have likely cost less; perhaps $3 million less in Project costs. Yet, ongoing 
operating costs and revenues may have ultimately been more costly. Total Project 
costs utilizing an external radiation oncology facility would be $64 million. 

C. Proposed Alternative. 

The proposed Project is the alternative selected. UCMC has chosen to make a 
substantial commitment to serving the needs of patients in Planning Area A-04 by 
constructing a medical facility in this growing area. Since visits from patients 
residing in this area currently represents nearly 113,000 annual outpatient visits to 
UCMC's existing facilities, UCMC anticipates that the proposed facility will be well 
utilized. UCMC believes that having a tightly integrated multi-disciplinary team of 
clinical staff centrally located in the community is the best alternative and will 
provide the best facilities and patient care of the options considered. 
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2. Comparison of Alternatives 

Alternatives to the Proposed Project Cost/Benefit Analysis 

Project of Lesser Scope 

Joint Venture 

Utilize Existing Radiation 
Oncology Facilities 

Proposed Project 

$30 Million 

$68.2 Million 

$64 Million 

$67 Million 

000068 

Pros: Less costly and faster deployment. 

Cons: Serves fewer patients and no room for 
. growth. 

Pros: Shared risk and integration with area 
providers. 

Cons: More expensive, more difficult to plan 
and execute, and potentially less control over 
outcomes. 

Pros: Less costly. 

Cons: Ineffective use ofUCMC's experienced 
Radiation Oncology team, less convenient for 
patients and difficult to facilitate integrated 
teamwork. 

Pros: Utilize UCMC's existing experienced 
Radiation Oncology team, ensures integrated 
multi-disciplinary approach and increased 
likelihood of success. 

Cons: Increased fmancial risk. 
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Section IV, Size of Project 

Attachment 14 

SIZE OF PROJECT 

DEP ARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET 
DGSF STANDARD STANDARD? 

Outpatient Clinics 34,321 68,000 33,679 Yes 
Infusion Therapy 7,766 NA NA NA 
Radiation Oncology - Linac 2,136 2,400 264 Yes 
Radiation Oncology - CT 
Simulation 708 1,800 1,092 Yes 
Diagnostic Imaging 8,995 11,800 2,805 Yes 
Shelled 4th Floor 28,103 NA NA NA 

1. Overview. 

The Project consists of two major components: (1) a 132,000 square foot two-level parking 
deck, and (2) a 127,184 square foot four-story building to house ambulatory care facilities 
and 14,196 square feet of commercial leasable space. 

Clinical services at the proposed facility will include Radiation Oncology and Infusion 
Therapy to treat cancer patients, a full range of imaging services and devices, and exam 
rooms to support specialty services such as Orthopedics, Medical Oncology, Cardiology, 
Gastroenterology, Women's Health, and Surgical Consulting, which could include such 
disciplines as General, Vascular, Colorectal, Urology, ENT, and Plastics. 

The 1 st floor will house a Radiation Oncology department with one vault for a linear 
accelerator, a CT Simulator, and 3 exam rooms. There will also be commercial leasable 
space, likely occupied by a drug store, on the 1 st floor. The 2nd floor will have an Infusion 
Therapy department with 26 infusion rooms, a medication preparation room, phlebotomy and 
testing. Also on this floor will be: (i) diagnostic imaging consisting of an MRl, aCT, 3 
radiographic devices, 2 ultrasound machines, a mammography machine, and a nuclear 
medicine scanner, (ii) waiting areas, (iii) separate changing rooms for men and women,,(iv) a 
reading room for radiologists to study images, and (v) a technologist work area. Finally, an 
Orthopedics Clinic will also be located on the 2nd floor and will have 21 exam rooms, 2 
procedure rooms, an x-ray room, and 3 physician offices. The 3d floor will have 56 exam 
rooms arrayed along the exterior wall, 10 physician offices, 6 procedure rooms, 5 nursing 
stations that will be supported by 4 waiting areas, supply and utility rooms, a staff break 
room, and bathrooms. The 4th floor will be shell space, likely to be built out and used in the 
future for ambulatory clinic space when expansion is required. The basement will contain 
storage, mechanical components, electrical switchgear, and incoming electrical and water 
service. The space program set forth at the end of this Attachment 14 shows the details of 
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room types and unit square footage, circulation, interior walls, and clinical and non-clinical 
areas. 

As summarized in the table above, there are state space standards for Outpatient Clinics, 
Radiation Oncology, and Diagnostic Imaging. The Project is within each of these state 
standards. Given the cost of constructing and maintaining health care facilities, UCMC is 
attuned to designing tightly configured and efficient layouts. This is evidenced by the 
relatively small percentage of circulation space, only 23 percent, for the clinical areas on 
each ofthe 1 sl through 3rd floors. 

The proposed facility would be located on LaGrange Road, the primary commercial street in 
Orland Park, and the land cost is commensurate with this status. While UCMC's 
demographic analysis of the south and southwest Chicago suburbs clearly shows a growing 
need for general and specialty outpatient medicine, UCMC proposes to initially develop only 
the 1 sf through 3rd floors of the proposed facility and to return to the Review Board later for 
approval to build out the 4th floor when the need for such space has been demonstrated by 
actual utilization. This conservative approach to construction has served UCMC well in its 
development of other projects, including its main medical center complex. Moreover, such 
an approach is consistent with the Health Facilities Planning Act's goal of the orderly and 
economic development of health care facilities. 

2. Space Standards for Specific Clinical Areas. 

A. Outpatient Clinic. 

The Project would create 80 exam rooms. The state standard for exam rooms is 800 dgsf 
per exam room which, for the proposed 80 exam rooms, yields a total of 64,000 

. allowable square feet compared to the Project's proposed 34,321 dgsf. Thus, the Project 
meets this state standard. 

B. Diagnostic Imaging. 

SIZE OF PROJECT 

DEP ARTMENT/SERVICE 
PROPOSED . STATE 

DIFFERENCE 
MET 

DGSF STANDARD STANDARD? 

Diagnostic Imaging: 

CT 2,093 1,800 

MRI 2,154 1,800 

Radiographic f--... 2,914 3,900 

Nuclear Medicine 674 1,600 

Mammography 442 900 

Ultrasound 719 1,800 

Diagnostic Imaging Total 8,995 11,800 2,805 Yes 

ATTACHMENT 14 

000070 



The table above delineates diagnostic imaging by imaging type. There are 3 radiographic 
rooms and 2 ultrasound rooms, and the other modalities are 1 each. While some 
modalities exceed the individual modality state standard, due to careful planning with the 
Project's architect; the.Diagnostic Imaging department as a whole is below the combined 
state standard. 

C. Radiation Oncology. 

SIZE OF PROJECT 

DEP ARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET 
BGSFIDGSF STANDARD STANDARD? 

Radiation Oncology: 
- Linear Accelerator 2,136 2,400 264 Yes 

- CT Simulation 708 1,800 1,092 Yes 

There are two state standards for Radiation Oncology. One is for linear accelerators at 
2,400 dgsf each. The Project proposes one linear accelerator, to occupy a heavily 
shielded vault measuring 1,874 dgsf, and a dedicated control room of 262 dgsf for a total 
of 2, 136 dgsf which is below the state standard of 2,400 dgsf. The second state standard 
for Radiation Oncology is for CT Simulation, and is 1,800 dgsf. The proposed space is 
599 dgsf for the CT simulation room and 109 dgsf for the dedicated control room for a 
total of 708 dgsf which is within the 1,800 dgsf standard. 
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SPACE PROGRAM 

Department Room Type Quantity Unit NSF Extended NSF DGSF BGSF 
Clinical Areas -
Reviewable 
Outpatient Clinics 

Exam 80 127 10,139 

Procedure 8 248 1,986 

Waiting, Other Support 11,939 

Circulation 8,641 

Interior walls 1,616 

34,321 

Infusion Therapy 
Infusion 26 87 2,249 
Medication Preparation 479 

Phlebotomy/Testing 2 130 259 

Support 3,071 

Circulation 1,375 
Interior walls 333 

7,766 

Radiation Oncology 

Linear Accelerator 1,783 
Linac Control Room 249 
CT Simulation 570 
CT Simulation Control 
Room 104 
Exam (See Outpatient 

. Clinics) 

Treatment Planning 411 411 
Physics Laboratory 215 215 
Block Room 126 126 
Support 1,304 
Circulation 913 
Interior walls 

5,994 

Diagnostic Imaging 

CT/CT Support 928 928 
MRlIMRl Support 1 955 955 
Radiographic 3 431 1,292 
Nuclear Medicine 299 299 
Mammography 1 196 196 
Ultrasound 2 160 319 
Support 3,183 
Circulation 1,438 
Interior walls 385 

8,995 
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Shelled 4th Floor 

Future Use Likely Clinics 25,700 
Circulation 1,114 
Interior walls 

28,103 

Total Clinical-
Reviewable 85,179 

Non-Clinical Areas -
Not Reviewable 
Mechanical, Other 
Support 

Basement mechanical, 
storage 2,591 
1st Floor dock, storage, 
risers 3,292 
2nd Floor risers, stairs, 
elevtr 1,730 
3rd Floor risers, stairs, elevtr 1,897 
4th Floor risers, stairs, elevtr 1,862 
Circulation 6,008 
Interior walls 790 
Exterior Walls 3,839 

Administrative 
18,170 

1st Floor offices, mtg. room 3,264 
2nd Floor reception, office 1,153 
3rd Floor reception, 
registration 1,131 
Interior walls 252 

To Be Leased 
5,800 

Commercial space to be 
leased 14,196 14,196 

Parking Deck 

Surface Parking 70,188 
Below Grade Parking 70,188 

Total Non-
Clinical- Non-

.' 

Reviewable 178,543 i' , 
'. 

Grand Total 267,560 
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Section IV, Project Services Utilization 

Attachment 15 

1. Project Services Utilization. 

A. Clinic Exam Rooms. 

Utilization 

Historical Projected State I Met 
Utilization Utilization Standard I Standard? 

Exam Rooms 
(80) 
2015 0 
2016 0 

.2017 96,000 

• 2018 160,000 160,000 Yes 

UCMC used Truven Health Analytics ("Truven"), formerly Thomson Reuters, data to analyze 
projected need for outpatient services in Planning Area A-04. This area is directly to the south of 
Planning Area A-03, which is the southern portion of Chicago and where UCMC's main campus 
is located. Planning Area A-04 extends to Lemont on its western border, Frankfort to the 
southwest, Park Forest to the south, and the Indiana border on the east. The heaviest 
concentration of suburban patients treated at UCMC in Hyde Park reside in Planning Area A-04, 
as well as northwestern Indiana. . 

Truven provides information, analytic tools, benchmarks, and consulting services to the 
healthcare industry and has 500 active clients covering over 1,500 facilities. Truven's market 
re~earch involves studying more than 640 million outpatient billing claims annually, including 
both commercial and Medicare and Medicaid, covering more than 45 million patients. Truven 
also uses Nielsen Claritas socio-demographic and lifestyle data. In making demand 
assessments, Truven studies historical utilization trends, the impact of payment policy changes, 
physician practice pattern changes, the prevalence of chronic medical conditions, projected 
insurance coverage changes, and evolving population demographics. Truven's concentration on 
empirical data and scientifically tested methodologies yields clinical volume forecasts that are 
well focused on specific geographical areas . 

. Orland Park, which is located in Planning Area A-04, has experienced strong and steady 
population growth. The findings for Planning Area A-04 based on the Truven data are set forth 
in the tables below. Actual 2013 outpatient medical visits are reported by medical specialty in 
groupings of Adult Specialty Medicine, Surgery, Pediatrics, and Adult Primary Care and Internal 
Medicine. Outpatient visits in 2013 totaled 4.9 million and the Truven data forecasts outpatient 
visits to grow to 5.7 million by 2018. UCMC intends to concentrate its services on the first three 
groups, drawing on its expertise in specialty medicine and complex diseases. Employing its 

\ 
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Physician Demand and Physician Supply models, the Truven data identified both physician 
shortages and excesses by specialty in 2013. For the areas on which UCMC is concentrating, 
Adult Specialty Medicine, Surgery and Pediatrics, the physician shortage is 179 FTEs and 
outpatient visit growth is projected to reach 379,000 by 2018. Based on these factors it is clear 
that Planning Area A-04 will need greater medical care capacity, both in terms of clinicians and 
facilities, in the near future. 

Sixty percent of the proposed clinical area will be devoted to clinic exam rooms. There will be 
three (3) exam rooms within the 1st floor Radiation Oncology area, 21 exam rooms in the 2nd 

floor Orthopedics Clinic, and 56 exam rooms on the 3rd floor. UCMC expects to reach full 
utilization of 2,000 visits per year in 2018, the second full year of operation. The 160,000 annual 
visits this figure represents is 42 percent of the expected increase in Planning Area A-04 for 
specialty and pediatric care. 

As compared to other Chicago area academic medical centers, UCMC has been relatively slow 
to deploy into other outer geographic areas. However, patients are demanding more convenient 
access to specialty care and in order to meet these expectations and maintain its market position, 
UCMC, similar to Rush, Northwestern, and Loyola, must locate facilities and staff in areas 
outside of its Chicago Hyde Park campus. 

UCMC believes its strong reputation for treating complex illness will attract patients to the 
proposed facility. Such expertise is not limited to rare cancers and other unusual diseases, but 
includes such commonplace ailments as diabetes and cardiovascular disease. UCMC physicians 
have long been highly regarded for innovative biomedical research and innovation and the quick 
application of discoveries to patient care. UCMC's faculty embodies a culture of inquiry, where 
common, accepted approaches are open to question in the quest. for improved techniques and 
more effective treatment. There is also a practice of close col1abQration between medical 
disciplines. UCMC physicians work as a team, among all specialties, drawing from a deep and 
broad level of expertise in the many medical areas. This powerful approach and an extensive set 
of resources will be utilized at the proposed facility in Orland Park. With electronic medical 
records, information is shared easily, whether at the proposed Orland Park facility, other area 
clinics, or at UCMC's main hospital. Presently, physicians at UCMC's outlying clinics 
participate in regular case review conferences or tumor boards, often by teleconference, 
reviewing cases in multi-disciplinary groups, questioning treatment approaches, and ensuring 
that all helpful knowledge is brought to the fore. There is a long standing prac~ice in UCMC's 
care community of challenging assumptions and testing hypotheses in free-flowing discussions 
about patients receiving care. UCMC believes that the public and also referring physicians 
appreciate the value of this approach and will strongly support the new facility. 
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B. Radiation Oncology. 

Utilization 

Diagnostic Historical Projected State Met 

Ima~dDJ~ Utilization Utilization Standard Standard? i 

Radiation 
Oncolo1n' 
Linear 
Accelerator (1) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 3,375 
2018 7,500 7,500 Yes 

Forecasted utilization of the linear accelerator is 3,375 treatments in 2017 and 7,500 in 2018, the 
second full year of operation. The Truven data showed that 156,038 linear accelerator treatments 
occurred in Planning Area A-04 in 2013 and projects that there will be 30 percent growth, to 
202,724 treatments by 2018, and to 227,009 by 2023, an increase of 45 percent in 10 years. 
UCMC expects the Radiation Therapy services at the proposed Orland Park facility will reach 
full utilization of 7,500 treatments in 2018. This represents 18 percent of the growth in treatment 
volume and, therefore, should not adversely affect the current utilization base of existing 
providers in Planning Area A-04. 

UCMC Orland Park Share of New Linac Treatments 

2013 Troven radiation therapy 
CPTs/year 

2018 Troven radiation therapy 
CPTs/year 

Increase 2018 versus 2013 

Average CPTslLinac treatment 
(UCMC) 

Increase in A -04 Linac 
treatments 

UCMC projected Orland Park facility 
2018 

% of A-04 incremental Linac 
treatments 
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156,078 

202,724 

46,646 

1.1 

42,405 

7,500 

17.7% 
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Radiation and Cellular Oncology has a storied history at UCMC. The world's first nuclear 
reactor became operational at the University of Chicago in 1942 during the secret Manhattan 
Project, under the direction of Arthur Compton and Enrico Fermi. The first self-sustaining, 
controlled nuclear chain reaction was achieved one block away from UCMC's current location. 
Radiology faculty from UCMC staffed the X-ray department of the research effort in Chicago as 
well as the Los Alamos Laboratory. This research effort focused attention on the need for basic 
research in radiobiology to study the effects of ionizing radiation on living systems. Research on 
new radionuclides and charged-particle accelerators, along with the establishment of the 
Argonne Cancer Research Hospital which was part of Billings Hospital at UCMC, became part 
of the Atomic Energy Commission's "Atoms for Peace" program to develop socially beneficial 
uses of ionizing radiation. The treatment of cancer was advanced by that program. Lester 
Skaggs, professor of medical physics pioneered the development of radiation therapy equipment. 
He designed a rotating uranium-shielded cobalt-60 radiation therapy unit, which provided a 
uniquely small beam penumbra. He also designed the first linear accelerator radiotherapy device 
in the United States which was eventually put into service at UCMC treating patients with 
cancer. Professor Skaggs played a significant role in developing the cyclotron for medical use. 

Radiotracer chemistry at UCMC also dates back to the Manhattan Project, under the stewardship 
of Katherine Lathrop and Paul Harper. Mrs. Lathrop became chairperson of the Hospital's 
Medical Internal Radiation Dose Committee, formed in 1964. The first dose-estimate report was 
based on quantitative biodistribution data from one patient who Mrs. Lathrop followed for up to 
3 years after a normal clinical dose of Se75-selenomethionine. She served on the U.S. 
Pharmacopoeia and American Standards Institute committees that established specifications for 
radiopharmaceuticals. 

Robert Beck and Alexander Gottschalk also played key roles in advancing nuclear medicine at 
UCMC and throughout the world. Professor Beck designed rectilinear scanning devices for 
raruonuclide imaging, performed theoretical analysis and optimization of focusing collimators, 
and conducted studies of the trade-off between spatial resolution and sensitivity. He also played 
a key role in creating a positron emission tomography program here, building one of the 
country's first scanners here in the early 1970's. Dr. Gottschalk pioneered use of the Anger 
scintillation ("Gamma") camera in clinical studies. 

These and a long series of other remarkable innovations have positioned UCMC as a leading 
center for nuclear medicine and radiation oncology which continues today. In January 2014, 
UCMC was one of 6 institutions receiving grants of $90 million each for cancer research from 
the Ludwig Cancer Research Foundation, which has previously given, $60 million each, to other 
distinguished recipients, including Harvard, John Hopkins, Stanford, Memorial-Sloan Kettering, 
and MIT. At UCMC, this funding will support studies of radiation and hormone therapy as well 
as metastasis. UCMC's current research endeavors include: 

The Ludwig Center for Metastasis Research 
The center focuses on the role of immunology in radiotherapy, oligometastasis 
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(metastasis in a limited number of body sites), and the Jak Stat 1 Axis, Interferon 
signaling and treatment resistance. 

Wiersma Laboratory 
Rodney D. Wiersma, a Ph.D. in physics leads this laboratory. Current efforts include the 
use of robotics for performing real-time patient head motion cancellation during 
frameless stereotactic radiosurgery, hybrid MV and kV treatment plan optimization for 
reduction kV imaging dose overhead during image guided radiation therapy (IGRT), and 
real-time internal organ motion tracking during radiation treatment based on combined 
MV and k V imaging. 

Bishop Laboratory 
Dr. Doug Bishop directs this group, with funding from the U.S. Army and National 
Science Foundation. The laboratory studies the role of homologous repair, emphasizing 
the recombination proteins Dmc 1 and Rad51 that are related to the bacterial repair 
protein RecA. The investigation considers how Dmcl's function is specialized for 
meiosis, how the functions ofRad51 and Dmcl differ, and how proteins interact. 

Center for EPR Imaging in Vivo Physiology 
In collaboration with researchers at the University of Denver and University of Maryland, 
the Center for Electron Paramagnetic Resonance (EPR) Imaging in Vivo Physiology aims 
to create new imaging technologies to better visualize living tissue in animals. The EPR 
imaging technology under development by the Center has powerful implications for the 
treatment of cancers, strokes, peripheral vascular diseases, and heart attacks. The 
research team has registered several patents for their innovations. Funding is from the 
National Institute of Biomedical Imaging and Bioengineering, a part of the National 
Institutes of Health (NIH). 

Grina Laboratory 
Under the leadership of Professor David Grina, an expert in the field of radiation 
biophysics, this laboratory concentrates in two areas of study. The Department of Energy 
funds a Project investigating adaptive responses induced by either very low doses of 
ionizing radiation or by thiol containing cytoprotective drugs. This research has 
implications for patient response intheray and to environmental risk assessment. 
Exploration in this area could lead to increased survival if healthy cells. Second, the NIH 
and National Cancer Institute have funded research into a novel concept of therapy 
coupled chemo prevention. In this study, agents with carcinogenic potential are paired 
with anti-mutagenic or anti-carcinogenic drugs in order to discover a way to reduce the 
risk of therapy inducing secondary cancers in otherwise healthy patients. 
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UCMC's Department of Radiation and Cellular Oncology is recognized for its clinical and 
technical excellence. It operates at UCMC and also at Sherman Hospital, the University of 
Illinois at Chicago Medical Center, and the University of Chicago Comprehensive Cancer Center 
at Silver Cross ("UCCCCSC"). In UCCCCSC's first two years of operation, high levels of 
utilization were achieved, giving UCMC confidence that the same level of success will be 
achieved in Orland Park, drawing patients from Planning Area A-04. 

C. Diagnostic Imaging. 

Utilization 

Diagnostic Historical Projected State Met 
Imaging Utilization Utilization Standard Standard? 

RadiographiclFluoroscopic 
(3) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 11,007 
2018 18,344 > 16,000 Yes * 
Nuclear Medicine (1) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 925 
2018 1,541 2,000 Yes * 
Mammography (1) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 5,861 
2018 9,769 > 5,000 Yes 

*Ifrounded up per normal certificate of need planning conventions. 
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I Utilization 

Diagnostic Historical Projected State I Met 
Imaging Utilization Utilization Standard. Standard? 

Ultrasound (2) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 3,881 
2018 6,468 > 6,200 Yes 
CT(l) 
2015 0 
2016 0 I 

i 2017 6,671 
! 2018 11,118 
r--

> 7,000 Yes 
MRl (1) 
2015 0 
2016 0 
2017 2,987 
2018 4,978 > 2,500 Yes 

The table above presents the utilization forecasts for imaging modalities to be located on the 2nd 

floor of the proposed facility, a radiographic room within the Orthopedics Clinic and the 
remainder in an imaging-only department. The forecast methodology used ratios of UCMe's 
2013 outpatient visits to outpatient imaging exams by modality and applied these ratios to visits 
forecast for the proposed facility. For 2018, 18,344 exams are projected for the three 
radiographic/fluoroscopic rooms. The convention in certificate of need planning and review for 
multiple rooms is to round up when an uneven number of rooms are justified. At a state standard 
of 8,000 exams per room for this clinical service, three (3) rooms, rounded up from 2.2 rooms 
are justified and requested. 

For Nuclear Medicine one (1) room is requested. 1,541 exams are projected for 2018, which is 
77 percent of the 2,000 state standard. Nuclear medicine is a required technology, especially for 
heart disease, cancer, and tirain disorders and thus is a vital diagnostic tool in a specialty clinic. 
Though the projected volume of nuclear medicine exams is slightly less than the state standard, 
UCMC respectfully requests that the Review Board consider rounding up the 0.77 projected rate 
to 1 Nuclear Medicine device in order to ensure that all of the services that will be housed in the 
proposed facility are supported by this necessary technology. 

There are 9,769 mammography exams forecast for 2018 for one (1) Mammography machine. 
This surpasses the state standard of 5,000 per machine. 

For the two (2) ultrasound rooms, there are 6,468 exams projected for 2018. This exceeds the 
state standard ofJ,100 exams per room. 
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One (I) CT scanner is also requested for the imaging area. Although there is a CT simulation 
room in Radiation Oncology, this machine would be dedicated to treatment planning and 
verification to support safe and optimal treatments on the linear accelerator and utilization for 
this machine is examined separately in the Radiation Oncology portion of this section. At 

. 11,118 exams forecast for 2018, the state standard of 7,000 is met. 

Finally, 4,978 exams are expected in 2018 for the one (1) MRl scanner. This surpasses the state 
standard of 2,500 exams per machine. 

ATTACHMENT 15 

000081 



Section IV, Project Services Utilization 

Attachment 15 

1. Background •. 

Cancer treatment is one of the foremost areas of clinical service and research at UCMC. UCMC 
is proud to have been designated by the National Institute of Health's National Cancer Institute 
as one of 68 cancer centers in the country, and one of the only two in Illinois. 

For more than 60 years, UCMC has conducted groundbreaking research in cancer care. One of 
UCMC's foundational principles is close coordination between research and clinical care. 
UCMC's research facilities are located adjacent to its clinical buildings and there is a lively, 
ongoing exchange of ideas between the 210 basic, clinical, and translational scientists studying 
cancer at UCMC. UCMC's clinicians are frequently deeply involved in research efforts. 
Currently, UCMC has 336 open clinical trials in cancer therapy. From this integrated approach, 
many advances made by UCMC's scientists have become accepted protocol for the treatment of 
cancer. 

UCMC has had numerous accomplishments in cancer research and clinical care including: 

In 1941, Charles Huggins, M.D., published the results of a series of experiments on the 
relationship of testosterone to prostate cancer. His research changed forever the way scientists 
regarded the behavior of all cancer cells and for the first time brought hope to the prospect of 
treating advanced cancers. The concept of hormonal treatment of cancer has since become the 
mainstay of care of several types of cancer, including breast and gynecological cancers. Dr. 
Huggins was awarded the Nobel Prize in 1966. 

The early work of Leon Jacobsen, M.D. with the effects of radiation on the spleens of mice was a 
pr~cursor to the practice of bone marrow transplantation. Dr. Jacobsen was the first to 
successfulJy treat Hodgkin's disease with nitrogen mustard, which marked the beginning of 
modem cancer chemotherapy. 

Research by Dr. Jacobsen, Walter Fried, M.D., Louis Plzak, M.D., and Eugene Goldwasser led 
to the discovery of erythropoietin, a hormone that signals the spreen to make blood cells after the 
marrow has been destroyed. Efforts in this area have contri.buted to the production of 
hematopoietic growth factors, which have greatly advanced cancer treatment and are one of the 
cornerstones of the multi-billion-dollar biotechnology drug industry. The first bone marrow 
transplant was performed at UCMC in the late 1940s. 

UCMC researchers led by Elwood Jensen, PhD, discovered in the late 1950s that hormones act 
through steroid receptors on their target cells. This discovery led directly to hormone therapies 
for breast cancer, a practice credited with savings the lives of thousands of women each year. 
Jensen won the Lasker Award for this work in 2004. 
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Janet Rowley, M.D., discovered the first consistent chromosome translocations associated with 
cancer, a finding that helped to demonstrate that cancer was a genetic disease. Before Rowley, 
few scientists suspected that chromosomal aberrations caused tumors. The established view was 
that abnormal chromosomes were manifestations of generalized chaos within leukemia and 
lymphoma cells. But Rowley wondered if something else might be going on with those damaged 
pieces of DNA, and continued to examine thousands of chromosomes from patients. In 1972, 
Dr. Rowley made a number or remarkable discoveries, including the landmark finding that an 
abnormally short chromosome associated with myelogenous leukemia (CML) was not a 
chromosome deletion, as many scientists had thought, but an exchange (known as a 
translocation) of segments between two chromosomes. Rowley'S contributions to identifying 
chromosomal abnormalities in leukemias and lymphomas changed the way these diseases are 
diagnosed and treated. In 2009, she was awarded the Presidential Medal of Freedom. 

2. Infusion Therapy Department. 

A. Overview of Operation. 

The proposed facility's Infusion Therapy department will have 26 rooms and one (1) isolation 
room. Of the 26 rooms, three (3) will be larger rooms with four (4) stations each and the other 
14 rooms will be single occupancy for patients who desire more privacy. There will be a 
medical preparation room where intravenous solutions are prepared, as well as a small two~part 
room for blood draws and testing. When patients are arriving at the same time, in order to 
improve efficiency and offer more privacy and a less hectic visit, blood draws can also occur in 
treatment rooms. There will also be two nurses stations for the nursing staff. 

The proposed layout is efficient, with only 18 percent of the area used for circulation. The 
Project's architect specializes in health care design and draws from extensive experience in 
designing cancer treatment departments. Additionally, many of the Project's design elements' 
benefits have been validated by their recent use in the design ofUCMC's Comprehensive Cancer 
Center at Silver Cross ("UCCCCSC"), which includes a 14-station Infusion Therapy department. 

The key room for Infusion Therapy is the infusion room or chair. All other areas of the facility 
and department support this room where the clinical service is provided. Once it has been 
determined that chemotherapy is the correct treatment for a patient's cancer, the patient comes to 
the Infusion Therapy department for administration of drug treatment. The design of the 
proposed Infusion Therapy department is very efficient and anticipates that once the patient is 
registered during each visit they receive all oftheir clinical services in the infusion room. 

Upon arrival at the Infusion Therapy department initially, a patient is "triaged," that is a 
registered nurse specializing in infusion therapy assesses the patient's condition. On the first 
visit the patient's treatment plan is explained and discussed. 

On follow-up visits, the nurse takes vital signs, interviews the patient about any side effects they 
may be experiencing, and counsels them on what they can do to address problems. Some 
patients have a port used for delivery of their drugs and, during each visit, this port must be 
flushed by the nurse to remove drugs that may have adhered to this central line and to ensure that 
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the line does not become blocked. Blood is drawn for a variety of lab tests such as white blood 
cell count, hemoglobin, hematocrit, and blood urea nitrogen. The results of these tests are 
compared to ranges established for the type of cancer and the drugs being employed. The 
physician reviews the results and detennines if the treatment can proceed that day. 

In some instances, the patient might need hydration to help the kidneys before the chemotherapy. 
This could take 1 to 2 hours. If the hemoglobin is low, the patient might need a blood or platelet 
transfusion. This is done in the chair and can require as long as 4 hours. 

Once the physician gives the order to proceed, the pharmacy prepares the medication for the 
patient. For the most part, this is not done in advance since cancer drugs are very expensive and 
can be unstable once prepared for infusion. Thus, it is important to be certain that they will be 
administered before they are actually compounded. Some patients will require two or more 
drugs. More often than not, mUltiple drugs are administered sequentially. 

UCMC is the leading medical center in Illinois in conducting early stage clinical trials, many of 
which involve chemotherapy. There are strict protocols in these cases, which can require more 
frequent blood draws, more frequent vital signs taken and recorded, and other tasks intrinsic to 
evaluating the efficacy of new treatments. The period of time for infusion therapy can, therefore, 
vary from less than an hour to over 8 hours. 

Once the therapy portion is complete, the nurse infonns the patient when their next appointment 
is, gives the patient written material, and makes one final assessment of the patient. The 
treatment room is then cleaned for the next patient. 

In sum, there is a huge variability in what might be required for each patient, in tenns of clinical 
interventions and time required in the treatment chair. There is no typical patient. . All ages are 
represented, all types of cancers are treated, and many different therapies are employed. 

B. Utilization. 

In detennining the utilization of the proposed 26 infusion therapy rooms, UCMC employed two 
key metrics based on its experience of the first two years of operation of the USCCCCSC, 
located nearby in Will County. Based on this experience, UCMC estimates that the number of 
treatment cycles for each patient is roughly 6 and the duration, which includes the many 
activities discussed above, is approximately 4 hours. 

UCMC predicts that by the second full year of operation, 2018, 1,740 patients will be treated at 
the proposed facility for whom there would be 10,440 infusion sessions, requiring 41,760 hours 
oftreatment time. Assuming 250 annual days of operation and 8 hours per day, the capacity for 
the proposed 26 treatment rooms is 52,000 hours. Thus, the anticipated 41,760 hours of 
treatment time represents a utilization rate of 80 percent. If the proposed Infusion Therapy 
department were small, such as only a dozen rooms, the great variability in time required from 
patient-to-patient would mean there would be a lower utilization rate due to this inherent 
variability. For a larger sized department such as this, 80 percent is a reasonable level of 
efficiency. 
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IV Therapy Utilization Rate 

Estimated infusion patients 2018 
Treatment cycles per patient 
Infusion sessions in 2018 
Average treatment time (hrs) 
Total treatment hours 
Stations 
Days per year 
Hours of operation per day 
Annual hours available for 26 st. 
Utilization rate (41,760/52,000) 

1,740 
6 

10,440 
4 

41,760 
26 

250 
8 

52,000 
80% 

For fiscal year 2013 (year ending June 30th
), there were 606 patients residing in Planning Area 

A~04 who received infusion therapy at UCMC in Hyde Park. This is 35 percent of the 1,740 
patients expected to be treated in 2018 at the proposed facility in Orland Park. Although some 
residents of Planning Area A-04 may prefer to continue to come to UCMC in Hyde Park for 
treatment, the expectation is that most will find the Orland Park location more appealing. In 
addition to these existing Planning Area A-04 patients seeking care in Orland Park, UCMC 
forecasts, based on Truven Health Analytics data, that patients requiring infusion therapy for 
cancer will grow from 537,380 CPTs to 605,664 CPTs. Additionally, these billing units cover 
more activities than just infusion of cancer drugs. In analyzing UCMC's CPTs for this 
department, UCMC found that there is a ratio of 1.84 CPTs for each infusion charge. Applying 
this ratio to the Truven data, there is an expected increase of 37,111 annual treatments by 2018, 
based on 2013 billing data for Planning Area A-04 residents. The 10,440 treatments projected 
for Orland Park is 28 percent of this increase. Since this number represents only the expected 
increase in the number of treatments, this forecast does not assume that the proposed facility will 
take any of the existing Planning Area A-04 providers' market share. 

Planning Area A-04 Projected Chemo Infusions Treated by UCMC 
in Orland Park 

2013 Truven infusion CPTs 
2018 Truven infusion CPTs 
Incremental CPTs by 2018 
Avg. CPTs/infusion UCMC 
Incremental infusions by 2018 
Incremental treated by UCMC 
Share of incremental infusions 

000085 

... 

537,380 
605,664 
68,284 

1.84 
37,11l 
10,440 

28% 
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Section IV, Unfinished or Shell Space 

Attachment 16 

1. Total Gross Square Footage of Proposed Shell Space 

The Project proposes that the 4th floor, composing 28,103 dgsf, or 29,127 bgsf, ofthe 
Project's total 244,988 bgsfwill be unfinished. 

2. Anticipated Use of the Shell Space 

The anticipated use of this shell space is for outpatient clinic exam rooms. Specifically, 
in terms of direct clinical space, there could be 51 exam rooms and 6 procedure rooms, 
and the remainder would be waiting areas, offices, a staff conference room, clean and 
soiled utility rooms, toilets, janitors' closets and circulation space. UCMC anticipates 
that the 4th floor would be built-out in 2020. 

3. Reasons for the Construction of Space to be Shelled 

UCMC has been an early proponent of building shell space in order to: (i) maximize the 
utility of limited and valuable urban building sites, (ii) avoid the added costs of new 
construction at a later time, (iii) capitalize on economies of scale, and (iv) capture 
architectural efficiency in effectuating one large Project rather than multiple smaller ones. 

For instance, in 1993, for the 536,000 bgsf Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, 
UCMC proposed to shell the 3rd floor, several OR's, a planned food service area, a 
cardiac catheterization lab, and a linear accelerator vault, totaling 91,745 bgsf. The initial 
Project was completed in 1996 and UCMC returned to the Review Board in 1997 for a 
permit to develop the majority of the remaining shelled space. Within several years, all 
areas were completed. The advantages were many - services and functions were located 
in ideal locations, space was not built out until it was needed, and UCMC made optimal 
use of a site in the heart of its medical campus. 

Similarly, in 2004, UCMC submitted an application to the Review Board to construct the 
4-story Comer Center for Children and Specialty Care. In its application UCMC initially 
proposed to construct the ground level pediatric emergency department and to leave the 
upper floors as shell space to be developed later. The rationale for this approach was 
again to make full use of the site. The City of Chicago, however, was very reluctant to 
allow construction above an active emergency department and discouraged this approach. 
To allay reservations by members of the Review Board, UCMC gave assurances that it 
would return to the Review Board for approval to' develop the remaining space, 
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regardless of the actual reviewability of future proposals. Thus, in 2007 UCMC returned 
to the Review Board for approval to build out the 4th floor for pediatric specialty clinics 
and returned again in 2008 to seek approval to build out the 2nd floor for Pediatric Special 
Procedures and Infusion Therapy. In July 2014 UCMC expects to submit a permit 
application to the Review Board to relocate the Labor and Delivery department to the 3rd 

floor, thus fulfilling UCMC's promise to return to the Review Board for approval and to 
build out all of the shell space in this building. 

The most recent example of UCMC's judicious use of constructing shell space occurred 
in 2007 with its request to build the Center for Care and Discovery, a 1.1 million bgsf 
hospital housing the majority of UCMC's adult beds, general operating rooms, and 
invasive procedure facilities. The 3rd and 4th floors were proposed as shelled space, along 
with a small area in the basement adjacent to Radiation Oncology, for a total of215,555 . 
bgsf. Again, UCMC's strategy was to maximize the remaining undeveloped land on its 
medical center campus, building to the limits of the site. While at the time UCMC did 
not have definite plans for the two empty floors, a likely use was relocating adult beds 
from Mitchell Hospital to this space. In March 2014 UCMC submitted an application to 
the Review Board for this very purpose and the application will be considered by the 
Review Board in July 2014. Assuming the Review Board approves, UCMC will have 
completed the build out of nearly 100 percent of the shell space in this building. 

The principal reason for the proposed 4th floor shell space in the current Project is the 
expectation that there will be robust demand in Planning Area A-04 for specialty medical 
services provided in an outpatient setting. UCMC used Truven Health Analytics 
("Truven") data to forecast the need for outpatient services in this area. Based upon the 
Truven data, UCMC concluded outpatient demand for Adult Specialty Medicine, 
Surgery, and Pediatrics will grow by 379,000 visits between 2013 and 2018 and an 
additional 446,000 visits in the same time frame for Adult Primary Care and Internal 
Medicine. 

By initially building out only the first three floors before considering development of the 
4th floor, UCMC is taking a conservative approach to construction, consistent with the 
Health Facilities Planning Act's goal of the orderly and economic development of health 
care facilities. Actual results and demand and the Review Board will determine whether 
this additional space is needed. Further, the site of the proposed facility is a prime 
commercial location in Orland Park, and it is prudent to make the best and fullest use of 
this valuable site by planning ahead for anticipated needs. 

While there is always a risk that the shell space will not be needed, UCMC's 11 year 
record, involving 3 separate buildings and 380,000 bgsf described above, demonstrates 
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that UCMC subsequently utilized these spaces in vital and productive manners within a 

reasonable length of time. More importantly, this careful approach to planning and 
.development has significantly benefited patients since UCMC has been able to adjust 
facilities and services efficiently and economically to patients' changing needs. 

4. Historic and Projected Utilization. 

UCMC was unable to find historic outpatient visit data for Planning Area A-04 prior to 
2013. The source of the projected data is Truven Health Analytics. Visits are outpatient 
clinic visits for residents of Planning Area A-04. 

Year Visits 
Historic: 

2,542,5821 2013 
Projected: I 

2014 2,614,410 I 

2015 2,688,267 
2016 2,764,211 
2017 2,842,300 
2018 2,922,000 
2019 3,005,158 
2020 3,090,053 
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Section IV, Assurances 

Attachment 17 

A letter of assurance pursuant to Section 111O.234(c) stating that the Project will meet state 
utilization standards by the second year of operation after Project completion and that UCMC 
will submit a permit application prior to developing the proposed 4th floor shell space is attached. 

ATTACHMENT 17 

000089 



THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 20,2014 

Ms. Courtney R Avery 
Administrator 

Sharon O'Keefe 
President 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

MC 1000 S-115 
5841 South Maryland Avenue 
Chicago, Illinois 60637-1470 
phone (773) 702-8908 
fax (773) 702-1897 
sharon.okeefe@uchospitals.edu 

Re: University of Chicago Medical Center Penni! Application 
Occupancy 

Assurance of 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

This letter attests to the fact that if this Project is approved by the Illinois Health Facilities 
and Services Review Board, University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC") understands that 
it is expected to achieve and maintain the utilization standards specified in §1110.234(e)(l) by 
the second year of operation after project completion. UCMC reasonably expects to meet this 
occupancy. Our ability to maintain this utilization level could be affected by various factors, 
however, such as natural disasters, regulatory changes in healthcare, interruption of necessary 
utilities, physical plant problems, or other unexpected issues outside of our control which could 
have a direct or indirect effect upon our utilization rates. 

This letter further attests to the fact that if this Project is approved, UCMC will submit a CON 
application to develop and utilize the shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at 
the .time as set forth or categories of service involved in §111O.234(e)(2)(A). We anticipate 
submitting the CON application in 2018 and if approved, estimate construction to be complete 
and the new area placed in operation in 2020. 

S 
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Notarization: 
Subscribed andJ§worn to before me 

This ~ay of May, 2014 

G~~ 
Signature of Notary Public 

.. 0 F F I C I A L SEA L II S~al 
CASSANDRA COLE ~ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILUNOIS ~ 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 8/312017 ;-
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Section VII, Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service 

Attachment 34 

1. Need Determination - Establishment. 

I # Existing 
# Proposed I Key 

! Service Rooms Key Rooms 
Outpatient Clinic 0 80 
Infusion Therapy 0 26 
Radiation Oncology 0 I 

I Diagnostic Imaging 0 9 

A. Service to Planning Area Residents. 

The proposed facility would be located in Orland Park, which is located in Planning Area 
A-04, the South Suburbs of Chicago. UCMC used Truven Health Analytics ("Truven") 
data to analyze demand in Planning Area A-04 for the proposed facility and services. 
Truven is a multi-national company that is well regarded for health planning, demand 
forecasting, operational performance benchmarking, and physician demand and supply 
modeling. Truven's MarketDiscovery Planning tool and its Physician Demand and 
Physician Supply models were used in this analysis. The strength of Truven's analysis 
and data is that it examines large samples of outpatient medical bills, over 640 million 
annually. Truven also updates its data annually, and accounts for demographic data and 
trends, as well as changes in legislation, insurance practices, and other factors that are 
significant. This approach means that Truven's data is recent and localized to the area in 
question, in this case Planning Area A-04. Thus, UCMC's projections and forecasts with 
respect to anticipated utilization and demand are targeted to the residents of Planning 
Area A-04. Though it is possible that some patients would come to this facility from 
beyond Planning Area A-04, notably those residing in northwest Indiana, the justification 
for the proposed facility is based on Planning Area A-04 patient demand and physician 
supply. 

B. Service Demand. 

1. Outpatient Clinic. 

Using the Truven data the analysis revealed nearly 5 million outpatient visits 'by 
Planning Area A-04 residents in 2013. The Truven data forecasts that this will grow 
to 5.7 million visits by 2018. More specifically, visits for Specialty Medicine, 
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Surgery, and Pediatrics will increase from 2.5 million in 2013 to 2.9 million in 2018. 
This 15 percent, or 379,000 visit increase would be addressed, in part, by the 80 exam 
rooms planned for the proposed facility. UCMC expects that in its second year of 
operation, 2018, the proposed facility will experience 160,000 visits, thus meeting the 
state standard of 2,000 annual visits per exam room. A breakdown of actual and 
forecasted visits in Planning Area A-04 is set forth in the chart entitled "Visits 
Projected" at the end of this Attachment 34. 

In addition to the 379,000 new visits forecast for Planning Area A-04, in 2013 there 
were 95,570 visits by residents of Planning Area A-04 who received care for specialty 
Services at UCMC in Hyde Park. UCMC expects that many of these patients will 
seek care at the proposed facility. There were also 17,093 visits to UCMC's clinics in 
Flossmoor, Matteson, and Palos Heights in 2013. Some of these patients may also 
choose to receive medical care at the proposed Orland Park facility. Thus, of the total 
492,000 visits, it is expected that 162,000, or 33 percent, will occur in the proposed 
facility. 

Another indicator of future demand is the physician shortage in Planning Area A -04 
identified by the Truven data analysis. This shortage is also shown in detail, by 
specialty, in the chart entitled "Visits Projected" at the end of this Attachment 34. 
Certain communities within Planning Area A-04, notably in Orland Park and nearby 
communities, have shown strong population growth in the past 20 years and 
physician and facility supply have not kept pace. Among Adult Specialty Medicine 
categories, physician shortage totals 86, with especially large shortages for 
Hematology/Oncology (31.2), Neurology (24.8), and Otolaryngology (20.1). The 
Surgery physician shortage is 89, with 28.8 in Orthopedics, 31 in General, and 22.1 in 
Plastic. Based on of these shortages, UCMC plans to concentrate its resources mostly 
in cancer care and orthopedics at the proposed facility. These physician shortfalls 
suggest patients must leave Planning Area A-04 to be treated. Locating the proposed 
facility in Planning Area A-04 will address this out-migration by providing more 
convenient care for residents of the area. 

ii. Radiation Oncology. 

The Truven data indicated that 156,058 linear accelerator treatments occurred in 
Planning Area A-04 in 2013. It forecasts that this number will grow to 202,724 per 
year by 2018. Based on UCMC's experience, these billing units relate to actual 
patient treatments by a ratio of 1.1:1, hence the growth is expected to be 42,405. The 
expected utilization of the linear accelerator planned for the proposed facility will be 
3,375 for 2017 and 7,500 for 2018, reaching the state standard for full utilization. 
The 7,500 represents 17.7 percent of the overall Planning Area A-04 growth oflinear 
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accelerator treatments by 2018. 

iii. Diagnostic Imaging. 

The proposed facility would also provide Diagnostic Imaging services to serve the 
needs of the patients seen in and at the Infusion Therapy department. Devices would 
include radiographiC/fluoroscopic, nuclear medicine, mammography, ultrasound (2), 
CT, and MRl. To determine workload and how many devices were needed, UCMC 
used the ratio of its outpatient imaging exams to outpatient visits, as reported to the 
Illinois Department of Public Health in the Annual Hospital Questionnaire for 2013. 
This ratio was applied to forecast outpatient visits at the proposed facility. Thus, the 
demand for imaging devices is based on the same demand which justified the number 
of clinic exam rooms. 

iv. Infusion Theram. 

The Truven data analysis showed an increase between 2013 and 2018 of 68,284 
billing codes for cancer infusion therapy (from 537,380 to 605,664) for residents of 
Planning Area A-04. UCMC's experience has shown that there is 1.84 CPT code for 
every 1 infusion treatment. Applying this conversion factor produces incremental 
infusions for Planning Area A-04 of 37,111. The expected number of patients 
requiring infusion therapy in 2018 is 1,740. Assuming six (6) treatment cycles per 
patient and four (4) hours average treatment time per session produces 41,760 hours 
of annual treatment time. With an 8 hour workday, 5 days a week, 250 days a year 
there are 52,000 available hours. The 41,760 hours of forecast treatment time 
therefore requires 26 treatment stations or rooms at 80 percent utilization. The 
10,440 treatments represent 28 percent of the incremental treatments predicted by the 
Truven data. 

C. Impact of the Proposed Project on Other Ar.ea Providers. 
In determining the need for the proposed facility, UCMC carefully considered the 
impact such a facility would have on other Planning Area A-04 hospitals. A table, 
entitled "Utilization Rates of Planning Area A-04 Hospitals," is included in 'this 
Attachment 34. It shows the treatment modalities for the proposed facility for which 
there are state standards and for which utilization and numbers of each modality are 
reported and accessible by applicants. This includes Diagnostic Imaging and Radiation 
Oncology. 

The analysis shows that for the nine Planning Area A-04 hospitals where data is reported 
on the Review Board's website for 2012, there are 56 total categories producing 
workload per machine for each modality. Only 15 of 56 categories meet the state 
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standards for utilization. It is unclear without a more thorough study why only 27 percent 
of the modalities meet the state standards. Possibilities include that the standards are too 
high, an inefficient deployment of devices in the hospitals, an area that has an excess of 
medical facilities .or some combination of all three. UCMC's experience is that in order to 
provide patient convenience, to separate pediatric patients from adult patients, to 

minimize the time spent by patients being treated, and to have enough capacity to handle 
peak periods, more machines must be in more places. Although this will lower the 
machine's utilization rate, the improved patient care it provides is well worth the trade-off. 

For each service planned for the proposed facility, the focus is twofold: (i) to provide a 
convenient location for patients residing in Planning Area A-04 who are currently seen 
by UCMC in Hyde Park, and (ii) to serve the incremental demand forecast for 2018, the 
second year of operation for the proposed facility. The intent is to better serve UCMC's 
current patients and also to minimize disruption to existing providers in Planning Area A-
04. In Item l(B), Service Demand, of this Attachment 34, there is further elaboration of 
the incremental demand that justifies the proposed facility, as well as an identification of 
existing UCMC patients who might use the proposed facility. Both of these factors are 
evidence that the proposed facility would not lower the present utilization rates of 
existing Planning Area A-04 hospitals. 

The dynamic of placing satellite facilities away from main hospital campuses is one that 
has been occurring for numerous years in metropolitan Chicago and elsewhere in Illinois. 
UCMC is one of the last hospitals among the other area academic medical centers and 
large hospital systems to engage in this practice. It would be disadvantageous for UCMC 
not to respond to patients' demand for such facilities in their communities. A much 
valued feature of the American health care system is patients' freedom to select their 
health care providers, and providers must develop high quality facilities in locations that 
will appeal to their patients. 

D. Utilization. 

Utilization Units 

Department I.Yru; 2018 Standard Justified Reguested 

Outpatient Clinics visits 160,000 2,000 80.0 80.0 

Radiation Oncology treatments 7,500 7,500 1.0 1.0 

Diagnostic Imaging 

RadiFluoro exams 18,344 8,000 2.3 3.0 

Nuclear Medicine exams 1,541 2,000 0.8 1.0 

Mammography exams 9,769 5,000 2.0 l.0 

Ultrasound exams 6,468 3,100 2.1 2.0 

CT exams 1),1I8 7,000 1.6 1.0 

MR1 exams 2,987 2,500 1.2 l.0 
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I Infusion Therapy hours 41,760 1,600 26.1 26.0 I 

ATTACHMENT 34 

000095 



i. Outpatient Clinics. 

For 2018, the second full year of operation, there are 160,000 outpatient clinic visits 
forecast. The state standard is 2,000 visits per room. Thus, 80 rooms are justified 
which is the number requested. 

ii. Radiation Oncology .. 

Forecasted linear accelerator treatments is 7,500. This meets the state standard for 
the I device requested. 

iii. Diagnostic Imaging. 

In four categories the state standard is exceeded. For radiographic/fluoroscopic the 
calculated number of devices requested is 2.3. The accepted convention in certificate 
of need planning and review is to round up to the next whole number, which is 3.0, 
the number requested. For this modality, one machine would be located Within the 
Orthopedic Clinic, a heavy user of such equipment. The remaining two would be in 
the main imaging area to serve patients from the 3rd floor. 

Nuclear Medicine is projected to have 1,541 exams in 2018. Although this is below 
the standard of 2,000 annual exams and only justifies 0.8 machines, when rounded up 
it is 1.0, the number requested. 

iv. Infusion Therapy. 

While there is no state standard for utilization for this category, for a larger sized 
department, such as what is proposed, 80 percent of available hours is a reasonable 
benchmark. A normal number of hours for a five day per week operation yields 
2,000 available hours or 1,600 at 80 percent utilization. The 41,760 treatment hours 
forecast for this department produces a need for 26.1 chairs at the 80 percent 
utilization level. Thus, the number of chairs requested is 26.0. 
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ANALYSIS OF NEED FOR AMBULATORY CARE SERVICES 
PLANNING AREA A-04 

Outeatient Visits Physician 
Actual Forecast Shortfall 

2013 2018 Increase 2013 
Adult Specialty Medicine 

Cardiology 219,111 265,469 46,358 5.8 
o bstetricslGyneco logy 257,231 302,920 45,690 6.5 
Hematology/Oncology 174,908 206,581 31,674 31.2 
Dermatology 195,015 223,440 28,425 16.5 
Urology 100,336 117,657 17,321 2.8 
Neurology 81,201 96,405 15,204 24.8 
Otolaryngology 97,197 111,985 14,788 20.1 
Gastroenterology 77,529 91,182 13,652 6.3 
Other Specialty Medicine 318,751 370,619 51,868 -28.0 
Adult Specialty Medicine 
Total 1,521,278 1,786,258 264,979 86.0 

Surgery 
Orthopedic 205,007 241,928 36,920 28.8 
General 75,922 90,052 14,129 31.0 
Plastic 16,144 18,717 2,572 22.1 
Neurosurgery 15,058 17,458 2,400 10.7 
Cardio-Thoracic 6,100 7,270 1,170 -6.3 
Colorectal 5,582 6,553 971 2.7 
Surgery Total 323,814 .381,977 58,163 89.0 

Pediatrics 
Pediatrics 670,689 724,293 53,605 4.1 
Pediatric Cardiology 3,699 4,100 401 -8.6 
Pediatric Endocrinology 3,583 3,918 335 1.3 
Pediatric Pulmonary 2,323 2,527 204 0.3 
Other Pediatric 
Subspecialty 17,196 18,927 1,731 
Pediatric Total 697,490 753,765 56,276 4.2 

Adult Primary Care and Internal 
Medicine 

GenerallFamily Practice 1,613,760 1,863, 104 249,344 163.7 
Internal Medicine 823,165 964,540 141,375 
Adult Primary Care and 
Internal Med Total 2,436,925 2,827,644 446,994 190.6 

Grand Total 4,979,507 5,749,643 826,412 370 
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Source: Truven MarketDiscovery Planning tool; based on Truven Physician Demand and Physician Supply models which include 
demographic trends, trends in changes of clinical practice, and adjusts for expected impact of Affordable Care Act. 

Other Specialty Medicine includes pulmonology, endocrinology, rheumatology, physical medicine/rehabilitation, 
allergy/immunology, nephrology, pain management, vascular, and infectious disease. 

Analysis excludes Emergency/Critical Care (Adult and Pediatrics), Psychiatry, and Ophthalmology demand analysis. 
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Section VIII, Availability of Funds 

Attachment 36 

Attached is a copy of the UCMC's fInancial statements dated June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
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The University of Chicago 
Medical Center 
Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Trustees of 
The University of Chicago Medical Center: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of Chicago Medical Center, 
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of operations, 
of changes in net assets, and of cash flows for the years then ended. 

Management's Responsibility/or the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require tlJat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedUres selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The University of Chicago Medical Center at June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

October 10, 2013 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, One North Wacker, Chicago, 1L 60606 
T: (312) 298 :1000, F: (312) 298 2001, WW'''I.pwc.com/us 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Balance Sheets 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

2013 2012 
Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 164,504 $ 74.348 
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful 
accounts for 2013 - $29,612 and 2012 - $30,796 204.279 209,006 
Current portion of investments limited to use 11 27.033 
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance receivable 22,502 17,629 
Current portion of pledges receiVable 2,243 4,799 
Other current assets 35,176 23,627 

Total current assets 428,715 356.442 

Investments limited to use, less current portion 797,305 897,405 
Property, plant and equipment. net 1,189,623 1,066,494 
Pledges receivable, less current portion 2,465 5,634 
Malpractice self-insurance receivable, less current portion 98,821 100,524 
Other assets, net 15,722 27,349 

Total assets $ 2,532,651 $ 2,453,848 

Llablllties and Net Assets 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 131,206 $ 117,678 
Current portion of long-term debt 10,385 11,290 
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 2,033 686 
Current portion of estimated third-party payor settlements 51,836 27,379 
Current portion of malpractice self-insurance liability 22,502 17,629 
Due to University of Chicago 14,799 15,593 

Total current liabilities 232,761 190,257 

Other liabilities 
WorKer's compensation self-insurance liabilities, less current portion 9,528 8,216 
Malpractice self-insurance liability, less current portion 98,821 100.524 
Long-term debt, less current portion 820,341 833,255 
Interest rate swap liability 86,769 135,872 
Other long-term liabilities, less current portion 44,741 56,370 

Total liabilities 1,294,961 1.324,494 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 1.149.627 1,027.917 
Temporarily restricted 81,971 95,345 
Permanently restricted 6.092 6,092 

Total net assets 1.237.690 1.129.354 

Totalliabililies and net assets $ 2,532,651 $ 2,453,848 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Statements of Operations 
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

2013 2012 

OperatIng revenues 
Net patient seNce revenue $ 1,303,787 $ 1,267,104 
Pro>Asion for doubtrul accounts 47,812 45,133 
Net patient seNce revenue after pro\4sion for doubtftJI accounts 1,255,975 1.221,971 
Other operating revenues and net assets released 
worn restrictions 81,184 67,914 

Total operating revenues 1,337,159 1,289,885 

Operating expenses 
Salaries, wages and benefits 595,968 532,949 
Supplies and other 335,358 324,844 
Physician seNces worn the University of Chicago 191,862 185,026 
Insurance 18,382 20,902 
Interest 19,883 12,789 
Medicaid pro\ider tax 26,691 26,691 
Depreciation and amortization 70,466 67,522 

Total operating expenses 1,258,610 1,170,723 

Total operating income 78,549 119,162 

Nonoperating gains 
Investment income and unrestricted gills, net 59,788 24,857 
Derivative ineffectiveness gain (loss) 2,993 (3,679) 

Excess of revenues over expenses 141,330 140,340 

Other changes In net assets 
Transfers to University of Chicago, net (74,544) (90,396) 
Net assets released for capital purchases 14,277 225 
Uability for pension benefits 3,878 (2,659) 
Changes in valuation of derivatives 36,713 (85.079) 
Other, net 56 552 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets $ 121,710 $ (37,OO7) 

~: 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center· 
Statements of Changes In Net Assets 
Years Ended June 30,2013 and 2012 
(in thollSa!lds of dollars) 

201.3 2012 

Unrestricted net assets 
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 141,330 $ 140,340 
Transfers to University of Chicago (74,544) (90,396) 
Net assets released for capital purchases 14,277 225 
Liability for pension benefits 3,878 (2,659) 
Changes in valuation of derivatives 36,713 (85,079) 
Other, net 56 562 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 121,710 ~37,007~ 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Contributions 3,137 3,345 
Net assets released from restrictions used for 
operating purposes (4,621) (4,539) 
Investment Income 4,604 2,825 
Net assets released for capital purchases (14.277) (225) 
Other {2,217} 

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets (13,3741 1,406 

Permanently restricted net assets 
Contributions and other (20) 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 108.336 (35,621) 

Net assets at beginning of year 1,129,354 1,164,975 

Net assets at end of year $ 1,237,690 $ 1,129,354 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollarsJ 

2013 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 108,336 $ (35,621) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Net change in unrealized gains on investments (1,108) 13,425 
Transfers to University of Chicago 74,544 90,396 
Restricted contributions and other changes (921) (3,344) 
Realized gains on investments (63,284) (41,941) 
Net change in valuation of derivatives (47,103) 77,808 
Pension and other changes in unrestricted net assets {3,934} 2,566 
Loss on disposal of assets 935 388 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 2,891 
Depreciation and amortization 70,329 67,522 
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from a change in 

Patient accounts receivable, net 4,727 (69,641) 
Other assets 26,429 (7,369) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,545 12,072 
Due to the University of Chicago (794) 2,658 
Estimated settlements with third-party payors 24,504 (8,622) 
Self-insurance liabilities 1,312 20 
Other liabilities 11,061 (6.758) 

Net cash provided from operating activities 216.578 96,450 

Cash floVlS from investing activities 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (209,359) (240,737) 
Decrease in construction/capitalized interest funds 14,730 125,620 
Acquisition of business purchased (2,607) 

; 

, 
Purchases of investments (221,928) (146,314) ~ .. 

Sales of investments 371,690 186,875 
Net cash used in investing activities (44,867) (77.163) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 686 80,945 : 

Payments on long-term obligations (14,343) (90,631) 
Transfers paid to the University of Chicago, net (74,544) {90, 396) 
Restricted contributions 6,646 6,936 

Net cash used in financing activities {81,555) (93.146) 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 90,156 (73.659) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of year 74,348 148,207 
End of year $ 164.504 $ 74,348 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars~) _________________________ _ 

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC" or the "Medical Cenler") Is an illinois not-for­
profil corporation. UCMC operates the Center for Care and Discovery. the Bernard Mitchell 
HospItal, the Chicago Lying-In Hospital, the University of Chicago Comer Children's Hospital. the 
Duchossois Center for Advanced Medicine, and various other outpatient clinics and treatment 
areas. 

The University of Chicago {the "University"}. as the sole corporate member of UCMC. elects 
UCMC's Board of Trustees and approves its By-Laws. The UCMC President reports to the 
University's Executive Vice President for Medical Affairs. The relationship between UCMC and the 
University is defined in the Medical Center By-Laws. an Affiliation Agreement, an Operating 
Agreement, and several Leases. See Note 3 for agreements and transactions with the University. 

UCMC Is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501 (c}3 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Accordingly. no provision for income taxes related to these entilies has been made. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

New Accounting Pronouncements 
During 2012, the Medical Center adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2011-07, 
Presentation and Disclosure Qf Patient Service Revenue, Provision of Bad Debts, and the 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities ("ASU 2011-07"). ASU 2011-07 
requires health care entities to change the presentation of the statements of operations by 
reclassifying the provision for doubtful accounts from an operating expense to a deduction from 
patient service revenues. 

During 2013, the Medical Center adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2011-04, 
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. 
GAAP and IFRS ("ASU 2011-04"), ASU 2011-04 requires entities to provide additional disclosures 
related to fair value measurements of assets and liabilities classified as level 3 within the fair value 
hierarchy. See Note 5 for related fair value disclosures. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prinCiples generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting' period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most 
significant estimates are made in the areas of patlent accounts receivable, accruals for settlements 
with third-party payors, malpractice liability, fair value of investments, goodwill, intangibles, and 
accrued compensation and benefits. 

Community Benefits 
UCMC's policy is to treat patients In immediate need of medical services without regard to their 
ability to pay for such services, Including patients transferred from other hospitals under the 
proviSions of the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA). UCMC also 
accepts patients through the Perinatal and Pediatric Trauma Networks without regard to their ability 
to pay for services. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

UCMC developed a Financial Assistance Policy (the "Policy") under which patients are offered 
discounts of up to 100% of charges on a sliding scale. The policy is based both on income as a 
percentage of the Federal Poverty Level guidelines and the charges for services rendered. The 
policy also contains provisions that are responsive to those patients subject to catastrophic 
healthcare expenses. Since UCMC does not pursue collection of these amounts, they are not 
reported as net patient service revenue. The cost of providing care under this policy, along with the 
unrelmbursed cost of government sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to 
support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, are reported in Note 4. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Fair value is defined as the price that the Medical Center would receive upon selling an asset or 

pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. 

The Medical Center uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that 
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is 
broken down Into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use In valuing the 
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Medical 
Center. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the 
asset. Including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable 
inputs are Inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the asset 
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. 
Unobservable Inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset developed based on the best 
Information available. The three tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels as 
follows: 

Level 1 quoted market prices in active markets for identical investments. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices for similar investments in active markets, quoted 
prices for identical or similar investments in markets that are not active, or Inputs other than quoted 
prices that are observable including model-based valuation techniques. 

Level 3 - valuation techniques that use Significant inputs that are unobservable because 
they trade infrequently or not at all. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents include U.S. Treasury notes, commercial paper, and corporate notes with original 
maturities of three months or less, except that such Instruments purchased with endowment assets 
or funds on deposit with bond trustees are classified as investments. Cash equivalents are 
consIdered Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. 

Inventory 
UCMC values inventories at the.lower of cost or market, USing the first-in first-out method. 

Investments 
Investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at estimated fair value. If an 

investment is held directly by the Medical Center and an active market with quoted prices exists, 
the market price of an identical security is used as reported fair value. Reported fair values for 
shares in mutual funds are based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

of the fiscal year. The Medical Centers Interests in alternative Investment funds such as private 
debt, private equity, real estate, natural resources, and absolute return are generally reported at 
the net asset value (NAV) reported by the fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to 
estimate the fair value, unless It is probable that a/l or a portion of the Investment will be sold for an 
amount different from NAV. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Medical Center had no plans to sell 
investments at amounts different from NAV. 

A summary of the inputs used in valuing the Medical Centers investments as of June 3D, 2013 and 
2012 Is Included in Note 5. 

A significant portion of UCMC's investments are part of the University's Total Return Investment 
Pool (TRIP). UCMC accounts for its investments in TRIP based on its share of the underlying 
securities and records the investment activity as if UCMC owned the investments directly. The 
University does not engage directly in unhedged speculative investments; however, the Board of 
the University of Chicago has authorized the use of derivative investments to adjust market 
exposure within asset class ranges. 

A summary ofthe inputs used in valuing the Medical Centers investments as of June 3D, 2013 and 
2012 is included in Note 5. 

Endowment Funds with Denclls 
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the value of the initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (defICit). When 
donor endowment deficits exist, they are classified as a reduction of unrestricted net assets. As of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, there were no endOWments in a deficit position. 

Investments Limited as to Use 
Investments limited as to use primarily Include assets held by trustees under debt and other 
agreements and designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees for future capital 
improvements and other specific purposes, over which the Board retains control and may at their 
discretion subsequently use for other purposes. 

Derivative Instruments 
In August 2006, UCMC entered into a forward starting swap transaction against contemplated 
variable rate borrowing for the Center for Care and Discovery. This is a cash flow hedge against. 
interest on the variable rate debt. The fair value of Ihese swap agreements is the estimated 
amount that the Medical Center would have to payor receive to terminate the agreements as of the 
consolidated balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current 
creditworthiness of the swap counterparty. The swap values are based on the London Interbank 
Rate ("UBOR"). The inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 2 in the fair value 
hierarchy. The effective dat~ of the swap was August 2011. In July 2011, UCMC novated the 
original swap agreement to divide the original notional amount in two equal parts between financial 
institutions. The fair value of the terminated portion of the hedge on the date of the novation was 
recorded in net assets in the amount of $35,123 and will be amortized into interest expense over 
the life of the related debt, commencing on the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed 
into service. The new agreement is being accounted for as a hedge. The combined notional 
amount of the swap is $325,000 and the effective start date was August 2011. Management 
determined that the interest rate swaps are effective, and have qualified for hedge accounting. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Management has recognized a net recovery (loss) of ineffectiveness of approximately $3,000 and 
$(3,700) in 2013 and 2012. This movement reflects the spread between tax exempt interest rates 
and USOR during the period. The effective portion of these swaps are included in other changes 
in unrestricted net assets. The interest rate swaps terminate on February 1, 2044. Cash 
settlement payments related to the swaps for 2013 and 2012 were $7,900 and $10,900, 
respectively. These payments were accumulated in net assets while the Center for Care and 
Discovery was under construction, and will be amortized into depreciation expense over the life of 
the building. commencing on the date the Center for Care and Discovery was placed Into service. 

UCMC is required to provide collateral on one of the Interest rate swap agreements when the 
liability of that swap exceeds $50.000. At June 30. 2013 and 2012 approximately $0 and $26.400. 
respectively. was held as COllateral and classified as current portion of investments limited to use. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property. plant and eqUipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization. Donated items are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution. The 
carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed jf the facts and circumstances suggest 
that it may be impaired. Depreciation of property. plant and equipment is calculated by use of the 
straight-line method at rates Intended to depreciate the cost of assets over their estimated useful 
lives, which generally range from three to eighty years. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds 
during the period of construction of capital assets, net of any interest earned. are capitalized as a 
component of the cost of acquiring those assets. During 2013, UCMC evaluated the remaining 
useful lives of the buildings based on their condition by performing detailed assessments of the 
facilities and modifying esUmated useful lives where appropriate to properly reflect the remaining 
useful life of the facility. Based on these changes. depreciation expense recorded was 
approximately $5,800 less in 2013 than if the estimated useful fives were not modi~ed. 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
UCMC recognizes a liability for the fair value of a legal obligation to perform asset retirement 
activities that are conditional on a future event if the amount can be reasonably estimated. Upon 
recognition of a liability. the asset retirement cost is recorded as an increase in the carrying value 
of the related long-lIved asset and then depreciated over the life of the asset. The UCMC asset 
retirement obligations arise primarily from regulations that specify how to dispose of asbestos if 
facilities are demolished or undergo major renovations or repairs. UCMC's obligation to remove 
asbestos was estimated using site-specific surveys where available and a per square foot estimate 
where surveys were unavailable. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level :3 in 
the fair value hierarchy. 

Pledges Receivable 
Unconditional promises to give are recognized initIally at fair value as private gift revenue in the 

period the promise is made by a donor. Fair value of the pledge is eslimated based on anticipated 
future cash receipts (net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts). discounted using a risk­
adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of the payment plan. These inputs to the fair value 
estlmate are considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. In subsequent periods, the discount 
rate Is unchanged and the allowance for uncollectible amounts is reassessed and adjusted if 
necessary. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Other Assets and Liabilities 
Other assets and liabilities, including deferred financing costs, which are amortized over the term of 
the related obligations, do not differ materially from their estimated fair value and are considered 
Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy 

Net Assets 
Permanently restricted net assets Include the historical dollar amounts of gifts that are required by 
donors to be permanently retained. Temporarily restricted net assets include gifts, which can be 
expended but for which restrictions have not yet been met. Such restrictions Include purpose 
restrictions where donors have specified the purpose for which the net assets are to be spent, or 
time restrictions imposed by donors or implied by the nature of the gift (such as pledges to be paid 
in the future) or by interpretations of law. Unrestricted net assets Include all the remaining net 
assets of UCMC. See Note 15 for further Information on the composition of restricted net assets. 

Realized gains and losses are classified as changes In unrestricted net assets unless they are 
restricted by the donor or law. 

Gifts and Grants 
Unconditional promises to give assets other than cash to UCMC are reported at fair value at the 
date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are recogni4ed when the conditions are 
substanti.1I1y met. The aifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support If 
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. Donor-restrlctecJ 
contributions whose restrictions are met Within the same year received are reported as unrestricted 
gifts in the accompanying financial statements. 

Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as 
additions to temporarily restricted net assets until the assets are placed Into service. 

Statement of Operations 
All activities of UCMC deemed by management to be ongoiog, major and central to the provision of 
healthcare services are reported as operating revenues and expenses. Activities deemed to be 
nonoperating include certain Investment income (including realized gains and losses). 

UCMC recognizes changes in accounting estimates related to third-party payor settlements as 
more experience is acquired. Adjustments to prior year estimates for these items resulted in an 
increase in net patient service revenues of $3,700 in 2013 and $6,000 in 2012. 

In 2013, UCMC recognized a gain of $2,400 related to the unwinding of the Weiss Liquidation Trust 
and received $16,000 in cash from the liquidation. In 2012, UCMC recognized a gain of $5,500 as 
a result of a favorable settlement with Medicare relating to the rural floor budget neutrality 
adjustment for fiscal years 1999 through 2011. UCMC recognized a gain of $21,000 in 2012 
relating to the flow through ofthe 1996 I ME and GM E FTE caps for years 2000 through 2011. 

The statement of operations includes e)(cess (deficft) of revenues over expenses. Changes In 
unrestricted net assets that are excluded from excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses inclUde 
transfers to the University, contributions of long-lived assets released from restrictions (including 
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for acquisition of 
UCMC assets), the effective portion of changes in the valuation of the interest rate swap, and 
pension benefit liabilities. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Net Patient Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
UCMC maintains agreements with the Social Security Administration under the Medicare Program, 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois, Inc. (Blue Cross), and the State of Illinois under the Medicaid 
Program and various managed care payors that govem payment to UCMC for services rendered to 
patlents covered by these agreements. The agreements generally provide for per case or per diem 
rates or payments based on allowable costs, subject to certain limitations, for inpatlent care and 
discounted charges or fee schedules for outpatient care. 

Net patient service revenue is reported al estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third­
party payors, and others for services rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue 
adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are 
considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services 
are rendered, and UCMC estimates are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known 
or as years are no longer subject to UCMC audits, reviews and investigations. Contracts, laws and 
regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross are complex and subject to 
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will 
change by a material amount in the near term. A portion of the accrual for settlements with third­
party payors has been classified as long-term because UCMC estimates they will not be paid within 
one year. 

The process for estimating the ultimate collectability of receivables Involves significant assumptions 
and judgment. UCMC has implemented a standardized approach to this estimation based on the 
payor classification and age of outstanding receivables. Account balances are written off against 
the allowance when management feels it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. The use 
of historical collection experience is an integral part of the estimation of the reserve for doubtful 
accounts. Revisions in the reserve for doubtful accounts are recorded as adjustments to the 
provision for doubtful accounts. 

Hospital Assessment Program/Medicaid Provider Tax 
In December 2008. the State of illinois, after receiving approval by the federal government. 
implemented a hospital assessment program. The program assessed hospitals a provider tax 
based on occupied bed days and provided increases in hospitals' Medicaid payments. The 
program results in a net increase of $28,300 in income from operations, which represents $55,000 
in additional Medicaid payments offset by $26,700 in Medicaid provider tax for 2013. For 2012. the 
assessment program resulted in a net increase of $30,300 in operating income. which represents 
$57,000 In additional Medicaid payments offset by $26,700 in Medicaid provider tax. 

Subsequent Events 
UCMC has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through October 10, 2013, which is that 
date the financial statements were issued. 

3. Agreements and Transactions with the University 

The Affiliation Agreement wijh the University provides, among other things, that all members of the 
medical staff will have academic appOintments in the University. The Affiliation Agreement has an 
initial term of 40 years ending October 1, 2026 unless sooner terminated by mutual consent or as a 
result of a continuing breach of a material obligation therein or in the Operating Agreement. The 
Affiliation Agreement automatically renews for additional successive 10-year terms following 
expiration of the initial term, unless either party provides the other with at least two years' prior 
written notice of fis election not to renew. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

The Operating Agreement, as amended, provides, among other things, that the University gives 
UCMC the right to use and operate certain facilities. The Operating Agreement is coterminous with 
the Affiliation Agreement. 

The Lease Agreements provide, among other things, that UCMC will lease from the University 
certain of the health care facilities and land that UCMC operates and occupies. The Lease 
Agreements are coterminous with the Affiliation Agreement. 

UCMC purchases various services from the University, including certain employee benefits, 
utilities, security. telecommunications and insurance. In addition, certain UCMC accounting 
records are maintained by the University. During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the 
University charged UCMC approximately $25,200 and $22,500, respectively, for utilities, security, 
telecommunications, insurance and overhead. 

The University's Division of Biological Sciences ("BSO") provides physician services to UCMC. In 
2013 and 2012, UCMC recorded approximately $192,000 and $185,000, respectively, in expense 
related to these services. 

UCMC's Board of Trustees adopted a plan of support under which it would provide annual net 
asset transfers to the University for support of academic programs in biology and medicine. All 
commitments under this plan are subject to the approval of UCMC's Board of Trustees and do not 
represent legally binding commitments until that approval. Unpaid portions of commitments 
approved by the UCMC Board of Trustees are reflected as current liabilities. UCMC recorded net 
asset transfers of $71,750 in 2013 and $63,000 in 2012 for this support. 

4. Community Benefits 

The unreimbursed cost of providing care under the Financial Assistance Policy, along with the 
un reimbursed cost of govemment sponsored indigent healthcare programs, unreimbursed cost to 
support education, clinical research and other community programs for the years ended 

" June 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows: 

Years Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

Uncompensated care: 
Medicaid sponsored indigent healthcare $ 49,623 $ 40,223 
Medicare sponsored Indigent healthcare - Cost Report 45,685 38,520 
Medicare sponsored indigent healthcare Physician Services 16,580 11,431 

Total uncompensated care 111,888 90,174 

Provision for doubtful accounts 12,270 11,995 
Charity care 25:676 20,310 

149,834 122,479 
Unreimbursed education and research: 

Education 86,157 81.735 
Research 48,000 48.000 

Total unreimbursed education and research 134,157 129,735 

Total community benefits $ 283,991 $ 252.214 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

The Medical Center determines the costs associated with providing charity care by aggregating the 

5. 

applicable direct and Indirect costs, including salaries, wages, and benefits, supplies, and other 
operating expenses, based on data from its costing system to determine a cost·to-charge ratio. 
The cost to charge ratio is applied to the charity care charge to calculate the charity care amount 
reported above. 

Investments Limited as to Use 

The composition of investments limited as to use is as follows at June 30: 

2013 
Endowments 

Separately 
Invested TRIP Other Total 

Imestments camed at fair '91ue: 
Cash Equiloalents $ 19,024 $ 13,250 $ 505 $ 32,779 $ 
Global Public Equities 79.915 95,132 175,047 
Private Debt 21,328 21.328 
Pri'lete Equity' 

U.S. Venture Capital 4,187 28,667 32,854 
U.S. Corporate Finance 32,022 32,022 
International 353 37,767 38,120 

Real Assets 
Real Estate 56,978 56,978 
Natural Resources 58,786 58,786 

Absolute Return 
Equity Oriented 38,155 38,155 
Global Macro/Relalile Value 35,143 35,143 
Multi-Strategy 50,457 50,457 
Credit-Oriented 16,376 16,376 
Volatlli1y-Orienled 11,227 11,227 

Fixed Income 
U S. Treasunes, including TIPS 66,151 38,718 104,869 
Other Fixed Income 4,162 76,209 80,371 

Funds in Trust 14,804 14,804 

Tolal In....astmenls $ 173,792 S 608,215 $ 15,309 $ 797,316 $ 

~nvestments classified as other consist of construction and debt proceeds to pay interest. donor 
restricted, worker's compensation, self·insurance, and trustee-held funds. Investments are 
presented in the financial statements as follows: 

Current portion of investments limited to use 
Investments limited to use, less current portion 

Total investments limited to use 
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$ 

2013 2012 

11 $ 27,033 
797,305 897,405 

797,316 ,;,$_..;9;.;02..;4'.;.43;.;;8;.... 

2012 

15,423 
235,444 

22,846 

33,916 
33,196 
40,233 

57,296 
59,953 

28,983 
40,235 
50,350 
11,214 
9.975 

149,665 
81,482 
54,223 

924,436 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

The composition of net investment Income Is as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2013 

Interest and dividend income; net $ 13,311 $ 
Realized gains on sales of securities 45,738 
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities 739 

$ 59,788 $ 

2012 

14.831 
23,970 

{13.9441 
24,857 

Outside of TRIP, UCMC also invests in private equity limited partnerships. As of June 30, 2013, 
UCMC has commitments of $1,711 remaining to fund private equity limited partnerships. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The overalfinvestment objective of the Medical Center is to invest its assets In a prudent manner 
that will achieve a long-term rate of retum sufficient to fund a portion of Its annual operating 
activities and increase investment value after inflation. The Medical Center diVersifies its 
investments among various asset classes Incorporating multiple strategies and external investment 
managers, including the Unlversity of Chicago Investment Office. Major investment decisions for 
investments held in TRIP and managed by the University are authorized by the University Board of 
Trustee's Investment Committee, which oversees the University's investment program in 
accordance with established guidelines. 

Cash equivalent investments include cash equivalents and fixed-income investments, with 
maturities of less than one year, which are valued based on quoted market prices In active 
markets. The majority ofthese investments are held in U.S. money market accounts. Global public 
equity investments consist of separate accounts, commingled funds with liquidity ranging from daily 
to monthly, and limited partnerships. Securities held in separate accounts and daily-traded 
commingled funds are generally valued based on quoted market prices In active markets. 
Commingled funds with monthly liquidity are valued based on independently determined NAV. 
Limited partnership interests in equity-oriented funds are valued based upon NAV provided by 
external fund managers. 

Investments in private debt, private equity, real estate, and natural resources are In the form of 
limited partnership interests, which typically Invest in private securities for which there is no readily 
determinable market value. In these cases, market value is determined by external managers 
based on a combination. of discounted cash flow analYSiS, industry comparables, and outside 
appraisals. Where private eqUity, real estate, and natural resources managers hold publicly traded 
securities, these securities are generally valued based on market prices. The value of the limited 
partnership interests are held at the manager's reported NAV, unless information becomes 
available indicating the reported NAV may require adjustment. The methods used by managers to 
assess the NAV of these external Investments vary by asset class. The University'S Investment 
Office on behalf of the Medical Center monitors the valuation methodologies and practices of 
managers. 

The absolute return portfolio is comprised of investments of limited partnership interests in hedge 
funds and drawdown private equity style partnerships whose managers have the authority to invest 
in various asset classes at their discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. The 
majority of the underlying holdings are marketable securities. The remainder of the underlying 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

holdings Is held in marketable securities that trade Infrequently or in private investments, which are 
valued by the manager on the basis of an appraised value, discounted cash flow, Industry 

. comparables, or some other method. Most hedge funds that hold illiquid investments designate 
them in special side pockets, which are subject to special .restrictions on redemption. 

Fixed-Income investments consist of directly held aelively traded treasuries, separately managed 
accounts, commingled funds, and bond mutual funds that hold securities, the majority ofwhlcll 
have maturities greater than one year. These are valued based on quoted market prices in active 
markets. 

Funds in trust investments consist primarily of project construction funds, worker's compensatlon 
trust funds, and extemally managed endowments. 

The Medical Center believes that the reported amount of its investments Is a reasonable estimate 
offair value as of June 30, 2013 and 2012. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, 
these estimated fair values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a 
ready market existed. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

Quoted Significant 
Prices In Other Significant 

Active Observable Unobservable 2D13 
Markets Inputs Inputs Total 
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value 

Assets 

Investments: 
Cash Equivalents $ 32.179 $ $ $ 32,179 
Global Pubfic EquiUes 95,960 50,134 28,953 175,047 
Private Debt 21,328 21,328 
Private Equity 

U.S. Venlure Gapital 32,854 32,854 
U.S. Corporate Finance 32,022 32,022 
International 38,120 38,120 

Real Assets 
Real Estate 56,978 56.978 
Natural Resources 58.786 58.786 

Absolute Retum 
EqUity Oriented 6,369 6.169 23.617 36,155 
Global Macro/Relative Value 6,125 5,740 23,278 35,143 
Multi-Strategy 2,666 47,791 50,457 
CredH-Orienled 16.376 16,376 
Volatil~y-Orlented 11,227 11,227 

Fixed Income 
U.S. TreaSuries. including TIPS 58.129 46,740 104,869 
Other Fixed Income 9,892 70,479 80,371 

FlIIlds In Trust 14,804 14,804 

Total investments 224,058 193,155 380,103 797,316 

Other assets 3,045 3,045 

Total assets at fair value $ 2271103 $ 1931155 $ 360,103 $ 800,361 

lIabllHies 

Interest rate swap payable $ $ 88,769 $ 88,769 

Total liabilities at fair value $ $ 88,769 $ $ 88,769 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 

thousands of 

Quoted Slgniflcant 
Prices In Other Significant 

Active Observable Unobservable 2012 
Markets Inputs Inputs Totel 
CLevel1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value 

Assets 

Investments: 
Cash Equivalents $ 15,422 $ $ :$ 15.422 
Global Public Equities 125.953 72,601 36,691 235,445 
Private Debt 22,646 22.846 
Private Equity 

U.S. Venture Capital 33.916 33.916 
U.S. Corporate Finance 33,196 33.196 
Internationat 40.232 40.232 

Real Assets 
Real Estate 57,2ge 57,296 
Natural Resources 59,953 59.953 

Absolute Retum 
Equity Oriented 5,726 5,448 17.806 26,964 
Global MacroiRelabve Value 5.764 5,536 26,933 40.235 
Multi-Strategy 50,350 50.350 
Credit.()riented 11,214 11,214 
Volatility-Oriented 9,975 9,975 

Fixed tnccme 
U.S. Treasuries. Including TIPS 74.678 74.787 149,665 
Other Fixed Income 61,482 61,482 

Funds In Trust 54,223 54,223 

T olal investments 363.450 168,549 392,439 924,436 

Other assets 41,560 41,560 

Totat assets at lair value $ 405,030 $ 168,549 $ 392,439 $ 966,018 

Liabilities 

Interest rate swap payable $ :$ 135,672 $ 135,872 

T otalliabililies at fair v Blue $ 135
1
872 $ :$ 135,872 

During 2013 there were no transfers between Investment Levels 1 and 2. During fiscal year 2013 
and 2012, transfers occurred between investment levels 2 and 3 as a result of changes In . 
observable market data. Changes to the reported amounts of investments m~asured at fair value 
using unobservable inpuls (Level 3) as of June 30. 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Separately Invested 2013 
Invested In TRIP Total 

Fair value, July 1, 2012 $ 6,233 $ 386,206 $ 392,439 
Realized gains 33,429 33,429 
Unrealized gains (losses) 166 (23,415) (23,249) 
Purchases 29,498 29,498 
Sales (1,859) (50,278) (52,137) 
Transfers 123 123 

Fair value, June 30, 2013 $ 4.540 $ 375.563 $ 380,103 

Separately Invested 2012 
Invested in TRIP Total 

Fair value, July 1, 2011 $ 7,510 $ 366,077 $ 373,587 
Realized gains 18 23,569 23,587 
Unrealized gains (losses) 297 (3,815) (3.518) 
Purchases 80 48,080 48,180 
Sales (1,672) (50,008) (51,680) 
Transfers 2,303 2,303 

Fair value, June 30, 2012 $ 6,233 $ 386,206 $ 392,439 

The interest rate swap arrangement has Inputs which can generally be corroborated by market 
data and Is therefore- classified within level 2" 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be Indicative of 
" net realizable value or reflective offuture fair values. Furthermore, while UCMC believes its 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments 
could result in a different estimate'offair value at the reporting date. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of UCMC's long-lived 
partnership investments include a combination of cost, discounted cash flow analysis, industry 
comparables and outside appraisals. Significant increases (decreases) In any inputs used by 
investment managers in determining net asset values In isolation would result in a significantly 
lower (higher) fair value measurement. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

UCMC has made investments In various long-lived partnerships and, in other cases, has entered 
into contractual agreements that may limit its ability to Initiate redemptions due to notice periods, 
lockups and gates. Details on typical redemption terms by asset class and type of investment are 
provided below: 

Redemption Redemption 

Restrictions ~estrictlons In Place 

RemainIng Life RedemptIon Terms and terms at June 30, 2013 

Casl! NlA Daily None None 

Global PubliC Equity: 

Separate accounts N/A Daily None None 

Commingled funds N/A Daily to monthly with None None 

notice periods of 

1 to 14 days 

Partnerships N/A Quarterly to annually Lock-Up provisions None 

with notice periods ranging from 0 to 

of 30 to 180 days 5 years, some 

investments have a 

portion Of capital in 

side pockets with no 

redemptions 

permitted 

Private debt 1 to 10 years Redemptions not NlA N/A 
permilted 

Private equity 11019 years Redemptions N/A N1A 

not permitted 

Real assets lto 18 years Redemptions N1A N1A 
not Permitted 

Absolute return: 

Pannerships NIA Monthly to annually Lock-Up provisions Approximately 

witl! varying nolice ranging from 0 to 5 $46.5 million of 

periods investments have a Investments 

portion of capital In are In gated or 

side pockets with no liquidating 

redemptions lunds 

permilled 

Drawdown partnerships j to 4 years Redemptions NlA N1A 

not permilled 

Fixed Income: 

Separate accounts N1A Daily None None 

Commingled funds N1A Daily None None 

Partnerships N1A Quarterly with notice Only one-third capital None 

periods 01 90 days avaUable in any 
12-month period 

Funds held In trust NIA Daily None None 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

6. 

thousands of 

Endowments 

UCMC's endowment consists of individual donor restricted endowment funds and board­
designated endowment funds for a variety of purposes plus the following where the assets have 
been designated for endowment: pledges receivable, split interest agreements, and other net 
assets. The endowment Includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by 
the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. The net assets associated with endowment 
funds including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are 
classifled and reported based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. 

Illinois is governed by the ·Uniform Prudent Management of Instijutional Funds Act" (UPMIFA). 
The Board of Trustees of UCMC has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the preservation of the 
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. As a result ofthis interpretation, UCMC classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the 
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the 
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift 
Instrument at the time the accumUlation Is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor­
restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classifled as 
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by UCMC in 
a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. 

UCMC has the follOWing donor-restricted endowment activities during the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012 delineated by net asset class: 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

Unrestricted 
Funds Temporarily Permanently 2013 

Functioning Restricted Restricted Total 

Endowment net assets. 
beginning of year $ 796.105 $ 67.279 $ 6.072 $ 869,456 

Investment retum: 
Investment income 38,437 3.518 41.955 
Net appreciation 

(realized and unrealized) 21.351 1,086 22,437 
Total investment return 59,788 4,604 64.392 

Gifts and other additions 25,000 10 25.010 

Appropriation of 
endowment assets 
for expenditure (37.037) {3.610) (40,647) 

Appropriation of 
endowment assets 
for capital (134.707) (134,707) 

Other (1,859) 361 (1,498) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of year $ 707,290 $ 68,634 $ 6,082 $ 782,006 

Unrestricted 
Funds Temporarily Permanently 2012 

Functioning Restricted Restricted . Total 

Endowment net assets, 
beginning of year $ 810,184 $ 67.857 $ 6,072 $ 884,113 

Investment return: 
Investment income 36,192 3,140 39.332 
Net appreciation 

(realized and unrealized) (11,335) (305) (11,640) 
Total investment return 24.857 2,835 27.692 

Appropriation of 
endowment assets 
for expenditure (37.343) (3,792) (41,135) 

Other (1,593) 379 (1.214) 

Endowment net assets, 
end of year $ 796,105 $ 67,279 $ 6,072 $ 869.456 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) 

DescripUon of amounts classified as permanently restricted net assets and temporarily restricted 
net assets (Endowments only) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Tlme- Tlme-
Restricted Restricted 2013 

Perpetual by Donor bylaw Total 

Restricted for pediatlic health care $ 1,855 $ $ 15,580 $ 17,435 
Restricted for adult health care 1,925 50,715 52,640 
Restricted for educational and 

scientific programs 2,312 2,339 4,651 
$ 6,092 $ $ 68,634 $ 74,726 

Time- Tlme-
Restricted Restricted 2012 

Perpetual by Donor bylaw Total 

Restricted for pediatric heallh care $ 1,835 $ $ 15,273 $ 17,108 
Restricted for adult health care 1,925 49,751 51,676 
Restricted for educational and 

scientific programs . 2,312 2,255 4,567 
$ 6,072 $ $ 67,279 $ 73,351 

Investment and Spending Policies 
UCMC has adopted endowment investment and spending pOlicies that attempt to provide a 
predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain 
the purchasing power of endowment assets. UCMC expects its endowment funds over time, to 
provide an average rate of return of approximately 6% annually. To achieve its long-term rate of 
return objectives, UCMC relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved 
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 

For endowments Invested in TRIP. the Board of Trustees of UCMC has adopted the UniverSity's 
method to be used to appropriate endowment funds for expenditure, Including following the 
University'S payout formula. The University utilizes the total return concept in allocating 
endowment Income. [n accordance with the University's total return objective. between 4.5% and 
5.5% of a 12-quarter moving average of the fair value of endowment Investments, lagged by one 
year. is available each year for expenditure In the form of endowment payout. The exact payout 
percentage, which is set each year by the Board of Trustees with the objective of a 5% average 
payout over time, was 5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. If endowment 
income received is not sufficient to support the total return objective, the balance Is provided from 
capital gains. If income received Is in excess of the objective, the balance is reinvested in the 
endowment. 

For endowments Invested apart from TRIP, UCMC calculates a payout of 4% annually on a rolling 
24-month average market value. In establishing this policy, the Board considered the expected 
long term rate of return on its endowment. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

7. Property, Plant and Equipment 

The components of property, plant and equipment as of June 30 are as follows: 

2013 

Land and land rights $ 36,008 $ 
Buildings and improl.ements 1,255,542 
Equipment 576.374 
Construction in progress 74,688 

1,942,612 

Less apcumulated depreciation (752,989) 

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,189,623 $ 

2012 

36,008 
649,565 
479,832 
610,211 

1,775,616 

(709. 122) 

1,066.494 

UCMC's net property, plant and equipment cost includes $10,600 representing assets under capital 
leases with the University, which are stated al the UCMC's historical cost. The cost of buildings 
that are jOintly used by the University and UCMC is allocated based on the lease provisions. In 
addltion, land and land rights includes $19,200, which represents the unamortized portion of initial 
lease payments made to the University. UCMC entered into a services agreement In 2013 for the 
exclusive right to operate certain food service operations at the Medical Center, which Includes a 
capital commitment in the amount of $11,800 for eqUipment and renovations provided by the 
contractor. The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2013 was $11,300. 

The Center for Care and Discovery was placed into service in 2013; approximately $134,800 was 
spent In 2013 related to the building. In 2013 and 2012, approximately $0 and $16.800 were 

. capitalized related to software implementation of an electronic medical records system. 

Capitalized interest costs In 2013 and 2012 were $14,600 and $10,000, respectively. 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30. 2013 and 2012 

a, 

thousands of 

Long-Term Debt 

Long-teon debt as of June 30 consists of the following: 

Flna! fiscal 
)!eaf maturt~ Inferell! rate 2013 2012 

Fixed rate: 
Illinois Health Facilities Authority: 

Series ZOO3 2015 5.0 $ 14,530 $ 21,235 
Qlincis Finance Authority: 

Series 2009A and B 2027 4.9 150,1140 152,350 
Series 2009C 2037 5.4 85,000 65,000 
Series 2009()'1 and 2 (synthetically fixed rate) 2044 3.9 70,000 70,000 
Series 2009E-l and 2 (synthetically lixed rate) 2044 3.9 70,000 70,000 
Series 2010 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 3.9 92,500 92.500 
Series 2011 A and B (synthetically fixed rate) 2045 3.9 92,500 92.500 
Sertes 2011C 2042 5.5 SO.OOO 90,000 
Senes 2012A 2037 4.5 72,080 75.155 

Unamortized premium 11,163 12,528 

Total fixed rate 748,613 761,268 

Variable rate: 
Series 2013A 2020 1.0 686 
Ufinois Educational Faclilties Authority (IE FA) 2038 0.2 81,427 83,277 

Total \enable rate 82,113 83,277 

Total nales and bonds payable 830,726 844,545 

Less current portion of long·lerm debt (10.385) (11,290) 

Long-term portion of debt I> 820,341 S 833.255 

The fair value of long-term debt is based on the pricing of fixed-rate bonds of market participants, 
including assumptions about the present value of current market interest rates, and loans of 
comparable quality and maturity. The fair value of long-term debt would be a Level 2 hierarchy. 
The carrying value of long-term debt is below the estimated fair value of the debt by $10,729 and 
$34,439 as of June 30, 2013 and June 30,2012, respectively. based on the quoted market prices 
for the same or similar issues. 

Scheduled annual repayments for the next five years are as follows at June 30; 

Year Arrount 
2014 $ 10,385 
2015 10.050 
2016 12,778 
2017 13,255 
2018 13,868 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

~: ... 

Under its various indebtedness agreements, the Medical Center is subject to certain financial 
covenants, including maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio, maintaining minimum 
levels of days cash on hand, maintaining debt to capitalization at certain levels; limitations on 
seiling, leasing, or otherwise disposing of Medical Center property; and certain other nonfinancial 
covenants. Each of the bond series is collateralized by unrestricted receivables under a Master 
Trust Indenture and subject to certain restrictions. the Medical Center was in compliance with its 
debt covenants as of June 30. 2013 and 2012. 

Recent Financing Activity 

In January 2013, the Medical Center entered into an issuance of a tax-exempt direct purchase loan 
with a financial institution, issued as $75.000 of Series 2013A bonds, allocated to the Medical 
Center for the purpose of constructing a new parking garage. This bond functions similar to a 
construction loan with principal being drawn down as construction proceeds. Interest at USOR 
plus 60 basis points is payable each month based on the outstanding principal balance. A 
mandatory purchase date of repayment is established for January 24, 2020. 

Letters of Credit 

Payment on each of the variable rate demand revenue bonds Is also collateralized by a letter of 
credit. The letters of credit that support the Series 20090 and the Series 2009E bonds were due to 
expire in August 2012. The Medical Center replaced the leiter of credit that supports the Series 
2oo9D bonds with a new letter of credit in June 2012, which expires in June 2017. The letter of 
credit that supports the 2009E bonds was extended subsequent to June 30,2012 and now expires 
in December 2014. The letters of credit that support the Series 2010A and Series 20108 bonds 
expire in November 2015 and the letters of credit that support the SerIes 2011A and Series 2011 B 
bonds expire in May 2016. The letters of credit are subject to certain restrictions, whiCh include 
financial ratio requirements and consent to future indebtedness. The most restrictive financial ratio 
is to maintain a debt service coverage rallo of 1.25:1. UCMC was in compliance with a/t applicable 
debt covenants at June 30, 2013. 

Payment on each of the IEFA bonds is collateralized by a letter of credit maturing November 2014. 
The letter of credit is subject to certain restrictions, which include financial ratio requirements. The 
most restrictive financial ratio is to maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.75:1. UCMC was in 
compliance with all applicable debt covenants at June 30, 2013. 

Included in UCMC's debt is $81,427 of commercial paper revenue notes and $325,000 of variable 
rate demand bonds. In the event that UCMC's remarketing agents are unable to remarket the 
bonds, the frustee of the bonds will tender them under the letters of credit. Scheduled repayments 
under the letters of credit are between 1 and 3 years, beginning after a grace period of at least one 
year, and bear interest rates different from those associated with the original bond issue. Any 
bonds tendered are stm eligible to be remarketed. Bonds subsequently remarketed would be 
subject to the original bond repayment schedules. 

UCMC paid interest, net of capitalized Interest, of approximately $18,300 and $13,000 In 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

UCMC has a $15,000 line of cr~dlt from a commercial bank. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, no 
amount was outstanding under this line. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

9. Commitments 

Leases 
UCMC has capital and noncancelable operating leases for certain buildings and equipment. Future 
minimum payments required under noncancelable operating and capftalleases as of June 30 are 
as follows: 

Operating Capital 

2014 $ 2,232 $ 303 
2015 2,074 172 
2016 2,102 
2017 548 
2018 and thereafter 6,808 
Total minimum lease payments $ 13,764 475 

Less - Amount representing interest 11 

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments $ 464 

The amount of total assets capitalized under these leases at June 30, 2013 and 2012, is $3,000 
and $3,200 with related accumulated depreciation of $2,400 and $2,100, respectively. Rental 
expense was approximately $5.500 and $4,700 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. including a $500 annual rental of a parking garage from the University. 

10. Insurance 

UCMC is included under certain of the University's insurance programs. Since 1977. UCMC. in 
conjunction with the University. has maintained a self-insurance program for its medical 
malpractice liability. This program is supplemented with commercial excess insurance above the 
University's self-insurance retention, which for the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012 was 
$7,500 per claim and unlimited in the aggregate. Claims in excess of $7.500 are subject to an 
additional self-insurance retention limited to $12.500 per claim and $12.500 in aggregate. 

The estimated liability for medical malpractice self-Insurance is actuarially determined based upon 
estlmated claim reserves and various assumptions. and represents the estimated present value of 
self·insurance claims that will be settled in the future. It considers anticipated payout patterns as 
weil as interest to be earned on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used 10 valUe 
the self-insurance lIabliity is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with the duration of anticipated 
payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate of the liability are considered Level 2 in the fair 
value hierarchy. 

A comparison of the estimated liability for incurred malpractice claims (filed and not filed) and net 
assets for the combined University and UCMC se:f-insurance program as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012. is presented below; 

ActuaJial present value of self-insurance liability 
for medical malpractice 

Total assets available for claims 

26 

000127 

$ 

$ 

2013 2012 

254,328 ,;,.$ _...;;;2~46-., 7.-00-.. 

352,414 $ ...... __ 3 ... 30-..4...;3 ... 1_ 



The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

If the present-value method w~re not used, the ultimate liability for medical malpractice self­
insurance claims would be approximately $47,200 higher at June 30, 2013. The interest rate 
assumed in determining the present value was 4.5% for 2013 and 3.75% for 2012. The Medical 
Center has recorded its pro-rata share of the malpractice self-Insurance liability as required under 
ASU 2010-24 in the amount of $121 ,300 at June 30, 2013 and $118,153 at June 30, 2012 with an 
offsetting receivable from the malpractice trust to cover any related claims. 

The malpractlce self-Insurance trust assets consist primarily of funds held in TRIP. 

UCMC recognizes as malpractice expense its negotiated pro-rata share of the actuarjally 
determined normal contribution, with gains and losses amortized over six years, with no retroactive 
adjustments, as provided in the operating agreement. For fiscal year 2014, the Medical Center 
expense will be $15,300 related to malpractice. 

UCMC designated $14,800 and $12,400 as of June 30. 2013 and 2012, respectively, as a workers' 
compensation self-insurance reserve trust fund. The self-insurance program investments consist 
of 65% bonds and 35% marketable equities. The specifically identified claim reqUirements and 
actuarially determined reserve requirements for unreported workers' compensation claims were 
$9,500 and $8,200 as of June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. The University also charges 
UCMC for its portion of other commercial insurance and self-Insurance costs. 

11. Pension Plans 

Active Plans 
A majority of UCMC's personnel participate In the University's defined benefit and contribution 
pension plan. Under the defined benefit portion of this plan, benefits are based on years of service 
and the employee's compensation for the five highest paId consecutive years within the last ten 
years of employment UCMC and the University make annual contributions to this portion of the 
plan at a rate necessary to maintain plan funding on an actuarially recommended basis. UCMC 
recognizes its share of net periodic penSion cost as expense and any difference in the contribution 
amount as a transfer of unrestricted net assets. The reduction to net assets for 2013 was $2,800. 
Contributions of $32,500 and $52,700 were made in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. UCMC expects to make contributions of $32,500 for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014 that will be entirely expensed as net periodic pension costs. 

Under the defined contribution portion of the plan, UCMC and plan partlclpants make contrlbutions 
that accrue to the benefit of the participants at retirement. UCMC's contributions, which are based 
on a percentage of each covered employee's salary, totaled approximately $6,400 and $6,100 for 
the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Plan Name ErN Contributions of UCMC 

2013 

Unil.ersity of Chicago Retirement Income Plan for Employees 36·2177139-002 $ 6.711 $ 

Unil.ersity of Chicago Pension Plan for Staff Employees 36-2177139-003 25.789 
$ 32.500 $ 

The benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status for the University's defined 
benefit plan included In the University's financial statements as of June 30, are shown below: 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(in thousands of dollars) . 

Projected benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit of plan assets owr benefit obligation 

2013 2012 

$ 795,133 $ 780,797 
557,966 496,657 

$ (237,167) .;...$ __ (2_84...:,_14...:0) ... 

The weighted-average assumptions used in the accounUng for the plan are shown below: 

Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate of com pensation increase 

The weighted average asset allocatlon for the plan Is as follows: 

Domestic equities 
International equity 
Fixed income 

2013 

4.9% 
7.0% 
3.5% 

2013 
29 % 

15 % 

100% 

2012 

4.5% 
7.1% 
3.5% 

2012 
27 % 

16 % 
57% 

100 % 

The pension and other postretirement benefit obligation considers antlcipated payout patterns as 
well as investment retums on available assets prior to payment. The discount rate used to value 
the pension and other postretirement benefit obligation Is a risk-adjusted rate commensurate with 
the duration of antiCipated payments. These inputs to the fair value estimate are considered Level 
2 In the fair value hierarchy. 

Total benefits and plan expenses paid by the plan were $36,200 and $32,200 for the fiscal years 
ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Expected future benefit payments excluding plan expenses are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019-2023 

42.109 
37,761 
40,072 
42,672 
45,160 

265,818 

Certain UCMC personnel partiCipate In a contributory pension plan. Under this plan, UCMC and 
plan participants make annual contributions to purchase annuities equivalent to retirement benefits 
earned. UCMC's pension expense for this plan was $4,900 and $5,000 for the years ended 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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thousands of 

Curtailed and Frozen Plan 
In June 2002, UCMC assumed sponsorship of the Louis A. Weiss Memorial Hospital Pension Plan 
(Employer Identification Number 36-3488183, Plan Number 003), which covers employees of a 
former affiliate. Participation and benefit accruals are frozen. All benefit accruals are fully vested. 

Components of net periodic pension cost and other amounts recognized In unrestricted net assets 
Include the following: 

Years Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

Net periodic pension cost 
Interest cost $ 2,340 $ 2,719 
Expected return on plan assets (2.860) (2,921) 
Amortization of unrecognized 
net actuarial loss 817 684 

Net periodic pension cost 297 482 

Other changes in plan assets and benefil obligations 
recognized in unrestricted nel assets 
Uability for pension benefits 3,878 (2,659) 

Total recognized in net periodiC pension cost and 
unrestricted net assets $ (3,581) $ 3.141 

The following tables set forth additional required pension disclosure information for thIs plan: 

Years Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

Change in projected benefit obligation 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 58,098 $ 55,219 
Interest cost 2,340 2.719 
Net actuarial loss (gain) (3,029) 3,425 
Benefits paid (3,319) (3,264) 

54,090 58,099 

Change in plan assets 
Fair value of plan assets at b~ginning of year 47,696 41,717 
Actual return on plan assets 2,892 3,003 
Employer contribution 1,091 6.240 
Benefits paid (3.319) (3,264) 

48,360 47,696 

Funded status at end of year $ (5,730) $ (10.403) 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet are included in noncurrent liabilities. 

Accumulated plan benefits equal projected plan benefits. Assumptions used in the accounting for 
the net periodic pension cost were as follows: 
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12. 

Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

Weighted average asset allocations for plan assets are as fonows: 

2013 

4.8% 
6.0% 

NfA 

2013 

Cash 2% 
Fixed income 51 
Domestic equities 34 
International equities 13 

100 % 

2012 

4.2% 
6.0% 

NlA 

2012 

8% 
53 
28 
11 

100 % 

All plan assels are valued using level 1 inputs. The target asset allocation is 40% equities and 
BO% fixed income. The expected return on plan assets is based on historical investment returns 
for similar investment portfolios. 

UCMC expects to make contributions of $1,500 to the plan in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. 
Expected future benefit payments are: 

Fiscal Year 

2014 $ 3,565 
2015 3,547 
2016 3,535 
2017 3,535 
2016 3,559 
2019-2023 16,20B 

Acquisitions 

On September 30, 2011, the Medical Center entered into an Asset Purchase Agreemenl, whereby 
the Medical Center acquired the operations of Midwest Center for Hematology/Oncology, S,C. a 
professional service corporation that specializes In oncology. The purchase price was $2,B07 and 
there are no earn-out provisions with the agreements. The acquisition is accounted for under the 
purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the cost has been allocated on the baSis of 
estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. This resulted in $746 of the 
purchase price being allocated to goodwill and $905 being allocated to non-compete agreements. 
The non-compete agreements are amortized over a 5 year period. 

13. Concentration of Credit Risk 

As a hospital, UCMC is potentially subject to concentration of credit risk from patient accounts 
receivable and certain investments. Investments, which include government and agency 
securities. stocks, corporate bonds, real assets. absolute return, and private equities, are not 
concentrated in any corporation or Industry or with any single counter-party. UCMC receives a 
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The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

significant portion of its payments for services rendered from a limited number of government and 
commercial third-party payors, Including Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross. For 2013 and 2012, 
Medicaid approximated 15% and 17% of the Medical Center's net revenue for the year. Medicaid 
represented 16% and 30% of UCMC's net accounts receivable at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Management does not anticipate any collection risk related to the Medicaid accounts 
receivable at June 30, 2013. UCMC has not historically incurred any Significant credit losses 
outside the normal course of business. 

14 •. Pledges 

Pledges receivable at June 30 are shown below: 

Unconditional promises expected to be collected in: 
Less than one year 
One year to fil.e years 
More than five years 

Less unamortized discount (discount rate 5.5%) 

Total 

15. Restricted Net Assets 

$ 

$ 

2013 2012 

2,272 $ 4,959 
2,634 6,001 

4,906 10.960 
(197) (527) 

4,709 $ 10,433 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes as of June 30: 

Pediatric health care 
Adult health care 
Educational and scientific programs 
Capital and other purposes 

Total 

Income from permanently restricted net assets Is restricted for: 

Pediatric health care 
Adult health care 
Educational and scientific programs 

Total 
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2013 2012 

$ 17,943 $ 17.751 
51.756 50,743 

4,691 4,187 
7.581 22,664 

$ 81,971 $.:..-_.;.95-.,34.;...;..;5_ 

2013 2012 

$ 1,855 $ 1,845 
1,925 1,935 
2,312 2,312 

$ 6,092 ... $_......;;.6:.;..09;;.;;;2_ 



The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 
(In thousands of dollars) 

16. Functional Expenses 

17. 

Tolal operating expenses by function are as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2013 2012 

Health care services $ 1,177,672 $ 1,103,904 
General and adminrstrathe 80,938 66,819 

Totar $ 1,258,610 $ 1,170,723 

Contingencies 

UCMC is subject to complaints, claims and litigation which have risen in the normal course of 
business. In addition, UCMC is subject to reviews by various federal and state govemment 
agencies to assure compliance with applicable laws, some of which are subject to different 
interpretations. While the outcome of these suits cannot be determined at this time, management, 
based on advice from legal counsel, believes that any loss which may arise from these actions will 
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of UCMC. 
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Section IX, Financial Viability 

Attachment 38 

Evidence ofUCMC's most recent bond ratings from Standard & Poor (AA-) and Moody's (Aa3) 
is attached. 

ATTACHMENT 38 
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MO~ODY$ 
INVESTORS SERVICE 

November 8, 2013 

Mr. Jall1es Watson 
Chief Financial Officer 
The University of Chicago Medical Center 
Room M-115. MC I II I 
5841 S. Maryland 
Chicago, IL 60637-0970 

Dear Mr. Walson: 

'7 \'i'url,1 Tr.hl~ Cellt<'i 
!'iU (;IW1\\·kh_.~m~~! 
NcwYnrl;. NY-WIlO: 
\\' \\'W. Ull ultiy., . .cnUl 

We wish 10 inlonn you that Moody's Investors Service has affililled The University of Cbicago Medical 
Ccntcr's Aal rating on bonds issued through the Illinois Finance Authority and lIJinois Health facilities 
Authority. The outlook is "(wised tu I1cglllive. 

Moody's will monitor this rating and reserves Ihe right, III its sole discretion, 10 revise or withdraw this 
rating alany time. 

Thc rating as well as any other re\'isions or withdrawals thereof will be publicly disseminated by Moody's 
through the nornlal print and electronic Illedia and in response 10 verbal requests to Moody's rating desk. 

In order for us 10 maintain the currency of ollr rating, we request Ihot you provide ongoing disclosure, 
including annual and quarterly financial and statistical informatioll. 

Should you have any questions regarding the above, please do no! hesitate to contact me_ 

Sincerely, 

Mark Pascoris 
Vice President/Senior Analyst 
Phone: 312-706·9963 
Fax: 212·298·6377 
Email: mark.pascaris@moodys.com 

MP:rl 

cc: Ms. Ann McColgan. Vice President & ClliefTrcasury Officer, The University of Chicago Medicine 
Mr. Mark Melio, Melio & Company 
Ms. Beth Chevalier, Melio & Company 
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STANDARD 
& PO 0 R'S 
RATINGS SERVIces 

", -... 

Ratings'Direct® 

Illinois Finance Authority 
University of Chicago Medical Center; 
Hospital; Joint Criteria 
Primary Credit Analyst: 
Brian T Williamson. Chicago (\) 312·233· 7009;brian.williamson@standardandpoors.com 

Secondary Contact: 
Suzie R Desai. Chicago (I) 312·233-7046; suzie.desai@standardandpoors.com 

Table Of Contents 
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Financial Profile 

Related Criteria And Research 
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Illinois Finance Authority 
University of Chicago Medical Center; Hospital; 
Joint Criteria 

Rationale 

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services affirmed its 'M-' long-term rating and underlying rating (SPUR) on the llIinois 

Finance Authority's (IFA) series 2003, 2009A, 2009B, 2009C, 20090, 2009E, 201lC. and 2012A bonds issued on behalf 

of the University of Chicago Medical Center (UCMC). The outlook is stable. 

In addition, Standard & Poor's affumed its 'AMI A-l' rating on IFA's series 2009E·l and 2009E-2 variable-rate 

demand revenue refunding bonds also issued on behalf of UCMC. The rating on the series 2009£- t and 2009£-2 is 

based on the joint support of irrevocable, direct-pay letters of credit (LOCs) provided by JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 

(A+I A-I) and the pledged support of UCMC. 

The ratings reflect our view ofUCMC's solid enterprise profile, as evident in admissions growth of more than 10% 

during the past two years coupled with solid operations for unaudited fiscal 2013. The ratings also reflect our view of 

UCMC leadership's ability to complete the construction and opening of the Center for Care and Discovery on time and 

on budget. As the leadership has made the transition into the new hospital. UCMC operations have been on par with 

what the team shared with us for fiscal 2013. However. UCMC's budget calls for a softer fiscal 2014 after accounting 

for the expenses associated with operating the Center for Care and Discovery for a full fiscal year. If UCMC performs 

at the budgeted level for 2014, the outlook andlor rating could come under pressure. 

The ratings further reflect our opinion of UCMC's: 

WWW.STANDAIlDANDPOORS.COM/J\A TJNGSDJlI.ECT OCTOBER 8, 20t3 2 
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Section X, Economic Feasibility 

Attachment 39 

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements. 
A letter attesting to the financial viability of the Project is attached along with a list of the 
cost and gross square feet by department or service. 

B. Conditions of Debt Financing. 
This Project is being paid for through cash and securities and therefore, this criteria is not 
applicable. . 

C R . easona bl eness 0 fP . t d R ltd C t rOlee an e a e os s . 
COST AND GROSS SQl)ARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE 

Department A 
Cost/Sq . 

. (list below) Foot 

New 

Reviewable: 

Outpatient Clinics $264.79 

Infusion Therapy 264.79 

Radiation Oncology . 305.00 • 

Diagnostic Imaging· 305.00 

Shelled 4th Floor 114.79 

Reviewable Total $222.38 

NOD-reviewable: 
Mechanical, Other 
Bldg. Systems 227.67 

Administrative I 236.96 

Space to be Leased 114.79 

Parking Deck 16.05 

Non-reviewable Total $103.75 

Contingency $13.56 

TOTALS $156.30 

State $/SF Standard - 4/14/14: From 
Board staff 
State $Isf 111/14 $410 
Zip code adjustment 
60462 1.Q300 
Inflation to 11/29115 
midpoint 

Weighted Intensity 

Adjusted Slsf standard 
Reviewable $lsfTotal 
Project 
Clinical+Conting. only 

1.0582 

0.7971 

$356 
$222 

$264 

B I C D I E F I G 

Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ 

I Mod. New Circ. Mod Circ. fA x'C) 

34,321 27% $9,087,936 

7,766 18% 2,056,285 

5,994 18% 1,828,161 

8,995 17% 2,743,461 

28,1 4% 3,226,006 

85,179 17% 18,941,849 

22,009 35% 5,010,910 

5,800 5% 1,374,417 

14,196 na 1,629,590 

132000 na 10,038,560 

174,006 28% 18,053,477 

3,514,556 

259,184 17% $40,509,882 

Calculated by applicant 

H I Total 

Mod. $ Costs 

(B x E) (G+H) 

$9,087,936 ! 

2,056285 

1,828,161 

2,743,461 

3,226,006 

18,941,849 

5,010,910 

1 374,417 

1,629,590 

10,038,560 

18,053,477 

3,514,556 

$40,509,882 

ATTACHMENT 39 

000138 



D. Project Operating Costs. 

Diagnostic 
Imaging 

Compensation 1,333,006 
Supplies 531,327 
Services and Other 724,980 
Total Operating Costs 2,589,313 

Workload Units 55,481 

Annual Operating Cost Per Unit $47 

2014 dollars 

E. Total Effect of Project on Capital Costs. 

Annual Depreciation 
Equivalent Patient Days 
Capital Cost Per Equivalent Day 

000139 

Radiation 
Oncolo~ 

718,624 
69,377 

1,364,976 
2,152,977 

7,500 

$287 

Year 2018 
$4,319,524 

541,077 
$7.98 

Outpatient Infusion 
Clinics Thera~ 

31,492,800 1,221,090 
7,041,600 10,936,910 
2,523,200 1,066,859 

41,057,600 13,224,859 

160,000 10,440 

$257 $1,267 
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" THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 

May 20,2014 

Ms. Courtney Avery 

Administrator 
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD 

James M. Watson 
Chief Financial Offu:er 

Re: The University of Chicago Medical Center, Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements 
1120.140(a)(1) 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

The total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents. 

Available for funding this project, as of June 30, 2013 audited financial statements is $164.5 million from 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and $797.3 million from Investments Limited to Use, Less Current Portion. 

Sincerely, 

THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER 

~~ ames Watson 
Chief Financial Officer 

000140 

Notarization: 
Subscribed .ijnd,1worn to before me 

This _cA_O't"Q_ ay of May, 2014 

C~~ 
Signature of Notary Public Seal 

"OFFICIAL SEAL" 
CASSANDRA COLE 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 8/312017 

5841 South Maryland Avenue • MC 1000' Chicago, Illinois 60637 
Telephone: 773·834·7243' Fax: 773·702·9005' E·mail: James.Watson@uchospitals.edu 



Section IX, Safety Net Impact Statement 

Attachment 40 

1. The Project's material impact~ if any, on essential safety net services in the community, 
to the extent that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge. 

The University of Chicago Medical Center ("UCMC") is a recognized provider of safety net 
services, and multi-specialty ambulatory care is an essential, safety-net resource for the 
communities that we serve. In furtherance of our charitable mission, UCMC advocates for 
access to health care for all persons, including those without an ability to pay. Additionally, 
UCMC has robust financial assistance and charity care policies, which will be available to 
patients at our new ambulatory site for all medically-necessary outpatient hospital and physician 
office-based services on the same terms as patients on our main campus. 

At a time when nearly I in 3 office-based physicians are turning away new Medicaid patients,! 
and an even higher number of physicians refuse to see uninsured patients altogether, UCMC's 
intent to create additional outpatient capacity, including capacity for those with a limited ability 
to pay, is a demonstration of its enduring commitment to low-income and other vulnerable 
populations. UCMC recognizes that financial and other barriers to healthcare are endemic to its 
constituency, whether it be on the South Side of Chicago or in Chicago's South Suburbs, and 
seeks to mitigate potential obstacles to their timely receipt of quality health care in the 
community. 

Planning Area A-04 is home to 16 community health centers and FQHCs, which have a 
persistent need for specialty medical services and know that the absence of specialty care can 
lead to greater morbidity and perhaps mortality among their patients. In fact, these FQHCs, 
including four (4) Access sites, depend on hospitals to provide a continuum of care to their 
patients. UCMC has been a long-standing hospital partner to many FQHCs, including Access 
Community Health Network ("Access"), and continually collaborates with such organizations to 
improve community health. Included in Appendix-l is a letter from Access indicating its support 
for the Project and its desire to partner with UCMC to connect Medicaid recipients and low 
income residents to health care services. 

Additionally, in developing the Project, UCMC has worked closely with the Mayor of the 
Village of Orland Park ("Village"), Daniel J. McLaughlin and members of the Village Board. 
The proposed facility will be located in downtown Orland Park on property owned by the 
Village. The Village has long sought to bring advanced medical care to the area residents and 
strongly supports the Project. A letter from Mayor McLaughlin supporting the Project is 
attached as Appendix A-I. 

UCMC's proposed establishment of an ambulatory care medical office building in Planning Area 
A-04 signifies increased access to, and the availability of, high-quality specialty medical care for 
the area's neediest patients. 

1 Health Affairs, August 2012, Vol. 31, No.8, pgs. 1673 -1679. 
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UCMC's record of providing services to a large, medically underserved, low income population is 
already well established because of its location on Chicago's South Side, a community that is 
one of the most economically challenged in the State of Illinois and that has a critical need for 
quality healthcare. The population of the South Side is approximately 87 percent African 
American, 6 percent White and 4 percent Hispanic. The South Side is relatively poor compared 
to the City of Chicago as a whole with 29 percent of community residents reporting family 
incomes below the poverty level compared with 20 percent for the city as a whole. In addition, 
just under half of the South Side community lives below 200 percent of the poverty levef. 

UCMC remains the largest Medicaid provider among private hospitals in the State of Illinois. 
UCMC also provides 68% more Medicaid services (as measured by net revenue) than the 
average of our Chicago-area academic medical center peers. 

2. The Project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross­
subsidize safety net services. if reasonably known to the applicant. 

UCMC's proposed establishment of an ambulatory care medical office building in Planning Area 
A-04 should not impact the ability of other providers or health care systems to cross-subsidize 
safety net services. The purpose of the Project is to attempt to keep pace with projected 
incremental demand from the community. The patients that will use ambulatory location are 
either existing patients ofUCMC that have been served on its main medical campus or a part of 
the incremental growth projected for the region in the next five years. 

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net 
providers in a given community, if reasonably known by the applicant. 

Not applicable. 

4. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, 
including information regarding teaching, research, and any other services. 

UCMC provides a substantial amount of care for which it does not receive payment. As reported 
in UCMC's 990 tax filing for fiscal year 2013, UCMC provided $25,793,000 in charity care, 
incurred losses on government programs of $116,370,000 and losses on education of 
$78,916,000 provided research support of $48,309,000 and $1,353,000 for other programs, and 
incurred uncompensated charges-or bad debt-of$12,326,000. 

However, the community benefit provided by UCMC goes well beyond the number of charity 
care and Medicaid patients treated at UCMC. For example, UCMC's mission is to provide 
superior health care in a compassionate manner, ever mindful of each patient's dignity and 
individuality. To accomplish its mission, UCMC calls upon the skills and expertise of all who 
work together to advance medical innovation (patient care), service the health needs of the 
community (community service) and to further the knowledge of those dedicated to caring 
(research and education). 

2 Serving Chicago's Underserved: Regional Health System Profiles, Chicago Department of 
Public Health, Chicago Health and Health Systems Project (Oct. 20, 2005). 
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1. PATIENTCARE 

UCMC is a nationally recognized leader in patient care, research and medical education. 
Renowned for treating some of the most complex medical cases, UCMC brings the very 
latest medical treatments to patients in Chicago's South Side community, and throughout the 
world. In this way, UCMC furthers its commitment to patient care, clinical practice and 
community health. UCMC partners with the University of Chicago physicians and the 
Pritzker School of Medicine to educate the next generation of physicians and other health care 
professionals. UCMC is a leading provider of complex care and routinely ranks among the top 
providers of Medicaid services (based on admissions and inpatient days) in the state of Illinois. 

ADULT PATIENT CARE IN THE CENTER FOR CARE AND DISCOVERY (HCCD") AND 

BERNARD A. MITCHELL HOSPITAL 

In February 2013, UCMC opened the Center for Care and Discovery, a new 10-story hospital 
that serves as the new core of the UCMC campus. The new hospital is 1.2 million square feet and 
contains 240 single-occupancy inpatient rooms, including 52 intensive care beds, 21 operating 
rooms with leading-edge technology, and 7 advanced imaging suites for interventional 
procedures. The CCD provides a home for complex specialty care with a focus on cancer, 
gastrointestinal disease, neuroscience, advanced surgery, and high-technology medical imaging. 
The facility is designed for family-centered care and improved communication among all 
members of the patients care team. 

Bernard A. Mitchell Hospital ("Mitchell"), which was built in 1983, continues to operate 220 
inpatient beds and includes the emergency department and Arthur Rubloff Intensive Care Tower. 
Mitchell also houses UCMC's Bum and Electrical Trauma Units and intensive care units for 
transplantation, neurology and neurosurgery, cardiothoracic care, general surgery, and general 
medicine patients. UCMC houses one of only two bum units in Chicago, at which UCMC 
provides care to critically-injured adult and pediatric patients, many of whom spend months in 
this intensive care facility. 

UCMC offers world-class transplantation programs in several areas, including transplantation of 
the liver, kidney, pancreas, lung, heart, bone marrow and other tissues, mUltiple-organ 
transplantation, and research in transplant immunology. UCMC performed 120 organ 
transplants in FY 2013 and 167 bone marrow or stem cell transplant procedures for the treatment 
of various cancers for both adult and pediatric patients. 

UCMC admitted more than 21,000 adult patients in fiscal year 2013 with more than 425,000 
adult and pediatric visits to the outpatient ambulatory care facility. In addition, UCMC's 
Mitchell Hospital contains state-of-the-art obstetrical and gynecological facilities and has a 
leading program in reproductive endocrinology and infertility. The facilities include eight labor 
rooms, three delivery rooms, and two birthing rooms, as well as a 17 -bed gynecology unit and 
four obstetric operating rooms. Over 1,660 babies were delivered at UCMC during FY 2013, 
many to women with high-risk pregnancies. 

UCMC's Emergency Department is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and in FY 2013, UCMC 
provided almost 47,000 adult ED visits, making it the busiest emergency room on Chicago's 
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South Side. In addition, UCMC serves as a Resource Hospital for one of the emergency medical 
system ("EMS") regions in Illinois. UCMC is one of three (3) Resource Hospitals in Chicago 
and represents Chicago South. As a Resource Hospital, UCMC has authority and responsibility 
over the entire EMS regional system, including the clinical aspects, operations and educational 
programs. UCMC provides the entire budget for its participation as a Resource Hospital.and 
spends over $300,000 per year on this service. As a Resource Hospital, UCMC also is 
responsible for replacing medical supplies and providing for equipment exchange in participating 
EMS vehicles. UCMC spends approximately $30,000 per year on replacement and restocking. 

CHICAGO COMER CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL 

As a major tertiary referral center, the University of Chicago Comer Children's Hospital sees 
children with medical problems that range from some of the most common to some of the most 
complex in its 155 bed, seven-story facility, which opened in February 2005. Families of these . 
pediatric patients can stay at the 30,000 square-foot Ronald McDonald House on campus, which 
UCMC built and opened in December 2007, nearly doubling the size of the prior Ronald 
McDonald House. More than 5,000 children were admitted as patients to Comer Children's 
Hospital in fiscal year 2013 from the Chicago area, the Midwest, and around the world. In FY 
2013, UCMC's outpatient clinics accommodated more than 43,800 general pediatric and 
specialty visits in its ambulatory care facility and almost 29,000 visits were made to the Comer 
pediatric emergency room. 

Comer Children's Hospital is staffed by more than 100 physicians from the Department of 
Pediatrics at the University, as well as specialty nurses and caring support staff. The teams of 
healthcare professionals-including medical students, residents and fellows-work together to 

. provide general and specialty medical care for newborns to young adults. At Comer Children's 
Hospital and through its outpatient clinics, children and teens receive advanced therapies in 
virtually all clinical areas. 

Comer Children's Hospital is a pediatric Level-I trauma center that treats children with severe 
injuries for emergency trauma care. UCMC also cares for critically ill and injured children in its 
technologically advanced Pediatric Intensive Care Unit ("PICU"). The 30-bed PICU is fully 
equipped to treat children with multiple traumas, complex medical problems, and conditions 
requiring major surgery, including cardiac, transplant, and neurosurgery. 

In addition, 47 designated tertiary care (Level III) beds in the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit and 
24 convalescent (Level II) beds in the Transitional Care Unit provide premature and critically ill 
infants with the most advanced medical care and life support systems. 

At the Comer Children's Hospital, infants who spend time in the NICU receive specialized 
follow-up care after they are discharged at its Center for Healthy Families ("Center"). The 
Center uses a multidisciplinary care approach that includes general pediatricians, neonatologists, 
nurse educators, pediatric social workers, registered dietitians, occupational therapists, physical 
therapists, speech therapists and home health nurses. The Center also draws on the expertise of 
other pediatric specialists as needed. The team addresses a host of concerns, including medical 
and physical needs, development, motor skills, speech, growth, nutrition, and the home 
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environment. Team members are available by pager 24 hours a day and also teach parents how to 
give medications, monitor symptoms, and take other steps to meet their child's special needs. 
Sometimes, team members even visit the child's home to help parents and caregivers adapt to the 
physical and emotional environment to support the child's needs. 

Comer Children's Hospital serves as the Center of a Regional Perinatal Network that is 
responsible for the administration and implementation of the Illinois Department of Public 
Health's ("IDPH") regionalized perinatal health care program. In this role, UCMC provides nine 
area hospitals with consultation as well as transport services for approximately 16,000 babies 
born in network hospitals, more than one-third of them considered high-risk. The network is 
committed to reducing fetal and infant mortality throughout the surrounding urban, suburban, 
and rural communities. UCMC also provides leadership in the design and implementation of 
IDPH's Continuous Quality Improvement program and participates in continuing education for 
other health professionals. 

More than 60% of all care provided at Comer Children's Hospital is provided to children 
covered by the Medicaid program. Comer Children's Hospital has a strong commitment to its 
community and sponsors a number of programs and services that extend beyond its walls. For 
example, Comer Children's Hospital takes primary care to children in its surrounding 
neighborhoods through the Pediatric Mobile Medical Unit (the "Mobile Unit"), which features 
two fully equipped exam rooms and a team comprised of a physician, a nurse practitioner and a 
community health advocate. The 40-foot-Iong Mobile Unit provides a full array of pediatric 
primary care services to children ages 3 to 19 who may not receive heaIthcare on a regular basis 
and brings medical resources to the children's school so parents or guardians don't have to work 
through obstacles, such as transportation. 

At schools throughout the community, the Mobile Unit provides such services as immunizations; 
physicals for school and sports; screenings for vision, hearing, lead poisoning, and anemia; urine 
tests; and blood draws. At high schools, the Mobile Unit offers health education and treatment 
for minor injuries. When appropriate, children are referred for follow up care and specialty 
services to manage conditions such as asthma, diabetes, or mental health problems. 

2. COMMUNITY SERVICE 

UCMC's South Side community lacks needed health care services. Chicago's South Side has lost 
seven hospitals since 1985 - including most recently, the closure of Michael Reese Hospital in 
2009 - and more than 2,000 beds in the past decade alone. This has resulted in a "shortage" of 
critical medical services and an increased demand for preventative care. Rooted in the firm belief 
that all patients should have access to the health care services they need, UCMC has partnered 
with other healthcare providers that serve this community to coordinate resources. 

UCMC is committed to building strong and meaningful relationships with the surrounding 
community and recognizes that these relationships will help improve health outcomes on the 
South Side of Chicago. 

One of UCMC's innovative approaches to addressing the health care shortage in its community 
is a program called the Urban Health Initiative ("UHI"). Under the UHI, UCMC pursues 
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meaningful partnerships with other providers in the community to improve the long-term health 
of patients and to conduct important community-based clinical research, including research on 
the diseases that have the greatest impact in the South Side community (e.g., diabetes, renal 
failure, asthma, etc.). Some of the key UHI programs, initiatives and partnerships aimed at 
meeting the health needs of the community are described below. . 

Under the UHI, UCMC established, and continues to expand, a series of relationships with other 
health care providers throughout the South Side to help patients establish a permanent "medical 
home" and thus to facilitate improved access to care and ensure that more patients are guided to 
the most suitable providers for the care they need. Research has shown that when patients have a 
medical home in the community, they can manage their health issues on a more consistent basis 
and get more effective care for the prevention and treatment of non-urgent conditions, routine 
care and management of health issues, and referrals to specialists or hospitals for more complex 
care as needed. 

One of the key components of the UHI is the South Side Healthcare Collaborative (SSHC), a 
network of over 30 community-based health centers, free clinics and local hospitals. The SSHC 
was established in 2005, with assistance from a two-year Healthy Communities Access Program 
grant from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, to help emergency 
room patients who report not having a primary care physician find appropriate care at a medical 
home where the patient can establish an ongoing relationship with a community clinic or 
physician. After the government grant ended, UCMC· undertook the continued funding of the 
SSHCC operations. 

To help patients connect with community health resources, UCMC staffs its Emergency 
Department with patient advocates whose goal is to meet with patients who do not have a 
primary care provider. Through the Medical Home and Specialty Care Connections Program, 
UCMC social workers conduct comprehensive social service assessments and referrals in the 
Emergency Department. Since 2005, UCMC has been providing information to patients about 
available SSHCC resources and patient advocates have scheduled almost 10,000 primary or 
specialty care appointments for patients with providers in the community. In FY 2013, patient 
advocates worked with over 10,000 patients and made over 4,500 appointments for patients to 
receive primary and specialty care from community providers. 

The Extension for Community Healthcare Outcomes ("ECHO Chicago") model is an innovate 
effort by UHI to expand access to specialized care for vulnerable, underserved communities. 
ECHO Chicago uses advanced communications technology to bring together UCMC's expertise 
and primary care providers in the community, enabling underserved patients to receive state-of­
the-art, evidence-based care for complex chronic conditions within the familiar surroundings of 
their medical home. 

The ER Community Portal is a web-based site that gives SSHC physicians the ability to access 
the medical records of patients referred from UCMC's pediatric and adult emergency rooms. 
The Portal is aimed at helping to lower medical costs by reducing the need to re-order redundant 
tests; reducing medical errors by giving community physicians a more comprehensive view of 
patients' medical histories; and improving outcomes by providing better continuity of care. The 
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Portal is just one of the many steps geared towards creating a seamless network of 
interconnected health care and social service agencies on the South Side. 

UCMC also provides community residents with primary and specialty care through a number of 
additional programs. For example, in an effort to expand the availability of high quality medical 
care in the community, under the URI, UCMC has placed specialty care providers at federally 
qualified health centers ("FQHC") in the South Side. In this way, UCMC aims to increase the 
availability of specialty services to patients living in the community. 

UCMC has partnered with the public health system on the IRIS for Kids program, which is 
designed to expand access to pediatric specialty care and diagnostic services. This automated, 
Internet-based scheduling system allows parents to book specialty care appointments for children 
at the public hospital. Often the wait for these appointments is lengthy on the South Side and this 
system provides much-needed additional capacity. 

Similarly, UCMC participates in the Illinois Breast and Cervical Cancer Program ("IBCCP"), a 
state funded program offering mammograms, breast exams, pelvic exams and Pap tests to 
eligible women. Through UCMC's participation in the IBCCP, UCMC provides mammography 
and breast cancer screening services through a referral process in partnership with the Illinois 
Department of Health and Chicago Family Health Center, the lead agency for the IBCCP. In FY 
2013, UCMC provided over 700 services to patients in the IBCCP, including screening and 
diagnostic mammograms, and ultrasounds. 

UCMC provides grants to community health care providers under the UHI to help them expand 
their capabilities to serve more patients with more resources and also provides sponsorships to 
community organizations and initiatives. UCMC develops partnerships with community 

. hospitals to help make the best use of resources iIi underutilized hospitals. In addition, UCMC 
physicians often provide care at these community providers and hospitals. In FY 2013, UCMC 
provided $588,000 in grants and sponsorships to community organizations, which were used for, 
among other initiatives, promoting physical exercise, nutrition and youth education. 

As part of the UHI, UCMC has undertaken research initiatives that engage South Side residents 
in finding innovative, community-based solutions to ongoing health care needs. For example, 
UHI launched the Center for Community Health and Vitality ("CCHV"), which provides a 
community base for UHI to offer University data and research resources to the community and to 
facilitate research and demonstrations done by University investigators in collaboration with 
South Side residents. 

One of the major CCHV initiatives is the South Side Health and Vitality Studies (the "Studies"). 
The Studies are guided by the fundamental premise that scientific inquiry in service to 
community priorities and in collaboration with community partners is needed to eliminate the 
most impenetrable barriers to health and vitality. The South Side Health and Vitality Studies 
focus on social, environmental and technological determinants of health. 

More specifically, the Studies aim to track several thousand South Side households over a 
generation to discover ways to ensure long-term health and wellness. These discoveries will 
inform effective health policy and action. The first of these studies is a Community Asset 
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Mapping Project that engages community members in keeping current information about the 
availability and distribution of commercial, healthcare, social and civic resources in all thirty­
four (34) South Side communities. The goal of the Community Asset Mapping Project is to give 
area residents reliable information to help them find quality services, to identifY gaps in such 
services, and to inform new community investments. Residents may view and give feedback on 
the Community Asset Mapping Project at SouthSideHealth.org. This interactive website also 
provides professionals with detailed information about available resources for health and human 
services in Chicago's South Side. 

UCMC provides financial incentives to encourage alumni to practice in surrounding, 
underserved communities through UCMC's funding of a program called Repayment for 
Education to Alumni in Community Health, or REACH. REACH encourages up to five 
graduates a year from the Medical School to practice medicine at a federally qualified health 
clinic or community hospital on the South Side of Chicago, once they have completed a 
residency. In exchange, students receive financial help, which can be used for education loan 
repayment, of$40,OOO a year. 

3. COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND EDUCATION 

As a member of a diverse neighborhood, UCMC is involved in a variety of activities with 
community groups, faith-based organizations, community leaders and residents. To this end, 
UCMC has launched a series of initiatives to build partnerships with local communities and 
engage directly in providing information and solutions that enhance healthcare in the 
neighborhoods surrounding UCMC. 

UCMC routinely holds community events on specific diseases and diagnoses and invites 
community residents to participate through outreach efforts via churches and other community­
based organizations. At these community events, UCMC clinical and administrative personnel 
speak directly to members of the community about a variety of issues, including how to manage 
particular medical issues and the importance of having a medical home. 

On a regular basis, UCMC holds a UHI Summit, which brings together UCMC physicians, 
administrators and staff; public healthcare officials; representatives of various 'community 
organizations; and the media to discuss ways to advance health in the community. UCMC 
physicians also lead a weekly radio broadcast on a local radio station focused on disease-specific 
health topics impacting the community. 

In addition, UCMC and the University of Chicago's Comprehensive Cancer Center are focused 
on addressing the gap between advances in cancer care and patient accessibility. To achieve the 
desired cancer prevention and control outcomes, the Comprehensive Cancer Center's priority is 
to identifY the parts of Chicago most affected by cancer and provide resources that maximize the 
impact of its services. This includes improving the quality of life for cancer patients and 
survivors, reducing risk factors, increasing access to care, reducing tobacco use and increasing 
participation in cancer research. To this end, UCMC and the University of Chicago initiated the 
Office of Community Engagement and Cancer Disparities ("OCECD"), with a goal of enhancing 
public awareness of cancer prevention, early cancer detection and control, and the role of 

ATTACHMENT 40 

000148 



genetics in cancer. The program also strives to provide sustained engagement with the South 
Side community to increase local awareness of the latest advances in cancer research. 

UCMC also provides Best of the Best Tours to children and teens in grades 6 through 12. The 
Best of the Best Tours provide a hands-on look at what goes on inside UCMC and a personal 
introduction to the many job opportunities available at UCMC, one of the South Side's largest 
employers. Students visit an array of critical areas where they look at human organs to learn 
about disease; they learn about the impact of exercise on the body; and they see how technology 
is used in all facets of medical care - both diagnostically and administratively. It's a day of fun 
and inspiration as students learn about careers as sterile technicians, pathologists, nurses, 
phlebotomists, information systems analysts, human resources specialists and other job roles. 
Since 2003, UCMC has provided between three and ten Best of the Best tours per year. 

4. RESEARCH AND EDUCATION 

UCMC dedicates resources to a variety of clinical, research and education initiatives that are 
designed to promote better health results for the communities it serves. UCMC works with the 
University to conduct a wide array of externally and internally funded biologic research with the 
aim of finding solutions to some of the country's most critical health problems. Hundreds of 
clinical research projects are being conducted at UCMC facilities at anyone time and are 
available to nearly every type of patient UCMC treats. As a result, UCMC provides the only 
comprehensive set of clinical trials to patients in the South Side of Chicago. 

For example, the Center for Interdisciplinary Health Disparities Research focuses on achieving a 
trans-disciplinary approach to understanding population health and health disparities and the 
elimination of group differences in health. Currently the Center for Interdisciplinary Health 
Disparities Research is focused on understanding why African American women develop breast 
cancer at a younger age and have a higher incidence of mortality from breast cancer than do 
white women. 

UCMC also invests in research conducted under a Clinical and Translational Science Award 
(CTSA) funded by federal grants to the University with additional investment by UCMC - to 
provide more effective community health care by helping to translate basic science research into 
programs that benefit the community. The CTSA initiative is led by the National Center for 
Research Resources at the National Institutes of Health and is aimed at improving the way 
biomedical research is conducted across the country, reducing the time it takes for laboratory 
discoveries to become treatments for patients, engaging communities in clinical research efforts, 
and training the next generation of clinical and translational researchers. In an effort to marshal 
available intellectual resources, this research includes the involvement of University social 
scientists and social workers to help researchers and practitioners better understand how to 
overcome social and/or cultural hurdles and improve community health. 

UCMC is deeply committed to providing health care solutions and services for patients, the 
community and the region. With a continued focus on its three critical missions - patient care, 
research and education UCMC strives be a leader in complex care and to have a lasting impact 
on the health and vitality of Chicago's South Side. 
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The community benefit services are described in detail in the FY 2012 Community Benefit 
Report included at the end of this Attachment 40. 

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031 
CHARITY CARE 

Charity (# of patients} 2011 2012 2013 
Inpatient 597 655 759 

Outpatient 15,021 20,446 22,720' 
Total 15,618 21.l101 23,479 

. Charity (cost in dollars) i 

Inpatient $7,721,000 $7,524,000 $10,633,000 
Outpatient 6,706,000 9,096,000 11,367,000 

$14,427,000 $16,620,000 $22,000,000 
MEDICAID 

Medicaid (# of patients) 2011 2012 2013 
Inpatient 6,969 7,414 7,215 

Outpatient 88,942 88,211 88,065 
Total 95,911 95,625 95,280 
Medicaid (revenue) 

I-
$162,810,000 $171,224,000 $165,714,000 Inpatient 

Outpatient 43,554,000 44,182,000 44,274,000 
Total $206,364,000 $215,406,000 $209,988,000 
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AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEDICINE'" 

AT THE FOREFRONT 
OF OUR COMMUNITY 
The University of Chicago Medicine's 
2012 Report to the Community 
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Kicking Off a Big Year on the South Side 
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

The past year has been an exciting one for the University of Chicago Medicine. As we moved 
ahead with monumental changes under health care reform, we also completed a new hospital 
that rivals any medical facility in the world. 

About 200 guests were on hand for the dedication of the Center for Care and Discovery on Jan. 14, 2013. From left: the University of 
Chicago Medicine patient Tony Palumbo; Sharon O'Keefe, Medical Center president; Dr. Kenneth Polonsky, executive vice president for 
medical affairs; Illinois Gov. Pat Quinn; Robert Zimmer, president of the University of Chicago; Rep. Barbara Flynn Currie; Sen. Kwame 
Raoul; Ald. Leslie Hairston; Rep. Christian Mitchell; and Ndang Azang-Njaah, Pritzker School of Medicine student. 

The Center for Care and Discovery represents our mission of 
delivering top-notch care in a collaborative setting where a critical 
mass of expertise and world-class research gives patients of today and 
tomorrow hope and a place to heal. The new hospital also exemplifies 
our contributions to the economic vitality of the region, bringing jobs to 

residents and pumping dollars into the local economy. 

While we are proud of the new hospital, our commitment to the 
community goes beyond brick and mortar. It also involves supporting 
the next generation of physicians, charity care, losses tied to Medicaid, 
and donations to community groups. It extends even further to cover 
medical research, Medicare underpayments, unrecoverable patient debt, 
interpreters and volunteer work. 

Altogether, the University of Chicago Medical Center and the Biological 
Sciences Division prOVided $254 million in benefits and services to rhe 
community in fiscal 20 12. 

This brochure highlights these community benefits and our plans to 
address health disparities. For details on how we work to improve the 
health of the South Side and beyond, visit us online at 
uchospitals.edul community or call 773-702-0025 to get last year's 
Community Benefit Report. 

r~ 
Kenneth S. Polonsky, MD 
Executive Vice President for Medical Affairs, University of Chicago 
Dean, Biological Sciences Division and Pritzker School of Medicine 

.. ~~O!~ 
:~~'Keefe / 

President; UniverSity of Chicago Medical Center 

ON THE COVER: Robert McGee Jr., president of /I in One Contractors Inc. in the Archer Heights neighborhood, and his workers 

laid the foundation for the Center for Care and Discovery. (See his story inside.) 

Photo by Bruce Powell 
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Providing Millions in Benefits and Services 

$254.1 M~LL~ON 
Community Benefits, Services in Fiscal 2012 

21.7% of $1.17 billion in total operating expenses 

Total Uncompensated 
Care: $122.5 million 
Medicare program losses: 
$50 million 
Support to make up for Medicare and Medicaid 
reimbursement rates, which do not cover the COSt of 
care. Medicare is a federal health insurance program 
for people 65 and older and rhose wirh certain 
disabilities. Medicaid is a federal-state program for 
those requiring financial assistance. 

Medicaid program losses"': 
$40.2 million 

Charity care*: 
$20.3 million 
COSt of providing free or discounted services to 
qualified individuals 

Unrecoverable patient debt: 
$12 million 
Amount absorbed when a hospital cannot 
collect expected payment for se'rvices 

'An IRS-defined category of community benefit 
Components of community benefit for fiscal year 
2012 (measured at cost), Data prepared based on 
the Illinois Attorney General's and IRS guidelines 
for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
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Medical Education: 
$81.7 million 
COSt to teach and train future health care 

professionals not covered by tuition, grants 
and scholarships 

Medical Research: 
$48 million 
Funding to investigate ways to better prevent, detect 
and treat disease and to advance patient care 

Uncategorized 
Community Benefits: 
$1.2 million 
lncludes support for healrh improvement 
services, community activities. volunteers and 
language assistance 

Cash and In-kind 
Contributions/Donations*: 
$676,285 
Gifts to community groups for 
health-related activities 



Creating Opportunities for the South Side 
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

In December 2012, well before sunrise, 
Angela McGowan arrived at Apostolic 
Church of God in the Woodlawn 
neighborhood to apply for one of the 
roughly 300 permanent positions created 
to staff the Center for Care and Discovery. 

The South Side native had been trying for years to land a job on 
the University of Chicago campus. So when she saw a flyer for a job fair 
posted at a nearby Family Community Resource Center, she was thrilled 
at the opportunity to meet recruiters face-co-face. 

By 10:30 a.m. the day of the fair, more than 1,000 people were waiting 
with resumes in hand for the opportunity co work at the University of 
Chicago Medicine's newest hospital. 

"When I think about all the people who were there, I feel extremely 
fortunate," said McGowan, one of the approximately 300 permanent 
hires who now work in the Center for Care and Discovery. "This is my 
foot in the door. I want to do my best here, go back to college soon, then 
pursue other opportunities the Medical Center has co offer." 

About a month later, Robert McGee Jr. was walking around the new 

hospital's Sky Lobby on the 7th floor with a sense of awe as he looked out 
over the surrounding Hyde Park community and downtown skyline. 

His concrete and rebar firm, II in One Contractors !nc., was one of 
about 100 minority- and women-owned firms that helped build the 
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"Ibis is my foot in the door. I want to do 

my best here, go back to college soon, then 

pursue other opportunities the Medical 

Center has to offer." 
" Angela McGowan, 
food service worker at the new Center for Care and Discovery 

$700 million Center for Care and Discovery. He was there to represent 
them at the January 2013 dedication ceremony. 

"I had a real sense of gratitude and thanksgiving that I was allowed co be 
a part of this project that is going to make such a profound difference in 
the lives of so many people; he said. 

As South Side residents, both McGee and McGowan have common 
bonds to a community with a proud culture and rich heritage. Through 
the Center for Care and Discovery, they became part of a larger family 
sharing in the economic benefits and hope that the University of 
Chicago Medicine is bringing to its neighbors. 

The ironworkers and laborers employed by McGee spent about 
50,000 hours on the new hospital project, with more than two-thirds 
of the work going to minority and women workers. In fact, about 48 
percent of the value of all construction contracts that were put out to 
bid for the 10-story facility went co certified women- and minority­
owned businesses. 

Construction of the 1.2 million-square-foot facility, which opened in 
February 2013, employed a total of2,755 people over the four-year project. 
Roughly 42 percent were minority and women construction workers. 

"In terms of dollars that trickled down to people in the community with 
the kind of participation in the workforce, it was huge," McGee said. 
adding he won other business from the COntacts he made on the hospital 
job. "That's men and women feeding their families as a result of that 
project. It was not only good for my company; it was good for a lot of 
people in the African-American and other minority communities." 



Total Economic Impact 
of Hospital Project: 

$5)71.5 
mollion 

$447.7 million 
paid in contracts 

that were open for bid 

Of that $447.7 million: 

48% 
went to 

minority & women 
business enterprises 

(MBE/WBE) 

79% 
went to 

ILLINOIS firms 

43% 
went to 

MBE/WBE 
IN ILLINOIS 

1 

$123.8 million 
Economic value of total workforce 
of 2,755 (wages, benefits, other) 

Of a total workforce of 2,755: 
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o o g 91% from Illinois g 42% were 
minority 
and women 
construction 
workers 

~ 36% from Chicago 

~ 25% from the 
South Side 
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Fostering Health and Opportunity in the Community 
"' ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. ............................. . 

The University of Chicago Medicine is committed to strengthening the South Side by supporting 
programs and initiatives that improve health and well-being among the community and help boost 
the local economy. That philosophy touches every facet of the medical campus, including what 
types of health programs are supported and how business partners are selected. In 2012 and 2013, 
the University of Chicago Medicine was recognized for its contributions to the community. 

CommunityHealth's Visionary Award 
April 20, 2013 - The University of Chicago Medicine 
was awarded CommunityHealth's 2013 Visionary 
Award for its "extraordinary contributions and its 
commitment to bringing high-quality, comprehensive 
health care to Chicago's more undeserved South Side 
communities." The University of Chicago Medicine has 
provided staffing and financial support for initiatives 
that have helped CommunityHealth expand its role as 
a medical home on the South Side. 

AAMC's Spencer Foreman Award 
Nov. 3, 2012 - The University of Chicago Medicine 
was named a finalist for the Spencer Foreman 
Award for Outstanding Community Service from the 
Association of American Medical Colleges. The award 
honors medical schools and teaching hospitals with 
a longstanding commitment to communities that 
exceed the traditional role of academic medicine 
to address unmet health care needs. The University 
of Chicago Medicine's broad-based community 
collaborations, health education, patient care and 
prevention programs earned high marks among the 13 
applicants for the award. The winner and other finalist 
were the University of California San Francisco School 
of Medicine and the University of Arizona College of 
Medicine. respectively. 

UHC's Supplier Diversity Award 
Sept. 14, 2012 - The University of Chicago 
Medicine was awarded the 2012 Supplier Diversity 
Leadership Award by UHC. an alliance of the 
nation's leading academic medical centers, for the 
development and implementation of an outstanding 
supplier diversity program. The award is based on 
several criteria, induding the structure and strength 
of the organization's supplier diversity program, 
utilization of diversity contracts, senior leaders' 
involvement in supplier diversity. and community 
involvement and outreach to minority-, women-
and veteran-owned businesses. 
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CommunityHealth's facilities are among the free clinics 
that the University of Chicago Medicine supports: 
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1. CommunityHealth West Town - Faculty and medical 
students support a weekly clinic at this facility. 
2611 W. Chicago Ave. I 773-395-9900 

2. CommunityHealth Englewood - Volunteer physicians. 
residents and medical students from the University of 
Chicago Medicine provide the bulk of services at this clinic. 
641 W. 63rd St. I 773-994-1515 

3. Washington Park Children's Free Clinic - From 5:30 to 
7:30 p.m. each Tuesday, medical students provide acute 
medical care, social services and referrals for children. 
5350 S. Prairie Ave. I 773-924-0220 ext. 110 

4. Maria Shelter Clinic - Medical students and an 
attending physician provide care at this facility for 
homeless women and their children. 
7320 S. Yale Ave. I 773-994-5350 



Assessing Neighborhood Health Needs 
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

In spring 2012, University of Chicago Medicine leaders set out to answer a question essential to 
the patient-focused mission of hospitals: How do we best leverage our knowledge and resources 
to make the greatest impact on health in the communities we serve? 
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Lolita Smith, a patient advocate at Comer Children's Hospital, offers assistance to a mother who is seeking a regular pediatrician for her young daughter, 

While the health challenges facing many urban settings 
are known, developers of community initiatives on campus needed 
an evidence-based assessment of which issues South Side residents view 
as the most daunting and which untapped opportunities could drive 
significant improvements in those areas. 

In pursuit of this data and as part of the requirements of the federal 
Affordable Care Act, the University of Chicago Medicine has conducted 

its most comprehensive assessment to date of 

~ 
health care concerns, behaviors and status across 
Chicago's South Side. An in-depth report called 

CHI~' " the Community Health Needs Assessment 
, (CHNA), published in June in collaboration with 

the Metropolitan Chicago Healthcare Council, 
details the study's findings and proVides a strategic 

AREA compass for the health issues of the surrounding 
OF STUDY neighborhoods. 

The analysis, conducted over an eight-month period, examined health 
status, barriers to care, demographics and socioeconomic factors that 
affect adults and children living in a dozen ZIP codes from 35th Street 
to 1 19th Street and east of Western Avenue. Insights gathered through 

numerous focus groups and phone interviews with residents, community 
leaders, public health experts and social service providers were weighted 
against metro Chicago health data from trusted sources including 

the US. Department of Health and Human Services' Healthy People 
2020 initiative and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's 
Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System. 

The CHNA uncovered three health care priorities for adults and 
three for children. For adults, they are access to health care, breast and 
colorectal cancer, and diabetes. For children, the critical areas are access 
to care, obesity and asthma. The report includes a plan to advance 
outreach, prevention and education initiatives in those areas. 

In addition to identifying the issues of greatest concern in the 
community, the assessment provided another valuable insight; 
Confirmation that much of the work under way by the University of 
Chicago Medicine is on the right path. 

"It was encouraging to find that many of our targeted interventions at the 
community level are on the mark," said Brenda Battle, RN, BSN, MBA, 
assistant dean for diversity and inclusion and vice president for care 
delivery innovation. "But the report also pointed to areas where there's 
still work to do. The primary benefit of this exercise is that we're able to 

better prioritize the numerous programs in progress, which promotes 
stronger collaboration and innovation toward improved outcomes." 

You will find a summary of the University of Chicago Medicine's plans 
to address these community health needs on the following pages. 

For the complete Community Health Needs Assessment, please visit us online at uchospitals.edu!community-needs. 
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Assessing Community Health Needs: An Action Plan 

Armed with new community insights and an arsenal of programs and research in development, 
the University of Chicago Medicine has crafted an aggressive plan to address the health needs 
identified in the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA). The priorities for adults and children 
and the plans to meet these needs are listed below and on the following page. 

~I~_·--_·--·-·-~-··-·--------------------------~I 
r.:::::b . ~) 

Karen E. Kim, MD, professor of medicine, an expert on colon cancer 
prevention and screening methods, coordinates free colorectal 
cancer screenings, particularly for minority populations. 

TARGET: Access to health care 
Research increasingly points to a strong relationship with a primary 
care physician as the key to improved long-term health outcomes, The 
CHNA revealed that many South Side residents still lack an ongoing 
connection to frontline carc and often seek treatment for chronic 
conditions in the emergency department (ED). 

PLAN: Implement Medical 
Home Connection program 
The University of Chicago Medicine is 
honing efforts to turn the tide on this 
longstanding concern through its Medical 
Home Connection program. First 
launched in 2005, the program has made 
significant strides toward reducing repeat 
visits to the ED for non-emergency health 
conditions and connecting patients with a 
regular doctor for preventive care, disease 
management. and referrals to specialists. 

2,864-
PEOPLE 
CONNECTED 

to a medical home 
or specialty care cliniC 
through the Medical 
Home Connection 

since 2005 

Fur foe'" lear ,mkd 
jU1Jt3O, 20}2 

Patient advocates in the adult ED are central to this program. These 
specially trained staff members educate patients about the importance of 
having a regular doctor, and they schedule appointments with providers 
within the South Side Healchcare Collaborative, a network 000 
communiry health centers and rwo free clinics across Chicago's South Side. 
They also make reminder calls to help patients keep their appointments. 
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TARGET: Diabetes 
Diabetes affects an estimated 23,6 million people in the United States 
and is the seventh-leading cause of death. Between 2007 and 2009. Cook 
County reported an annual average age-adjusted diabetes mortality rate 
of22.7 deaths per 100.000 people. Of the adults in the CHNA survey 
area, 13.4 percent reported having been diagnosed with diabetes -
compared to the Illinois average of8.7 percent. 

PLAN: Implement South Side Diabetes Project 
The South Side Diabetes Project has set out to bring together local 
health systems with community organizations to improve the health 
and quality of life for people living with diabetes. The project works 

RECENT NEWS 
The project has teamed 
up with a local farmer's 

market to offer vouchers 
for locally grown fruits 

and vegetables. 

with six South Side clinics to train 
providers in culturally-relevant diabetes 
management, promote improvements 
to qualiry systems and connect patients 
to community resources, including 
exercise programs, local food pantries 
and educational grocery-store tours. 

TARGET: Breast and colorectal cancer 
Respondents to the CHNA survey say cancer remains among their 
top health concerns. According to the National Cancer Institute's 
Surveillance. Epidemiology and End Results (SEER), African­
Americans and Hispanics carry the heaviest burden of cancer in the 
U.S., with a death rate for all cancers nearly 25 percent higher than 
that observed in other ethnic groups. 

PLAN: Enhance and implement current programs 
The University of Chicago Medicine is responding to these disparities 
with a multifaceted plan to bring cancer prevention, early detection and 
treatment information to populations mOSt at risk. Coordinators plan 
to leverage community relationships, research and expertise to launch 
outreach initiatives to help educate the community. 

One example of these initiatives is the Breast Cancer Survivorship 
Program. Outreach coordinator Zakiya Moton, MPH, says that 
in her six years spearheading grassroots programs across Chicago's 
underserved neighborhoods, demand for information about breast 
cancer risk factors and early detection has increased. "I've seen 
improvements in health literacy each year, and people are reaching out 
more than ever for resources and information to aid them in becoming 
self-empowered for better health," said Moton. who speaks at health 
fairs. workplace programs and faith-based events. "Because of our 
efforts. people are getting screened and diagnosed with cancer in 
the earliest stages." 
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Pediatric-Focused Needs 

Nurse practitioner Pamela Beauduy checks the vital signs of a student during a visit to a high school. In the 2011-12 school year, the Comer 
Children's Hospital Pediatric Mobile Medical Unit visited 25 schools, the majority of them on the South Side. 

TARGET: Access to health care 
Access co comprehensive, qualicy health care services is vital to achieving 
health equity and improving the quality of life and life expectancy, 
particularly among children. Nearly 38 percent of parents in the CHNA 
survey area reported some type of challenge or delay in obtaining health 
care for a child in the past year. That is more chan 7 percentage points 
higher chan the national average. 

MOBILE 
CLINIC 
IMPACT 

111 
SITE VISITS 

954 
MEDICAL 

ENCOUNTERS 

196 
MENTAL 
HEALTH 

ENCOUNTERS 

PLAN: Enhance and 
implement current programs 
The Medical Home Connection program 
is expanding its reach to in-patient Roors 
at the University of Chicago Medicine 
Comer Children's Hospital to help ensure 
more young patients have the follow-up 
care needed to minimize the chance of a 
repeat hospital stay. 

To reach more underinsured and 
uninsured children, coordinators plan 
to expand the offerings of the Comer 
Children's Hospital Pediatric Mobile 
Medical Unit, which has been visiting 
South Side schools for more than a decade. 
They plan on visiting more schools and 
moving the "clinic on wheels' beyond 
physicals, screenings, immunizations and 
mental health assessments to offer a broad 
range of health education services. acute 
care and chronic illness management. 

For the complete Community Health Needs 
Assessment, please visit us online at 
uchospitals.edu/community-needs. 

TARGET: Childhood obesity 
Good nutrition and a healchy body weight are key to a child's development 
and to reducing the risk of developing many health conditions. About 40 
percent of children in the CHNA survey area were found to be overweight 
or obese, nearly 9 percentage poinrs higher than the national average. 

PLAN: Enhance and implement current programs 
To help address these startling statistics, the University of Chicago 
Medicine will tap its resources among community parmers and 
researchers on the medical campus to develop programs focused on 
risk, prevention, weight management and cui rurally relevant nutrition 
education. It also will suppOrt Power-Up, an after-school program 
of activities for kindergarten through 6th grade at the Woodlawn 
Community School. 

TARGET: Asthma 
Asthma is the most common chronic illness affecting children in 
this country, and research confirms that children in underserved 
communities are more likely to experience asthma-related complications, 
ED visits and hospitalization. About 17 percent of children in the 
CHNA survey area have asthma, and almost 58 percent missed school 
because of asthma-related problems. 

PLAN: Enhance and implement current programs 
The University of Chicago Medicine's Asthma Care Coordination 
program is designed to reduce the occurrence of serious asthma episodes. 
The program, which involves patient and caregiver education along 
with specialized training for nurses, is aimed at increasing awareness of 

potential triggers and improving the ability to manage the condition 
at home. The initiative also connects frequent emergency department 
visitors with a medical home or regular primary care provider who will 
become familiar with the patient's needs. Community-based education 
and home a~sessments are on the horizon. 
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Making Headlines in Community-Related News 
•...••........••........••.......•••.......•.............•.........•........••......••••......••••..•••••....•...••..........................•. 

$12 million in federal grants to help improve health outcomes 
July 10, 2012. The U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services 
awarded $12 million to two 
University of Chicago Medicine­
led programs: $5.9 million to 
create an automated system that 
will provide information about 
community-based services and 
resources and $6.1 million to test 
a comprehensive care physician 
model that seeks to improve 

health outcomes while also 
lowering costs. 

The grants were part of the Centers 
for Medicare & Medicaid Services' 
Health Care Innovation Awards, 
a funding initiative under the 
Affordable Care Act that supports 
solutions to improve health 
outcomes and reduce medical costs. 
Of the nearly 3,000 applicants, the 
University of Chicago Medicine was 
one of 107 institutions, and the only 
academic medical center in Illinois, 
to get multiple grants in round one 
of the Innovation Awards. 

The University of Chicago 
Medicine's South Side Health and 
Vitality Studies is leading the 
development of the CommunityRx 
system, a continuously updated 

database of health resources linked 
to the electronic health records of 

local safety net providers. In real 
time, the system processes data 
and prints out a "Health.eRx" for 
the patient. including referrals to 
community resources relevant 
to that person's condition and 
health status. The project is in 
partnership with the Chicago 
Health Information Technology 
Regional Extension Center and 
the Alliance of Chicago Community 
Health Services. 

CommunityRx is expected to serve 
about 200,000 beneficiaries of 
the South Side, many of whom are 
covered by Medicare, Medicaid or 
the Illinois Comprehensive Health 
Insurance Plan. 

"Our innovation helps people stay 
healthy and manage disease by 

connecting them to businesses 
and support organizations in their 

community," said Stacy Tessler 
Lindau, MD, associate professor 
of obstetrics and gynecology 

8 

r 
I 

Comer Children's Hospital, White Sox team up to target childhood obesity 
Jan, 25, 2013 Comer Children'S Hospital and the White Sox have joined forces to combat childhood obesity. 
Through a sponsorship of the team's "Family Sundays" along with the White Sox Kids Club, Comer Children's 
Hospital will teach families how to make healthy lifestyle choices using its repertoire of research-based programs. 

at the University of Chicago 
Medicine and lead researcher for 
this project. "The outcome will be 
better and more efficient health 
care delivery and stronger, more 
vital communities." 

The other Innovation Award will 
fund the study of a model that 

improves continuity of care for 
frequently hospitalized patients by 

providing them with a physician 
who will care for them both in 
clinic and in the hospital. The 
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goal is to address the issue of 
frequent hospitalizations by high­
risk patients, who account for a 
disproportionate amount of health 
care spending in the United 
States. Under the model, a 
comprehensive care physician 
(CCP) will lead a team of nurse 
practitioners, social workers, care 

coordinators and other speCialists 
to address the needs of frequently 

hospitalized patients. CCPs will 
carry a panel of approximately 200 

patients at a time, serving as their 

primary care physician during clinic 
visits and supervising their care 
while hospitalized. "Our goal will 
be to really understand patients' 
needs so that we can give them 
the care that they need," said lead 
investigator David Meltzer, MD, PhD, 
associate professor and chief of 
the Section of Hospital Medicine at 
the University of Chicago MediCine. 

"That should be better for them, and 
should ultimately be less costly for 
the health care system and produce 
better outcomes." 



.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... .............................. 

Other Community-Related News in 2012 and 2013 

Taxi drivers offered free flu shots at O'Hare, Midway 

Sept. 21, 2012 As part of an initiative to vaccinate some of Chicago's most vulnerable populations, University of 
Chicago Medicine nurses administered free flu shots to licensed taxicab drivers at O'Hare International Airport 
and at Midway International Airport. 

University of Chicago 
Medicine, CeaseFire partner 
to address violence 
Feb. 7, 2012 In an effort to address 

urban violence on the South Side, 
the University of Chicago Medicine 
is partnering with CeaseFire Chicago 
to sponsor a "Violence Interrupter" 
who will focus on monitoring, 
mediating and defusing disputes 
in neighborhoods that the medical 
campus serves. In addition. it has 
co-hosted media screenings of "It 
Shoudda Been Me," a play about 
youth violence written by Doriane 
Miller, MD, director of the Center for 
Community Health and Vitality. 

Annual Day of Service and 
Reflection marks 10 years 
of giving to community 

May 11, 2012 Hundreds of University 

of Chicago Medicine staff. faculty 
members, students, their family and 
friends mobilized across Chicago's 

South Side to tackle a host of 

community projects as part of 
the 10th annual Day of Service 
and Reflection. 

$23 million NIH grant to boost 
transformative medical research 
July 23, 2012 A $23 million grant 
from the National Institutes of 
Health will energize the University 
of Chicago's efforts to harness 

innovative medical research for 
interventions that lead to better 
community health in Chicago 
and across the nation. The 
grant brings total NIH funding 
to the University's Institute for 
Translational Medicine (ITM) to 
more than $50 million. Among 
projects the ITM has supported: 
development of an automated 3D 
imaging tool for measuring upper 
airway inflammation in sinusitis 

cases. and a program called the 
Thirty Million Words Project, 
which helps parents improve their 
children's language environment 

Diabetes initiative taps 
power of Rx pad 
Aug. 15, 2012 The UniverSity of 
Chicago Medicine and Walgreens 
teamed up to launch "Food Rx," 
an initiative that helps people 
with diabetes improve their eating 
habits by overcoming two major 
hurdles when shopping for food: 
access and affordability. As part 
of the Improving Diabetes Care 
and Outcomes on the South Side 
of Chicago, a project based at the 
University of Chicago Medicine. 
diabetes patients who visit one of 
six South Side clinics can receive a 
prescription-like checklist of their 
doctor's food recommendations 
and a coupon for $5 off $20 worth 
of healthy food at participating 
Walgreens locations. Patients 
also can get a $3 voucher for the 
weekly 61st Street Farmers Market 

in the Woodlawn neighborhood. 
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Annual event seeks to inspire 
diabetes patients, families 
April 27, 2013 Sherri Shepherd. 
co-host of "The View," was the 
special guest speaker at the 
UniverSity of Chicago Medicine 

Kovler Diabetes Center's 7th 
annual living Well with Diabetes 
event on April 27, 2013. Shepherd 
shared her personal struggle with 
weight loss and how she learned 
to enjoy life while managing her 

diabetes. Chef Jennifer Bucko 
Lamplough, star of Food Network's 
"Fat Chef" and author of blog 
FitFoodieChef, served up diabetes­
friendly dishes and shared tips 
for healthful home-cooked meals. 
living Well is a free annual event 
hosted by Kovler Diabetes Center 
to educate and inspire people 
living with diabetes. 

Ci3's Game Changer 
Chicago earns MacArthur 
Foundation funding 

.-:::.,;.. \. 

'-----~ 
April 10, 2013 Melissa Gilliam, 
MD, MPH, (above) heads the 
Center for Interdisciplinary 
Inquiry & Innovation in Sexual & 

Reproductive Health (Ci3), which 
received a $500,000 grant from 
the MacArthur Foundation. The 
grant will help support the creation 
of the Design Lab for Game 
Changer Chicago, an initiative 
to investigate how playing and 
designing games can promote the 
social and emotional. well-being 
of youth and improve sexual and 
reproductive health outcomes. 

To read more about 
these news items, go to 
www.uchospitals.edu/new5. 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO 
MEDICINE 
AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEDICINE" 

5841 S. Maryland Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60637 

About Us 

The University of Chicago Medicine 
and Biological Sciences 

• University of Chicago Medical Center 
• University of Chicago Biological Sciences Division 
• University of Chicago Pritzker School of Medicine 

o 
9,700 

Employees 

: •••••••••• INCLUDING' ••••••••• : 

0 Jl lID rn 
833 921 1,654 

Attending Residents Nurses 
Physicians and Fellows 

Request an Appointment 

To make an appointment, please call UCM Connect at 
1-888-824-0200. To learn more about the University of Chicago 
Medicine and Biological Sciences, visit us at www.uchospitals.edu. 

IN FY2012 

~ ~ 
24,218 76,461 
Admissions ER Visits 

6 Q 

283 128 
Burn Organ 

Admissions Transplants 

\lo 
320 

Pediatric Trauma 
Admissions 

Oc:=a 

r=i • • 
22,844 

Inpatient and 
• Outpatient Surgeries 

Medicaid Acute Care Days for Private Hospitals in Metro Chicago· 

Medicaid Percent of 
Days Total Days 

1. University of Chicago Medical Center 40,107 29% 6. Mount Sinai Hospital 
2. Advocate Christ Medical Center 38,388 21 7. Loyola University Medical Center 
3. Northwestern Memorial Hospital 36,867 16 8. Sts. Mary and Elizabeth Medical Center 
4. Rush University Medical Center 36,650 26 9. Advocate Lutheran General Hospital 
5. Lurie Children's Hospital 33,041 53 10. Mercy Hospital & Medical Center 

-Acute care days pl'ovfded to patients where illinois Medicaid is the primary Insurer; excluding normal nursery, psychiatry and rehabilitation days 
Source; Illinois Department of Healthcare & Family Services, Medicaid cost reports filed for the state fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 
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Medicaid Percent of 
Days Total Days 

31,316 48 
30,241 27 
26,314 33 
20,735 17 
18,638 32 



Section XII, Charity Care Information 

Attachment 41 

.. 2011 2012 2013 
Net Patient Revenue 
Amount of Charity Care (Charges) 61,801,000 73,064,000 100,061,000 
Cost of Charity Care 14,427,000 16,620,000 22,000,000 

ATTACHMENT 41 
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APPENDIX A-I 

Support Letters 
(Additional Letters to be Sent Directly) 
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commUnITY 
HeaLTH 

'----_--' NeTworK 
Caring. Committed. Connected. 

Administrative Offices 

600 W. Fulton Street 

2nd Aoor 

Chicago. Illinois 60661 

phone: 312.526.2200 

nccesscommullityheallh.net 

Denise Kitchen 
Chairwoman 

Donna Thompson 
Chief Executive Officer 

May 21,2014 

Ms. Courtney R. Avery 
Administrator 
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

Dear Ms. Avery, 

It is with pleasure that I submit this letter of support for the expansion of a specialty 
center for the University of Chicago Medical Center in Orland Park, Illinois. 

Access Community Health Network (ACCESS) is the medical home for over 185,000 
mostly low income residents of Cook and DuPage County. ACCESS provides primary 
health care in a network of over 35 health centers in Chicago, suburban Cook and 
DuPage County. 

ACCESS and the University of Chicago have been valued partners for over nine 
years. Through this partnership, we have enabled mostly low income, uninsured 
and underinsured residents to receive the best quality and critical health access to 
specialty services while maintaining their medical home through their ACCESS 
primary care provider. We have prudently utilized our mutual resources to ensure a 
seamless model of care. Most recently, we have dually invested in technology to 
ensure that patients can easily get appOintments for either specialty or primary care 
referrals, regardless of location. 

ACCESS has received State of Illinois approval to develop an accountable care entity 
(ACE) for low income, Medicaid recipients in Cook and DuPage counties. Because of 
this legislative change and subsequent expansion of gaining access for Medicaid 
reCipients, we look forward to building on our strong foundation in supporting the 
health care needs for all reSidents of Cook County. 

The University of Chicago Medical Center and ACCESS will seamlessly connect 
Medicaid recipients and low income residents to a primary care medical home while 
providing reciprocal access for highly valued specialty services. 

This is a definite "win-win" opportunity. 

Please support the University of Chicago Medical Center's specialty care expansion 
into Orland Park, Illinois. 

nrelY
, 

Donna Tho 
Chief Exec 

000165 

! : 



MAYOR 

Daniel J. McLaughlin 

VILLAGE CLERK 

John C. Mehalek 

14700 S. Ravinia Ave. 
Orland Park, IL 60462 

(708) 403-6100 
www.orlandpark.org 

May 27, 2014 

Ms. Courtney A very 
Administrator 

VILLAGE HALL 

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board 
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor 
Springfield, Illinois 62761 

Dear Ms. Avery: 

TRUSTEES 

Kathleen M. Fenton 

James V. Dodge 

Edward G. Schussler III 
Patricia A. Gira 

Carole Griffin Ruzich 

Daniel T. Calandriello 

I am writing on behalf of the Village of Orland Park to support the University of 
Chicago Medical Center's application to construct an outpatient care facility in Orland 
Park. 

The proposed facility would be a great addition to our community. Patients who 
currently travel a considerable distance to Chicago for cancer care, cardiology 
appointments, pediatric care, and other services, will have convenient access to high 
quality care near home. 

The University of Chicago'S nationally recognized programs in many areas, including 
cancer, GI, and treating complex diseases, will be greatly valued in our community. 
The University's new facility would be a significant boost for our local economy and 
will be a vital component of our re-energized downtown. 

We enthUSiastically support the project. 

ughlin 
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